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Propane
UGI Corporation owns 44% of AmeriGas Partners, L.P. (NYSE: APU), the largest 
retail marketer of propane in the United States. AmeriGas Partners, L.P. serves 
approximately 1.3 million customers from nearly 650 distribution locations in 46 
states. UGI Corporation is also a retail marketer of propane and butane in Austria, 
France and Switzerland through its international subsidiaries, Antargaz and Flaga. 
Through joint ventures, we also serve the Czech Republic, Hungary, Poland, Romania, 
Slovakia and China. In 2007, international operations sold approximately 340 million 
gallons of propane and butane to more than 285,000 customers. 

Gas and Electric
Wholly owned UGI Utilities, Inc. distributes natural gas to more than 478,000 
customers and provides electric service to nearly 62,000 customers in eastern 
and northeastern Pennsylvania. UGI Energy Services, Inc. markets natural gas and 
electricity under the trade names GASMARK® and POWERMARK® to approximately 
11,000 commercial and industrial customers in nine states. We also own a variety of 
assets that support the storage, transportation and delivery of natural gas products. 
Through a subsidiary, we own electric generation assets in Pennsylvania. Through 
other subsidiaries, we provide heating, air conditioning, refrigeration and electrical 
services on a regional basis. 

UGI Corporation 
UGI Corporation (NYSE: UGI) is a distributor and marketer of energy prod-
ucts and services including propane, butane, natural gas and electricity. 
We have paid dividends for 123 consecutive years and have increased our 
dividend each year for the past 20 years. UGI is a balanced growth and 
income investment.

For more information about UGI Corporation and its subsidiaries, visit 
www.ugicorp.com.

Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative 
Total Shareholder Return Between 
UGI Corporation, S&P 500 Index and 
S&P Utilities Index
 
UGI’s stock has outperformed the  
S&P 500 index and nearly matched  
the S&P Utilities index over the past 
five years. In 2002, if you had invested 
$100 in UGI Corporation shares 
and reinvested all dividends, as of 
September 30, 2007, it would be worth 
$251. This represents an average 
annual return of more than 20%.

Brian Nefferdorf, UGI HVAC Enterprises Service Technician
David Leeds, UGI Electric Service Lineman First Class
Leena Alex, UGI Corporation Accountant
Charles Hurchalla, UGI Energy Services, Inc. Vice President of National Accounts
Frances Gainey, AmeriGas Customer Relations Representative
Jerry Heid, UGI Penn Natural Gas Assistant Fitter
Nancy Pineiro, UGI Gas Service Customer Service Representative
Helmut Fischer, Flaga Service Technician
Bill Carrington, UGI HVAC Enterprises Industrial Services Technician

Larry Stinson, UGI Utilities Manager of Safety, Compliance and Operations Support
Lisa Hartman, UGI Penn Natural Gas Marketing Assistant and Community Relations Coordinator
Robert Stahler, UGI Gas Service Technician
Kelly Beaver, UGI Energy Services, Inc. Staff Engineer – Assets and Wholesale Services
Raymond Johnson, Jr., AmeriGas ACE/Bulk Driver
Najoua Ben Jemaa, Antargaz Customer Relationship Manager
Steve Bosga, AmeriGas Bobtail Delivery Representative
Olivier Favrel, Antargaz Driver
Lee Hillard, UGI Development Company Operating Engineer

The Foundation of Our Success is strengthened by the 9,500 employees in our business units who serve our 
customers and who ensure that our businesses operate effectively everyday. Pictured on our cover from left to right are:
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Year Ended September 30, 2007 2006 2005

 Income Statement Data (millions, except per share data)

 Revenues $ 5,476.9 $ 5,221.0 $ 4,888.7
 Operating income $ 581.3 $ 467.7 $ 503.0
 Net income $ 204.3 $ 176.2 $ 187.5
 Earnings per common share (diluted) $ 1.89 $ 1.65 $ 1.77

 Common Stock Data

 Shares outstanding (millions)  106.6  105.5  104.8
 Return on average common equity  16.9%  16.8%  20.5%
 Book value per common share $ 12.40 $ 10.42 $ 9.52
 Dividend rate per common share $ 0.74 $ 0.705 $ 0.675
 Market price of common stock
  High $ 29.63 $ 28.64 $ 29.98
  Low $ 22.75 $ 20.21 $ 18.45
  Close $ 25.98 $ 24.45 $ 28.15

 Business Segment Data (millions of dollars)

 Net income (loss)
  AmeriGas Propane $ 53.2 $ 25.1 $ 17.6
  International Propane  44.9  67.1  99.4
  Gas Utility  59.0  38.1  39.3
  Electric Utility  13.7  10.5  11.5
  Energy Services  34.5  31.3  21.7
  Corporate & Other  (1.0)  4.1  (2.0)

  $ 204.3 $ 176.2 $ 187.5

Financial Highlights

2007 Net Income by Business Segment

6% Electric Utility

22% International Propane

17% Energy Services

26% AmeriGas Propane

29% Gas Utility
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The Foundation of Our Success

To Our Shareholders:
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UGI is a company built for long-term 
sustainable performance. As we noted last 
year, we have all the essential ingredients 
for success: clear strategies for each of our 
businesses, strengths in the core com-
petencies critical in our industry and an 
organizational structure that enables us to 
leverage our strengths and meet our goals.

The foundation of our success, how-
ever, is the people who work at UGI. We 
value people who have passion in their 
business lives, who are intent on winning 
and who maintain the highest standards 
of integrity. We are fortunate to have so 
many people at UGI who embody these 
traits. This annual report is dedicated to 
them, and for good reason: without them, 
we would not have the tradition of success 
that we do.

We have never lost sight of our com-
mitment to treat our employees fairly and 
with respect. We have also committed to 
deliver superior long-term value to our 
shareholders. This commitment is embod-
ied in our long-standing financial goals: 
grow our earnings per share between 6% 
and 10% annually, and increase our divi-
dend 4% annually.

During fiscal year 2007, we once 
again achieved our financial goals: our 
reported earnings per share grew 14.5%, 
our earnings per share adjusted for unusual 
one-time items likewise grew 12.0%, and 
we increased our annual dividend 5.0%. 
Our fine performance was recognized by 
several organizations during the year:
• Forbes named UGI to their list of 

“America’s Best Big Companies”;
• Barron’s Dow Jones Business and Fi-

nancial Weekly ranked UGI among its 
500 top-performing large companies;

• Platts named UGI one of the “Top 250 
Global Energy Companies”;

• J.D. Power and Associates ranked UGI 
Utilities, Inc. “Highest in Customer 
Satisfaction with Natural Gas Service 
in the Eastern U.S., Five Years in a 
Row”;

• Public Utilities Fortnightly placed 
UGI on its list of “40 Best Energy 
Companies.”

For several years, we have emphasized 
the fact that UGI has become a more bal-
anced company. We have a balanced mix 
of businesses distributing and marketing 
a diverse combination of fuels – natural 
gas, liquefied petroleum gas and electric-
ity. We also have a balanced geographic 
presence, serving markets across the 
United States and in portions of west-
ern, central and eastern Europe, and our 
geographic reach balances our exposure 
to unusual weather and economic condi-
tions. Similarly, the markets we serve are 
diverse – some with higher growth and 
others with moderate but steady growth. 
In addition, some of the markets we serve 
are regulated and others not. 

Our experience during fiscal year 2007 
is a good illustration of how balance low-
ers risk associated with our performance. 
We faced some tough challenges during 
the year, yet we still achieved our long-
term goals. Fiscal year 2007 was another 
tumultuous year in the energy industry 
with volatile and rising energy prices. 
We also saw new governmental policies 
initiated to reduce global warming. At 
the same time, our European businesses 
experienced record-breaking winter 
warmth.

Our balance enabled us to overcome 
the weather-induced significant shortfall 
in earnings in our European businesses 
by executing our strategies and capital-
izing on opportunities in our domestic 
businesses. As a result, our financial 
performance exceeded our goals.

Our balance also has helped us deliver 
on our goal to provide you with superior 
long-term total return on your invest-
ment. During fiscal year 2007, total 
return to shareholders was 9.2%. Over 
the five-year period ended September 
30, 2007, our earnings per share grew at 

a compounded annual rate of 16.0%, we 
increased our dividend at a compounded 
annual rate of 6.1% and compounded 
annual total return to shareholders was 
20.3%.

We have designed a diversified busi-
ness portfolio to serve as the foundation 
for consistent and reliable growth. The 
best-designed plans alone, however, will 
not assure success. A critical element to 
achieving success is managing in a disci-
plined fashion. Discipline is part of UGI’s 
DNA and we apply it to the strategic, 
operational and financial aspects of our 
businesses. We set and stick with clear 
strategies. We do our homework before 
going to market with new ideas, and we 
sweat the details that determine how well 
we execute.

In 2007, we saw our management 
discipline bear fruit. Set forth below are 
several examples of UGI’s disciplined ap-
proach to value creation and the way we 
manage our businesses:
• At the end of our 2006 fiscal year, we 

acquired PG Energy, now known as 
UGI Penn Natural Gas. We integrated 
this business into our existing gas 
utility with great thought and care. We 
benchmarked best practices from both 
companies in every critical part of 
the business. Where UGI was stron-
ger, we brought those capabilities to 
UGI Penn Natural Gas. Where it was 
stronger, we brought its capabilities 
to UGI. Where opportunities existed 
to combine the best of both compa-
nies, we did so and created a better 
and stronger capability than either 
company could have built on its own. 
The integration process delivered the 
benefits we expected.

• For many years, we have adhered to a 
multi-faceted strategy of growth and 
operational excellence in AmeriGas. 
Record results in fiscal year 2007 
demonstrated the efficacy of this ap-
proach. In contrast to many of its large 



Lon R. Greenberg

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

John L. Walsh

President and Chief Operating Officer

November 27, 2007
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competitors, AmeriGas’ sales volume 
grew during the year. We attribute this 
growth to, among other things, a con-
certed, long-standing effort to change 
the culture of AmeriGas. The culture 
now focuses on providing our cus-
tomers with responsible pricing and 
exemplary service and rewarding our 
employees when they make progress 
in achieving our strategies.

• The energy service businesses con-
ducted by UGI Energy Services made 
significant progress during fiscal year 
2007. Our energy commodity market-
ing operation’s results improved due 
to a focus on profitable customer seg-
mentation and an unwavering focus on 
customer credit quality. Similarly, the 
natural gas peaking supply operation 
benefited from additional investments 
we made in peaking facilities in prior 
years.

Of course, we employ a similar dis-
ciplined approach to all of our business 
units. At times, however, the improve-
ments in performance associated with 
this discipline can be masked by events 
beyond our control. This was the case 
in our international businesses in fiscal 
year 2007, when record-breaking winter 

warmth overwhelmed progress made in 
those businesses.

As we move UGI forward, the founda-
tion of our success will rest squarely 
on the shoulders of our people and, in 
particular, our management team. Getting 
the right people into the right jobs at the 
right time is a responsibility we take seri-
ously. Equally important is the need to 
anticipate leadership capabilities that will 
be required in the future and ensuring that 
people get the coaching and experiences 
they need to be ready.

We are personally involved in career 
planning for high potential develop-
ment candidates at UGI. We review 
their assignments and their strengths and 
weaknesses. We also actively participate 
in succession planning for every organi-
zation at the Company, and we review 
our succession plans with our Board of 
Directors annually.

While our businesses are strong and 
our future prospects bright, we will un-
doubtedly face new challenges in the fu-
ture. As we enter fiscal year 2008, energy 
commodity costs are again on the rise and 
competitive pressure remains intense. We 
also face uncertain economic conditions 
both domestically and internationally. 
Finally, a heightened environmental con-

cern over the use of fossil fuels remains 
front and center on governmental and 
regulatory agendas.

We are taking a proactive approach 
to responding to these challenges. For 
example, we are addressing global warm-
ing issues through a number of initia-
tives designed to make use of renewable 
energy and to reduce carbon emissions. 
Our proactive approach reflects UGI’s 
long-standing tradition of not only 
embracing change, but also capitalizing 
on it. Our ability to do so is a testament 
to the strength of our foundation – the 
nearly 10,000 people of UGI. We are as 
confident as ever that this foundation will 
remain a pillar of strength for us.

We would like to thank our Board of 
Directors for their guidance and support 
in moving UGI forward. Board discus-
sions about our people, our strategies and 
businesses are open and substantive. The 
input and advice we have received from 
our Board is reflected in the success we 
have achieved.

From the beginning, we have operated 
on a simple rule: make the commitments 
you can keep and keep the commitments 
you make. We look forward to continuing 
to deliver on our commitments to you.

Lon R. Greenberg John L. Walsh



In 2007, AmeriGas 
Propane acquired five 
propane businesses with 
45 million gallons in 
annual sales.

Growth
The Foundation of Our Success
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“In my 22 years with the company, I have seen many changes resulting 
from the growth at UGI. There have been changes that improve job 
security for employees and changes that help us to provide better 
service to our customers. When the company grows, everyone benefits.”

Nancy Pineiro, UGI Gas Service Customer Service Representative

UGI Gas Service installed 93 miles of 
natural gas line in 2007 helping us to 
add more than 10,000 new residential 
and commercial customers. We also 
franchised a new service territory in 
Pennsylvania‘s Pike County, one of the 
fastest growing counties in the nation.

We are a distributor and marketer of energy 
products and services with a clear vision, focused 
strategy and explicit financial goals. We have a 
track record of growth: AmeriGas Propane started 
as a three-location distributorship and today is a 
650-location nationwide company. UGI Utilities 
has extended its scale and reach with regular capital 
investments and in 2006 added more than 150,000 
customers with the acquisition of Penn Natural Gas. 
UGI Energy Services is growing by developing 
unregulated energy assets and services that relate 
to our core energy business. By investing in 
international propane distribution through Antargaz 
and Flaga, we expanded geographically and achieved 
a significant level of weather diversification. All 
these efforts have built a successful and diversified 
energy company with a strong customer service ethic 
and a superior shareholder return.

AmeriGas Adds 45 Million Gallons Through 
Acquisitions; Expands Cylinder Exchange 
and Strategic Accounts Programs
AmeriGas is the nation’s largest retail propane 
marketer with operations in 46 states and a 9% share 
of domestic propane volumes. In 2007, we acquired 
five propane distribution businesses, adding 65,000 
customers in seven states. We integrated the majority 
of these new distribution locations into our existing 
operations, increasing customer density and delivery 
efficiency.

The AmeriGas Cylinder Exchange (ACE) program experienced volume growth of nearly 40% 
as a result of adding 1,600 new locations and an 8% increase in same-store sales. ACE cylinders 
are now available at 23,600 home centers, convenience stores and supermarket chain locations. We 
made two acquisitions to expand our cylinder exchange infrastructure, which will support the rapid 
growth of this market program. 

AmeriGas expanded its Strategic Accounts program, which serves high-volume, multi-location 
regional and national propane users. In 2007, we added more than 2,300 new locations and 
diversified our customer mix.

We also continued to focus on growing our base business through focused sales efforts. While 
residential construction slowed, we successfully added motor fuel, commercial/industrial and 
resale customers in 2007.

Antargaz Adds Community Systems and Continues Innovation in Cylinder Exchange
Antargaz is one of the largest distributors of liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) in France. Record-
setting warm winter weather in 2007 reduced volumes and increased competitive pressures. 
Antargaz responded to these challenges with careful cost control and product innovation 
supplemented by creative marketing programs.

In 2007, we brought the benefits of LPG to 26 communities through our “piped network” 
program in which community systems run off a single tank. We also signed an agreement that 
makes Antargaz the first private company in France to distribute natural gas. 

Continued innovation in Antargaz’s cylinder segment differentiates our brand from its 
competitors and helps us maintain market share in the highly competitive French market. In 2007, 
Antargaz expanded availability of its lightweight composite Calypso cylinder, which is now 

available at 5,000 sales outlets. Antargaz also introduced the innovative Elfi+ cylinders. 
These cylinders have a gas-level indicator unique to the marketplace, an innovation that 

distinguishes Antargaz from its small-cylinder competitors. These portable propane and 
butane cylinders are used in various cooking and outdoor recreational applications.
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UGI Energy Services 
invested $18 million to 
build two propane air 
plants used to meet the 
growing peak natural gas 
demand of utilities on 
the coldest days. We now 
have five plants at which 
propane is mixed with 
air, blended with natural 
gas and delivered through 
natural gas pipelines.

Progress
The Foundation of Our Success
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Flaga Expands in Central and Eastern 
Europe and Invests for Future Growth
Our Austrian-based Flaga operation made significant 
progress in reducing costs and investing for growth 
despite record warm winter weather during 2007.

Our joint venture with Progas Germany made us 
a leading central European marketer and distributor 
of LPG known for high service levels and strict 
safety standards. Our merged operations give us 
enhanced purchasing power, strengthen our supply 
relationships and lower our product costs.

We also invested in our joint venture with the 
acquisition of an LPG distributor in Poland. This 
country has the second highest demand growth for 
LPG in Europe and is the second largest LPG auto 
gas market in the world. This acquisition increased 
our customer density and improved our delivery 
efficiency.

In 2007, Flaga established new partnerships with 
prefabricated housing manufacturers. This housing 
sector has been a successful growth segment for 
Flaga in recent years, with 45% of bulk fuel sales 
in Austria used in prefabricated houses. The forklift 
cylinder and autogas segments are also growing in 
some central and eastern European markets. This 
growth is a response to the high cost of gasoline and 
the tax advantages associated with the environmental 
superiority of LPG use.

UGI Utilities Combines with Penn Natural Gas, Installs Mains to
Accommodate Growth and Gains Franchise to Serve New Territory
During 2007, we realized significant benefits combining operations with Penn Natural Gas, which 
expanded our gas utility customer base by 50% and brought more than 350 dedicated employees to 
the UGI family.  

Despite the 2007 slowdown in the new housing construction market, the southern region of our 
gas service territory in Pennsylvania delivered solid growth due to strong residential conversion 
and commercial building markets. The economy and employment in this market outpaced that of 
most of the commonwealth. We installed new mains into areas not previously served by natural gas 
to accommodate growth. A total of 93 miles of gas line were installed in 2007 and we added more 
than 10,000 new residential and commercial customers. In addition, we franchised a new service 
area in Pennsylvania’s Pike County, one of the fastest-growing counties in the nation due to its 
proximity to New York City and northern New Jersey. We will be installing a new pipeline to serve 
a planned 5,000-home development in that area beginning in 2008. 

Our gas utility has partnered with Granger Energy, a landfill gas management company, 
to construct, operate and maintain a nine-mile pipeline to transport methane recovered from 
Pennsylvania’s largest active landfill. The pipeline, to be completed in 2008, will serve industrial 
customers in Lancaster County, Pennsylvania.

We made significant progress with technology initiatives in 2007. Our project to improve 
our field-level asset management system is nearly complete. All maps and key data related to 
our underground facilities are now field accessible through the use of portable computers. This 
technological advance reduces time to complete facilities design and improves service, reliability 
and safety. 

We nearly completed the installation of 140,000 remote transmitters on our gas meters, which 
allows for drive-by readings of meters in our gas system. Automated meter reading improves billing 
accuracy and customer satisfaction. Similar technology, being installed on meters in the northeast 

region of our gas service area and in our electric utility, will be completed by year end 2008. 

“The progress the company has made has given us the opportunity 
to go after accounts we couldn’t have handled as a smaller 
company. We recently got a refrigeration contract for a cold 
storage warehouse worth over $2 million because we now have 
more resources supporting us.”

Bill Carrington, UGI HVAC Enterprises Industrial Service Technician

Flaga has become a leading distributor 
of LPG in central Europe. We are 
building on this strength through our 
joint venture with Progas Germany.
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In 2007, Antargaz used 
its call center to launch a 
customer loyalty program. 
Account managers are 
trained to recognize 
dissatisfaction and are 
empowered to resolve 
issues to improve customer 
satisfaction. It is estimated 
that more than 1,000 
customers were retained 
this year due to this 
initiative.

Service
The Foundation of Our Success
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UGI Energy Services’ Diverse 
Energy Portfolio Expands 
UGI Energy Services is one of the fastest-growing 
segments of our company. It has three major lines of 
business, including energy marketing to commercial 
and industrial customers, mid-stream asset 
management and electricity generation.

Energy Marketing. Energy Services is one of the 
largest energy marketers on the East Coast, selling 
natural gas, electricity, fuel oil and propane to 
approximately 11,000 commercial and industrial 
sites on 33 utility systems in nine states. In 2007, 
the company shifted its focus to smaller commercial 
customers who previously relied on their local utility 
for their energy needs. 

Mid-Stream Assets. We continue to develop a 
portfolio of assets that supports our energy marketing 
lines of business. In 2007, we built two propane 
air plants, which expanded our overall peaking 
capacity by 30%. Our peaking plants now include 
five propane air plants and a liquefied natural gas 
plant. These plants offer utilities a more economical, 
flexible and timely alternative to traditional pipeline 
service when they need to secure supplies during 
periods of peak demand. We also manage pipeline 
capacity and storage contracts for utilities, and 
we own and operate a propane import terminal in 
Chesapeake, Virginia.

Electric Generation and Marketing. We own nearly 150 megawatts of base load, coal-fired 
generation and we sell a majority of this power to wholesale customers in the northeast United 
States. We also use this generation to support our electricity marketing efforts in Maryland, 
Delaware and New Jersey, in much the same way as we use natural gas mid-stream assets to 
support our gas marketing business. We are pursuing renewable and clean fuels for new generation 
capacity to add to our portfolio. As more electric utilities in our marketing footprint emerge from 
their rate caps over the next two years, we expect to expand our power marketing coverage and 
capitalize on our existing gas retail presence in the region. 

HVAC Business Grows Earnings and Repositions for Growth
In 2007, our heating, ventilating and air conditioning business produced stronger earnings and is 
positioned for future growth within our footprint. Our size and the strong recognition of the UGI 
name, combined with our engineering and design capabilities, enable us to serve a wide range of 
customer needs, including large-scale and specialized commercial work. 

The foundation of our success is based on our employees providing outstanding customer 
service. In a time of rising energy costs, we must deliver high-value products and services to our 
customers at the lowest cost. In our culture of continuous improvement, we constantly set new and 
higher performance expectations for ourselves. 

UGI’s Gas Utilities Ranked Highest in Customer Satisfaction for 5th Consecutive Year
For the fifth consecutive year, our gas utility ranks highest in customer satisfaction among 
natural gas utilities in the eastern United States, according to a survey conducted by J.D. Power 
and Associates. UGI’s consecutive track record of awards in this customer satisfaction study is 
unmatched by any other gas utility in the country. The 2007 award incorporates responses from our 

newest customers at UGI Penn Natural Gas. 

“Good service and good communication with the customer are 
important to the company. We are here to answer customers’ 
questions and to give them peace of mind.” 

Steve Bosga, AmeriGas Bobtail Delivery Representative

UGI Gas Service extends natural gas 
pipelines into new geographic areas in 
order to meet customers’ preference 
for natural gas. Our service employees 
hook up thousands of new homes to 
gas service every year.
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In 2007, as part of our 
commitment to safety, 
AmeriGas Propane 
trained 57 employees as 
Market Safety Advisors.

Safety
The Foundation of Our Success
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Safety is an ongoing commitment. 
Even after winning several awards for 
safety performance in 2007, our Gas 
Utility continues to invest in additional 
safety equipment and training to 
maintain and improve our performance.

96% Satisfaction Rating  
Among Customers at AmeriGas
All of our business units emphasize responsive and 
reliable service. AmeriGas measures its effectiveness 
in these areas and created a customer service index 
by which employees are rewarded for a job well 
done. We continually re-evaluate our technology and 
operating methods to ensure outstanding customer 
service at cost-effective rates.

International LPG Service Initiatives  
Focus on Customer Loyalty
Flaga differentiated itself in a crowded marketplace 
of low-cost, low-service providers by implementing 
an all-inclusive package for bulk delivery customers 
in Austria. Our “BestComfort” contracts provide 
high-service levels and convenient payment plans 
that reinforce our image as a reliable, long-term 
energy partner.

In 2007, Antargaz implemented a program 
to increase customer loyalty. We are improving 
customer satisfaction through stronger, proactive, 
direct communication with our customers. These 
customer-focused enhancements enable us to 
respond quickly to government incentives and to 
offer attractive pricing on the installation of energy 
efficient heating systems.

We believe that improvements in safety result in positive employee morale, lower expenses 
and better customer service. These factors give us a competitive marketplace advantage. We invest 
in protective safety equipment on our vehicles and in our facilities, and we measure and reward 
safe behavior by our employees.

AmeriGas Aims for World-Class Safety Performance
We benchmark our safety performance records against comparable global safety leaders. Our 
strategy to achieve our safety goals ranges from improving the skills of our drivers to ensuring  
the availability and use of personal protective equipment.

In 2007, we trained 57 field employees as Market Safety Advisors. They coordinate safety 
initiatives at the local market level, which improve safety awareness and reduce incidents. 
Over the next three years, we will extend this training to include all local managers. We also 
commissioned the design of a web-based reporting system called PerformTrax. This system will 
enable us to more effectively track and respond to certain types of safety-related incidents and 
provide the ability to develop targeted training and prevention strategies. 

Our nationwide 24-hour Emergency Call Center responds to customers’ safety concerns. 
The Call Center has received and responded to calls from our competitors’ customers when 
their propane suppliers were unavailable. Our commitment to safety and our improved safety 
performance help us to gain and retain customers and to lower our insurance costs.

During 2007, our combined efforts led to a decrease in both employee injuries and responsible 
vehicle incidents. Since 2000, we have reduced by 50% incidents that lead to lost workdays.

“Safety is a constant priority and is as much of a focus in 
my daily routine as customer service and marketing. Paying 
attention to safety reassures the customer and strengthens 
the company’s image.”

Olivier Favrel, Antargaz Driver 
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In addition to taking 
advantage of safety, 
technical and educational 
offerings in the market-
place, we develop our 
own programs to meet 
our specific business 
objectives. Our “UGI 
University” is designed 
to develop in our future 
leaders the skills and 
knowledge needed for 
success at the executive 
level of our businesses.

Development

UGI Utilities Receives Industry Safety Awards; Strives for Zero Incidents
In 2007, our Utilities received several industry safety awards. Our gas utility earned the Industry 
Leader Accident Prevention Certificate from the American Gas Association. It achieved a total 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) rate of employee injuries and illnesses 
below the industry average in the category for large-size local distribution companies. Penn Natural 
Gas received the 2007 Safety Improvement Award from the Energy Association of Pennsylvania for 
exceptional reduction – nearly 30% – in OSHA-recordable injuries. 

Despite above-industry-average safety performance, we strive for continuous improvement. We 
formed a utility-wide Safety Task Force that uses external benchmarking and issues guidance for 
safety incentives, training programs, equipment and incident investigation.

UGI HVAC Business Builds a Safety Culture
Rapid growth in our HVAC business requires a culture based on safety. We study the causes of safety 
incidents, require personal protective equipment and support employee awareness. Our drivers take 
nationally recognized safe driver-training courses and all supervisory personnel receive training in 
all aspects of safety covered by OSHA. These proactive efforts have paid off. In 2007, our OSHA-
recordable incidents decreased by 34% and lost-time injuries were below the industry rate.

Growth, Progress, Service and Safety Make UGI an Attractive Investment
Through the hard work of our employees, we have built a diversified company with a strong customer 
service ethic and safety culture. We have a tradition of continuous improvement and growing the 
business to benefit our shareholders. We have a 125-year track record of performance that makes us a 
financially attractive company in which to invest.

The Foundation of Our Success
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Business Overview
UGI Corporation (“UGI”) is a holding company that, through
subsidiaries and joint-venture affiliates, distributes and markets
energy products and related services. We are a domestic and
international distributor of propane and butane which are lique-
fied petroleum gases (“LPG”); a provider of natural gas and
electric service through regulated local distribution utilities; a
generator of electricity through our ownership interests in elec-
tric generation facilities; a regional marketer of energy com-
modities; and a regional provider of heating, air conditioning,
refrigeration and electrical services.

We conduct a national propane distribution business through
AmeriGas Partners, L.P. (“AmeriGas Partners”) and its principal
operating subsidiaries AmeriGas Propane, L.P. and AmeriGas
Eagle Propane, L.P. At September 30, 2007, UGI, through its
wholly owned second-tier subsidiary AmeriGas Propane, Inc.
(the “General Partner”), held an approximate 44% effective
interest in AmeriGas Partners. We refer to AmeriGas Partners
and its subsidiaries together as “the Partnership” and the
General Partner and its subsidiaries, including the Partnership,
as “AmeriGas Propane.”

Our wholly owned subsidiary UGI Enterprises, Inc.
(“Enterprises”) through subsidiaries (1) conducts an LPG distribu-
tion business in France; (2) conducts LPG distribution businesses
and participates in an LPG joint-venture business in central and
eastern Europe (collectively, “Flaga”); and (3) participates in an
LPG joint-venture business in the Nantong region of China. Our
LPG distribution business in France is conducted through
Antargaz, an operating subsidiary of AGZ Holding (“AGZ”), and its
operating subsidiaries (collectively, “Antargaz”). We refer to our
foreign operations collectively as “International Propane.”

Our natural gas and electric distribution utility businesses are
conducted through UGI Utilities, Inc. and its subsidiary, UGI
Penn Natural Gas, Inc. (“UGIPNG”). The term “UGI Utilities” is
used herein as an abbreviated reference to UGI Utilities, Inc., 
or UGI Utilities, Inc. and its subsidiaries collectively, including
UGIPNG. UGI Utilities owns and operates (1) natural gas distribution
utilities in eastern and northeastern Pennsylvania (“UGI Gas”
and “PNG Gas,” respectively) and (2) an electric distribution utili-
ty in northeastern Pennsylvania (“Electric Utility”). UGI Gas and
PNG Gas are collectively referred to herein as “Gas Utility.” On
August 24, 2006, UGI Utilities, Inc., through UGIPNG, acquired
the natural gas utility business of PG Energy, an operating divi-
sion of Southern Union Company (the “PG Energy Acquisition”).
The acquired natural gas distribution business now comprises
PNG Gas. Gas Utility and Electric Utility are subject to regulation
by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (“PUC”).

Through other subsidiaries, Enterprises also conducts an ener-
gy marketing business primarily in the eastern United States (col-
lectively, “Energy Services”). Energy Services’ wholly owned sub-
sidiary UGI Development Company (“UGID”) owns and operates
a 48-megawatt coal-fired electric generation station located in
northeastern Pennsylvania and owns an approximate 6% interest
in a 1,711-megawatt coal-fired electric generation station located in
western Pennsylvania. In addition, Energy Services’ wholly owned
subsidiary UGI Asset Management, Inc., through its subsidiary
Atlantic Energy, Inc. (collectively, “Asset Management”), owns a
propane storage terminal located in Chesapeake, Virginia. Energy

Services also owns and operates a natural gas liquefaction, stor-
age and vaporization facility, and propane storage and propane-air
mixing assets. Through other Enterprises’ and UGI Utilities’ sub-
sidiaries, we own and operate heating, ventilation, air-conditioning,
refrigeration and electrical contracting services businesses in the
Middle Atlantic states (“HVAC/R”).

This financial review should be read in conjunction with our
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements including the reportable segment informa-
tion included in Note 16.

Executive Overview
Our financial results over the three fiscal years ended
September 30, 2007 reflect the benefits of our commitment to
grow through acquisitions as well as our continued focus on
executing our strategies in our business units. Our financial
results for the year ended September 30, 2007 (“fiscal 2007”)
reflect the full-year effects of two significant transactions com-
pleted during fiscal 2006. Those two transactions include the
August 2006 $567 million acquisition of PG Energy and the
February 2006 formation of our joint venture, Zentraleuropa LPG
Holding GmbH (“ZLH”), to distribute LPG in Eastern Europe.
Fiscal 2007 financial results reflect better financial performance
from our domestic businesses, including the full-year results of
PNG Gas, greater income contributions from AmeriGas Propane
and Energy Services, and higher net income from Electric
Utility. Even though fiscal 2007 weather in our domestic service
territories was colder than fiscal 2006, it remained warmer than
normal. Despite the improved operating performance from our
domestic businesses in fiscal 2007, the effects of record-setting
warm temperatures in our European International Propane serv-
ice territories resulted in significantly lower International
Propane results. Similar to our domestic operations, heating-
season temperatures in our International Propane service terri-
tories have a significant influence on operating performance. In
our European LPG markets, the combination of the significantly
warmer than normal weather and historically high and volatile
commodity prices resulted in lower customer consumption and
increased competitive pressures from other LPG distributors
and alternative fuels.

Although weather in our domestic service territories was
generally colder than in the prior year, the warmer than normal
weather reduced our expected heating-related sales volumes
and the full earnings benefits from the PG Energy Acquisition.
However, the negative sales impact from the warmer than nor-
mal weather was offset by the effect on net income of the
Partnership’s July 2007 sale of its Arizona LPG storage facility,
higher average AmeriGas Propane unit margins and higher unit
margins from Energy Services’ natural gas marketing business.
Energy Services’ improved performance in fiscal 2007 also
reflects greater income from storage management and peaking
supply services, and more profitable utilization of energy com-
modity storage assets. Electric Utility’s fiscal 2007 results were
higher, notwithstanding greater per-unit purchased power costs,
due in large part to the implementation of higher Provider of
Last Resort (“POLR”) rates effective January 1, 2007. Although
total interest expense was higher in fiscal 2007 primarily due to
acquisition-related debt associated with the PG Energy
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Acquisition, our total interest expense benefited from the full-
year effects of AmeriGas Partners’ and to a lesser extent,
Antargaz’ debt refinancings, completed during the first half of
fiscal 2006. Our fiscal 2007 effective income tax rate was high-
er than in fiscal 2006 principally because fiscal 2006’s effective
tax rate reflected management’s lower estimate of taxes to be
paid associated with planned repatriation of foreign earnings.

As in prior years, fiscal 2008 financial results will be signifi-
cantly influenced by heating-season temperatures in our domes-
tic and international service territories, the effects of commodi-
ty prices on customer consumption of our products and compe-
tition in the markets we serve. In order to continue our strategy
of growing our businesses in markets in which we have core
competencies, we expect to continue to pursue growth through
acquisitions, extend our presence in the markets we serve with
new and innovative products and services, and control our oper-
ating costs throughout the organization.

Results of Operations
The following analyses compare the Company’s results of oper-
ations for (1) fiscal 2007 with fiscal 2006 and (2) fiscal 2006
with the year ended September 30, 2005 (“fiscal 2005”).

Fiscal 2007 Compared with Fiscal 2006
Consolidated Results 

Variance–
Favorable

2007 2006 (Unfavorable)
% of Total % of Total

Net Net Net Net Net
Income Income Income Income Income % Change

(Millions of dollars)

AmeriGas Propane $ 53.2 26.0% $ 25.1 14.2% $ 28.1 112.0%
International Propane 44.9 22.0% 67.1 38.1% (22.2) (33.1)%
Gas Utility 59.0 28.9% 38.1 21.6% 20.9 54.9%
Electric Utility 13.7 6.7% 10.5 6.0% 3.2 30.5%
Energy Services 34.5 16.9% 31.3 17.8% 3.2 10.2%
Corporate & Other (1.0) (0.5)% 4.1 2.3% (5.1) N.M.

Total $204.3 100.0% $176.2 100.0% $ 28.1 15.9%

N.M. – Variance is not meaningful.

Highlights – Fiscal 2007 versus Fiscal 2006
• The full-year benefit of the PG Energy Acquisition com-

pleted in August 2006 increased fiscal 2007 net income
from our Gas Utility.

• AmeriGas Propane operating income benefited from a
$46.1 million gain on the sale of its Arizona LPG storage
facility adding $12.5 million to UGI net income.

• Our European International Propane operations experi-
enced record-setting warm temperatures which reduced
volumes and margin and increased competitive pressures
in the markets they serve.

• Greater average unit margins and sales volumes from
AmeriGas Propane and Energy Services increased domes-
tic operations’ results in fiscal 2007.

• New POLR rates effective January 2007 increased earn-
ings from our Electric Utility.

• Our effective income tax rate in fiscal 2007 was higher
than in fiscal 2006 as the fiscal 2006 effective tax rate
reflected management’s lower estimate of taxes to be paid
associated with planned repatriation of foreign earnings.

• Absence of losses recorded in fiscal 2006 associated with
debt extinguishments were offset by the absence of the
gain recorded in fiscal 2006 from the sale of our invest-
ment in Hunlock Creek Energy Ventures.

AmeriGas Propane: 2007 2006 Increase

(Millions of dollars)

Revenues $2,277.4 $2,119.3 $158.1 7.5%
Total margin (a) $ 840.2 $ 775.5 $ 64.7 8.3%
Partnership EBITDA (b) $ 338.7 $ 237.9 $100.8 42.4%
Operating income $ 265.8 $ 184.1 $ 81.7 44.4%
Retail gallons sold (millions) 1,006.7 975.2 31.5 3.2%
Degree days – % warmer

than normal (c) 6.5% 10.2% – –

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less total cost of sales.

(b) Partnership EBITDA (earnings before interest expense, income taxes and depreciation
and amortization) should not be considered as an alternative to net income (as an indi-
cator of operating performance) or as an alternative to cash flow (as a measure of liq-
uidity or ability to service debt obligations) and is not a measure of performance or
financial condition under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. Management uses Partnership EBITDA as the primary measure of segment
profitability for the AmeriGas Propane reportable segment (see Note 16 to Consolidated
Financial Statements). 

(c) Deviation from average heating degree days for the 30-year period 1971-2000 based
upon national weather statistics provided by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric
Administration (“NOAA”) for 335 airports in the United States, excluding Alaska.

Temperatures in the Partnership’s service territories based
upon heating degree days during fiscal 2007 were 6.5%
warmer than normal compared with temperatures that were
10.2% warmer than normal during fiscal 2006. Retail propane
volumes sold increased approximately 3.2% reflecting greater
demand attributable to the colder weather and the effects of
higher sales in our AmeriGas Cylinder Exchange program.

Retail propane revenues increased $142.5 million reflecting an
$83.8 million increase due to higher average selling prices and
$58.7 million due to the higher volumes sold. Wholesale propane
revenues decreased slightly reflecting a $2.6 million decrease due
to lower volumes sold largely offset by a $2.5 million increase due
to higher average selling prices. In fiscal 2007, our average retail
propane product cost per retail gallon sold was approximately 4%
higher than in fiscal 2006 resulting in higher year-over-year prices
to our customers. Total cost of sales increased to $1,437.2 million
in fiscal 2007 from $1,343.8 million in fiscal 2006 primarily reflect-
ing the increase in propane product costs and the increased vol-
umes sold. Total margin increased $64.7 million principally due to
the higher volumes, higher average retail propane margins per gal-
lon and increased fee income in response to increases in operat-
ing and administrative expenses.

Partnership EBITDA during fiscal 2007 increased $100.8 mil-
lion as a result of the previously mentioned increase in total mar-
gin, a $46.1 million gain from the sale of the Partnership’s storage
facility in Arizona, and the absence of a $17.1 million loss on early
extinguishments of debt recorded in fiscal 2006 partially offset by
a $27.2 million increase in operating and administrative expenses.
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The $17.1 million loss on early extinguishments of debt incurred
during fiscal 2006 was associated with the refinancings of
AmeriGas Propane, L.P.‘s (“AmeriGas OLP’s”) Series A and Series
C First Mortgage Notes totaling $228.8 million, and AmeriGas
Partners’ 10% Senior Notes totaling $59.6 million, with $350 mil-
lion of 7.125% AmeriGas Partners’ Senior Notes due 2016. The
Partnership also used a portion of the proceeds from the
issuance of the 7.125% Senior Notes to repay AmeriGas OLP’s
$35 million term loan. The increase in fiscal 2007 operating and
administrative expenses principally resulted from higher (1)
employee compensation and benefits, (2) vehicle costs and (3)
maintenance and repair expenses. Both fiscal 2007 and 2006
benefited from favorable expense reductions related to general
insurance primarily reflecting improved claims experience.

Operating income increased $81.7 million mainly reflecting the
previously mentioned $64.7 million increase in Partnership margin
and the $46.1 million gain from the sale of the Partnership’s stor-
age facility in Arizona partially offset by the increase in operating
and administrative expenses and depreciation expense.

International Propane: 2007 2006 Decrease

(Millions of dollars)

Revenues $ 800.4 $945.5 $(145.1) (15.3)%
Total margin (a) $ 411.8 $428.3 $ (16.5) (3.9)%
Operating income $ 94.5 $119.3 $ (24.8) (20.8)%
Income before income taxes $ 64.1 $ 93.9 $ (29.8) (31.7)%

(Millions of euros)

Revenues € 602.4 €776.5 €(174.1) (22.4)%
Total margin (a) € 309.8 €350.5 € (40.7) (11.6)%
Operating income € 73.3 € 99.9 € (26.6) (26.6)%
Income before income taxes € 51.4 € 79.8 € (28.4) (35.6)%

Antargaz retail gallons sold (millions) 269.1 315.2 (46.1) (14.6)%
Degree days – % warmer 

than normal – Antargaz (b) 21.1% 3.6% – –

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less total cost of sales.

(b) Deviation from average heating degree days for the 30-year period 1971-2000 at 34
locations in our French service territory.

Based upon heating degree day data, temperatures in Antargaz’
service territory were approximately 21% warmer than normal in
fiscal 2007 compared to temperatures that were approximately
3.6% warmer than normal in fiscal 2006. Flaga experienced similar
record-setting warm weather across its service territories during
fiscal 2007. Antargaz’ retail LPG volumes sold decreased to 269.1
million gallons in fiscal 2007 from 315.2 million gallons in fiscal
2006. The decrease in Antargaz retail volumes sold occurred across
all of Antargaz’ customer classes and was in large part the result of
significantly warmer weather and, to a lesser extent, customer
conservation and increased competitive pressures from other LPG
marketers and alternate fuels. Flaga’s volumes declined largely
reflecting the absence of volumes from its previously consolidated
Czech Republic and Slovakia businesses which were contributed to
ZLH in February 2006. Flaga’s 50% ownership interest in ZLH has
been accounted for under the equity method since its formation in
February 2006. International base-currency results are translated
into U.S. dollars based upon exchange rates experienced during the
reporting periods. During fiscal 2007, the monthly average currency

translation rate was $1.34 per euro compared to a rate of $1.23 per
euro during fiscal 2006.

International Propane euro-based revenues decreased €174.1
million during fiscal 2007 primarily reflecting (1) a decline of
approximately €90.8 million principally due to Antargaz’ lower
retail volumes sold at slightly lower average prices, (2) approxi-
mately €46.7 million in lower revenues from Antargaz’ low-mar-
gin wholesale sales, (3) the absence of revenues from Flaga’s
Czech Republic and Slovakia businesses subsequent to the for-
mation of ZLH in February 2006 and lower revenues from
Flaga’s wholly owned Austrian business, and (4) lower ancillary
sales and services. International Propane’s total cost of sales
decreased to €388.6 million in fiscal 2007 from €517.2 million in
fiscal 2006 largely reflecting the effects of the lower retail vol-
umes sold, LPG product costs that were lower than in fiscal
2006 and the decline in low-margin wholesale sales. Although
LPG product costs were lower in fiscal 2007 than in fiscal 2006,
they were volatile and remained at historically high levels.

Total margin decreased €40.7 million or 11.6% in fiscal 2007
largely reflecting (1) the lower retail volumes sold partially offset
by higher average margins per retail gallon and (2) lower margin
from ancillary sales and services. In U.S. dollars, total margin
declined a less dramatic 3.9% reflecting the effects of the
stronger euro versus the U.S. dollar during fiscal 2007.

International Propane operating income declined €26.6 million
in fiscal 2007 principally reflecting the lower total margin partially
offset by a €10.7 million decrease in operating and administrative
expenses. The decrease in operating and administrative expenses
is largely the result of decreases in Antargaz’ employee compen-
sation and benefits expenses and vehicle costs and decreases in
Flaga’s expenses due in large part to the absence of expenses
from the businesses contributed to ZLH in February 2006 and
thus subsequently reflected on the equity method.

The decrease in International Propane income before income
taxes principally reflects the previously described decrease in
operating income as slightly lower base-currency interest
expense and the absence of a loss on extinguishment of debt
recorded in fiscal 2006 were largely offset by changes in minori-
ty interest. The decrease in interest expense is attributable to
interest savings as a result of our refinancings which are dis-
cussed further in Financial Condition and Liquidity. The changes
in minority interest reflect the minority interest holder’s share of
costs associated with the shut-down of one of Antargaz’ majori-
ty-owned filling centers in fiscal 2006.

Gas Utility: 2007 2006 Increase

(Millions of dollars)

Revenues $1,044.9 $724.0 $320.9 44.3%
Total margin (a) $ 303.4 $201.1 $102.3 50.9%
Operating income $ 136.6 $ 84.2 $ 52.4 62.2%
Income before income taxes $ 96.7 $ 62.4 $ 34.3 55.0%
System throughput - 

billions of cubic feet (“bcf”) 131.8 82.6 49.2 59.6%
Degree days – % warmer 

than normal (b) 4.7% 8.7% – –

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less total cost of sales.

(b) Deviation from average heating degree days for the 30-year period 1975-2004 based
upon weather statistics provided by NOAA for airports located within Gas Utility’s
 service territory. 
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Temperatures in Gas Utility’s service territory based upon
heating degree days were 4.7% warmer than normal in fiscal
2007 compared with temperatures that were 8.7% warmer
than normal in fiscal 2006. Total distribution system throughput
increased 49.2 bcf reflecting a 43.4 bcf increase from the full-
year results of PNG Gas and greater UGI Gas distribution sys-
tem throughput. The greater UGI Gas distribution system
throughput primarily reflects (1) greater interruptible delivery
service throughput and (2) increased sales to firm- residential,
commercial and industrial (“retail core-market”) customers as a
result of the colder fiscal 2007 weather and year-over-year
growth in the number of UGI Gas customers.

Gas Utility revenues increased $320.9 million during fiscal
2007 principally reflecting $308.9 million of incremental rev-
enues attributable to the full year results of PNG Gas and a
$37.5 million increase in UGI Gas revenues from greater low-
margin off-system sales. These increases were partially offset
by a $30.7 million decrease in revenues from UGI Gas’ retail
core-market customers as a result of lower average PGC rates.
Increases or decreases in retail core-market customer revenues
and cost of sales principally result from changes in retail core-
market volumes and the level of gas costs collected through
the PGC recovery mechanism. Under the PGC recovery mecha-
nism, Gas Utility records the cost of gas associated with sales
to retail core-market customers at amounts included in PGC
rates. The difference between actual gas costs and the amount
included in rates is deferred on the balance sheet as a regulato-
ry asset or liability and represents amounts to be collected from
or refunded to customers in a future period. As a result of this
PGC recovery mechanism, increases or decreases in the cost of
gas associated with retail core-market customers have no direct
effect on retail core-market margin. Gas Utility’s cost of gas was
$741.5 million in fiscal 2007 compared to $522.9 million in fiscal
2006 largely reflecting the effects of the full-year results of PNG
Gas and greater cost of gas associated with the higher UGI Gas
off-system sales partially offset by the effects of the previously
mentioned lower average UGI Gas PGC rates.

Gas Utility total margin in fiscal 2007 increased $102.3 mil-
lion primarily reflecting $93.0 million of incremental margin from
the full-year results of PNG Gas and a $9.3 million increase in
UGI Gas’ total margin. The increase in UGI Gas’ total margin in
fiscal 2007 principally reflects greater margin from retail core-
market customers on higher volumes and higher average inter-
ruptible delivery service unit margins reflecting higher natural
gas versus oil price spreads.

Gas Utility operating income increased to $136.6 million in fis-
cal 2007 from $84.2 million in fiscal 2006 principally reflecting the
previously mentioned increase in total margin and slightly higher
other income partially offset by a $39.5 million increase in operat-
ing and administrative expenses and $14.1 million higher depreci-
ation and amortization expense. The increase in total operating
and administrative expenses and depreciation and amortization
expense principally reflects the full-year results of PNG Gas.

The increase in Gas Utility income before income taxes
reflects the higher operating income partially offset by an
increase of $18.1 million in interest expense. The increase in
interest expense is principally due to higher long- and short-term
debt outstanding, primarily as a result of the PG Energy
Acquisition, and higher short-term interest rates.

Electric Utility: 2007 2006 Increase

(Millions of dollars)

Revenues $121.9 $98.0 $23.9 24.4%
Total margin (a) $ 47.3 $41.7 $ 5.6 13.4%
Operating income $ 26.0 $20.7 $ 5.3 25.6%
Income before income taxes $ 23.6 $18.2 $ 5.4 29.7%
Distribution sales – millions of 

kilowatt hours (“gwh”) 1,010.6 1,005.0 5.6 0.6%

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less total cost of sales and revenue-related
taxes, i.e. gross receipts taxes of $6.8 million and $5.3 million in fiscal 2007 and fiscal
2006, respectively. For financial statement purposes, revenue-related taxes are included
in “Utility taxes other than income taxes” on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Electric Utility’s fiscal 2007 kilowatt-hour sales were approxi-
mately equal to those of fiscal 2006. Electric Utility revenues
increased $23.9 million in fiscal 2007 largely reflecting the effects
of higher POLR rates. In accordance with the terms of our June
2006 POLR Settlement, Electric Utility increased its POLR rates
effective January 1, 2007. This increase raised the average cost to
residential customers by approximately 35% over costs in effect
during calendar year 2006. Electric Utility’s cost of sales
increased to $67.8 million in fiscal 2007 from $51.0 million in fiscal
2006 principally reflecting higher per unit purchased power costs.

Electric Utility total margin increased $5.6 million during fiscal
2007 principally reflecting the effects of the higher POLR rates
partially offset by the higher per-unit purchased power costs.

The increase in fiscal 2007 Electric Utility operating income
and income before income taxes principally reflects the increase
in total margin partially offset by slightly higher operating and
administrative expenses.

Increase
Energy Services: 2007 2006 (Decrease)

(Millions of dollars)

Revenues $1,336.1 $1,414.3 $(78.2) (5.5)%
Total margin (a) $ 100.9 $ 86.1 $ 14.8 17.2%
Operating income $ 57.4 $ 53.1 $ 4.3 8.1%
Income before income taxes $ 57.4 $ 53.1 $ 4.3 8.1%

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less total cost of sales.

Notwithstanding the effects of a 4% increase in natural gas
volumes sold and higher electric generation kilowatt-hour sales,
Energy Services revenues decreased to $1,336.1 million in fis-
cal 2007 from $1,414.3 million in fiscal 2006 principally reflect-
ing the revenue effects of lower natural gas prices.

Total margin increased to $100.9 million in fiscal 2007 from
$86.1 million in fiscal 2006. The increase in total margin is prima-
rily attributable to higher natural gas unit margins, the previously
mentioned increase in natural gas volumes sold, and improved
results from storage management and peaking supply services.

The increase in Energy Services operating income and income
before income taxes principally reflects the increase in total mar-
gin largely offset by the absence of a $9.1 million pre-tax gain on
the sale of Energy Ventures recorded in fiscal 2006 and increased
operating and administrative expenses due in part to the full-year
consolidation of the Hunlock Creek Electric Generation station
acquired as a result of the sale of Energy Ventures in March 2006
and greater compensation and benefits costs.
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Interest Expense and Income Taxes. Consolidated interest
expense increased to $139.6 million in fiscal 2007 from $123.6
million in fiscal 2006 principally due to higher interest expense
associated with the PG Energy Acquisition debt partially offset
by the full-year benefits of AmeriGas Partners debt refinancing in
fiscal 2006. Our effective income tax rate in fiscal 2007 was
higher than in fiscal 2006 as the fiscal 2006 effective tax rate
reflected management’s lower estimate of taxes to be paid
associated with planned repatriation of foreign earnings.

Fiscal 2006 Compared with Fiscal 2005
Consolidated Results 

Variance–
Favorable

2006 2005 (Unfavorable)
% of Total % of Total

Net Net Net Net Net
Income Income Income Income Income % Change

(Millions of dollars)

AmeriGas Propane $ 25.1 14.2% $ 17.6 9.4% $ 7.5 42.6%
International Propane 67.1 38.1% 99.4 53.0% (32.3) (32.5)%
Gas Utility 38.1 21.6% 39.3 21.0% (1.2) (3.1)%
Electric Utility 10.5 6.0% 11.5 6.1% (1.0) (8.7)%
Energy Services 31.3 17.8% 21.7 11.6% 9.6 44.2%
Corporate & Other 4.1 2.3% (2.0) (1.1)% 6.1 N.M.

Total $176.2 100.0% $187.5 100.0% $(11.3) (6.0)%

N.M. – Variance is not meaningful.

Highlights – Fiscal 2006 versus Fiscal 2005
• A decline in International Propane results as Antargaz

experienced more normal unit margins in fiscal 2006 from
unusually high unit margins in fiscal 2005. Fiscal 2005
Antargaz results also benefited from the reversal of cer-
tain non-income tax reserves.

• Results in fiscal 2006 reflect warmer heating-season weath-
er in our AmeriGas Propane and Gas Utility service territo-
ries and the effects of price-induced customer conservation.

• Energy Services’ fiscal 2006 results benefited from
greater unit margins, greater services income and a gain
from the sale of its joint-venture interest in Hunlock Creek
Energy Ventures.

• UGI Utilities completed the acquisition of PG Energy on
August 24, 2006 and International Propane expanded its
presence in central and eastern Europe through its 50%
interest in Zentraleuropa LPG Holding GmbH (“ZLH”).

• The Company recorded lower losses in fiscal 2006 from
early extinguishments of debt.

• Our effective income tax rate in fiscal 2006 was lower than
in fiscal 2005 as the fiscal 2006 effective tax rate reflected
management’s lower estimate of taxes to be paid associat-
ed with planned repatriation of foreign earnings.

Increase
AmeriGas Propane: 2006 2005 (Decrease)

(Millions of dollars)

Revenues $2,119.3 $1,963.3 $156.0 7.9%
Total margin (a) $ 775.5 $ 743.3 $ 32.2 4.3%
Partnership EBITDA (b) $ 237.9 $ 215.9 $ 22.0 10.2%
Operating income $ 184.1 $ 168.1 $ 16.0 9.5%
Retail gallons sold (millions) 975.2 1,034.9 (59.7) (5.8)%
Degree days – % warmer

than normal (c) 10.2% 6.9% – –

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less total cost of sales.

(b) Partnership EBITDA (earnings before interest expense, income taxes and depreciation and
amortization) should not be considered as an alternative to net income (as an indicator of oper-
ating performance) or as an alternative to cash flow (as a measure of liquidity or ability to serv-
ice debt obligations) and is not a measure of performance or financial condition under account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Management uses
Partnership EBITDA as the primary measure of segment profitability for the AmeriGas Propane
reportable segment (see Note 16 to Consolidated Financial Statements). 

(c) Deviation from average heating degree days for the 30-year period 1971-2000 based
upon national weather statistics provided by NOAA for 335 airports in the United
States, excluding Alaska.

Temperatures in AmeriGas Propane’s service territories based
upon heating degree days during fiscal 2006 were 10.2%
warmer than normal compared with temperatures that were
6.9% warmer than normal during fiscal 2005. Retail propane vol-
umes sold decreased approximately 5.8% principally due to the
warmer winter weather and the negative effects of customer
conservation driven by continued high propane selling prices.

Retail propane revenues increased $136.8 million reflecting a
$233.8 million increase due to higher average selling prices par-
tially offset by a $97.0 million decrease due to the lower retail
volumes sold. Wholesale propane revenues decreased $2.8 mil-
lion reflecting a $27.4 million decrease due to lower volumes
sold largely offset by a $24.6 million increase due to higher
average selling prices. In fiscal 2006, our average retail propane
product cost per retail gallon sold was approximately 18% high-
er than in fiscal 2005 resulting in higher year-over-year prices to
our customers. The average wholesale cost per gallon of
propane during fiscal 2006 at Mont Belvieu, one of the major
supply points in the United States, was approximately 21%
greater than the average cost per gallon during fiscal 2005. Total
cost of sales increased to $1,343.8 million in fiscal 2006 from
$1,220.0 million in fiscal 2005 primarily reflecting the increase
in propane product costs partially offset by the decreased vol-
umes sold. Total margin increased $32.2 million principally due
to higher average propane margins per gallon and higher fees in
response to increases in operating and administrative expenses.

Partnership EBITDA during fiscal 2006 increased $22.0 mil-
lion compared to fiscal 2005 as a result of the previously men-
tioned increase in total margin and a $16.5 million decrease in
losses from early extinguishments of debt ($17.1 million of such
losses in fiscal 2006 compared to $33.6 million in fiscal 2005).
These favorable year-over-year changes were partially offset by a
$17.1 million increase in operating and administrative expenses
and a $9.5 million decrease in other income. Other income in
fiscal 2005 benefited from a $9.1 million pre-tax gain on the
sale of AmeriGas Propane’s 50% ownership interest in Atlantic
Energy, Inc. to Energy Services. The increase in operating and
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administrative expenses in fiscal 2006 principally resulted from
higher (1) vehicle fuel and lease costs, (2) employee compensa-
tion and benefits costs and (3) maintenance and repairs expens-
es. These operating expense increases were partially offset by a
$7.2 million favorable net expense reduction related to general
insurance and litigation claims, primarily reflecting improved
claims history. During fiscal 2006, the Partnership recovered
significant increases in certain costs, such as vehicle fuel,
through delivery surcharges.

Operating income increased $16.0 million reflecting the previ-
ously mentioned increase in total margin and a $1.2 million
decrease in depreciation expense largely offset by the aforemen-
tioned $17.1 million increase in operating and administrative
expenses and decrease in other income.

Increase
International  Propane: 2006 2005 (Decrease)

(Millions of dollars)

Revenues $ 945.5 $943.9 $ 1.6 0.2%
Total margin (a) $ 428.3 $499.8 $(71.5) (14.3)%
Operating income $ 119.3 $193.8 $(74.5) (38.4)%
Income before income taxes $ 93.9 $159.0 $(65.1) (40.9)%

(Millions of euros)

Revenues € 776.5 €731.9 € 44.6 6.1%
Total margin (a) € 350.5 €387.8 €(37.3) (9.6)%
Operating income € 99.9 €148.2 €(48.3) (32.6)%
Income before income taxes € 79.8 €121.5 €(41.7) (34.3)%

Antargaz retail gallons sold (millions) 315.2 338.4 (23.2) (6.9)%
Degree days – % warmer 

than normal – Antargaz (b) 3.6% 3.9% – –

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less total cost of sales.

(b) Deviation from average heating degree days for the 30-year period 1971-2000 at 34
locations in our French service territory.

Temperatures in International Propane’s service territories
based upon heating degree days during fiscal 2006 were gener-
ally comparable to the prior year. The monthly average currency
translation rate was $1.23 per euro during fiscal 2006 compared
to $1.27 per euro during fiscal 2005. Antargaz’ retail LPG vol-
umes sold decreased to 315.2 million gallons in fiscal 2006 from
338.4 million gallons in fiscal 2005 due in large part to the late
onset of winter weather in December, lower agricultural volumes
sold and the effects of customer conservation on volumes sold.

International Propane revenues increased slightly as approxi-
mately $12 million of increased revenues from Antargaz were
largely offset by a decline in Flaga’s revenues. The increase in
Antargaz’ revenues reflects higher retail LPG selling prices
largely offset by the effects of the stronger dollar versus the
euro. The decrease in Flaga’s revenues largely reflects the
effects of Flaga’s Czech Republic and Slovakia businesses being
contributed to ZLH in February of 2006 and subsequently being
reflected on the equity method. International Propane’s total
cost of sales increased to $517.2 million in fiscal 2006 from
$444.1 million in fiscal 2005 reflecting higher LPG product costs
on lower retail volumes sold partially offset by the beneficial
effects of the stronger dollar compared to the euro.

Total International Propane margin declined $71.5 million in
fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005 primarily (1) reflecting both
the decline in Antargaz’ volumes and its unusually high LPG unit
margins in fiscal 2005 and (2) due to the stronger dollar versus
the euro. Antargaz’ total base currency margin declined €33.0
million reflecting the lower volumes sold and lower unit margins.

The decrease in International Propane operating income princi-
pally reflects the decline in total margin, the absence of $18.8
million of income from the reversal of certain of Antargaz’ non-
income tax related reserves recorded in fiscal 2005 (see discus-
sion in “Antargaz Tax Matters”) partially offset by a decrease of
$19.0 million in operating and administrative expenses. The
decrease in operating and administrative expenses reflects the
beneficial effects of the stronger dollar and lower euro-based
operating and administrative expenses at Antargaz and Flaga. The
decline in Flaga’s operating and administrative expenses largely
reflects the absence of operating expenses subsequent to the
contribution of certain of its businesses to ZLH in February 2006.

The decrease in International Propane income before income
taxes reflects the decrease in operating income and a $1.4 mil-
lion loss on early extinguishment of debt, partially offset by
approximately $6.7 million of lower interest expense and
changes in minority interest. The decrease in interest expense
is attributable to interest savings resulting from Antargaz’ debt
refinancings which are discussed further in Financial Condition
and Liquidity. The changes in minority interest reflect the minori-
ty interest holder’s share of costs associated with the shut-
down of one of Antargaz’ majority owned filling centers.

Increase
Gas Utility: 2006 2005 (Decrease)

(Millions of dollars)

Revenues $ 724.0 $585.1 $138.9 23.7%
Total margin (a) $ 201.1 $195.0 $ 6.1 3.1%
Operating income $ 84.2 $ 81.6 $ 2.6 3.2%
Income before income taxes $ 62.4 $ 65.0 $ (2.6) (4.0)%
System throughput –

billions of cubic feet (“bcf”) 82.6 84.7 (2.1) (2.5)%
Degree days – % warmer 

than normal (b) 8.7% 2.0% – –

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less total cost of sales.

(b) Deviation from average heating degree days for the 30-year period 1975-2004 based
upon weather statistics provided by NOAA for airports located within Gas Utility’s
 service territory.

Temperatures in Gas Utility’s service territory based upon
heating degree days were 8.7% warmer than normal in fiscal
2006 compared with temperatures that were 2.0% warmer
than normal in fiscal 2005. Total distribution system throughput
declined 2.1 bcf in fiscal 2006 despite 2.7 bcf of throughput
contributed by PNG Gas’ operations during the period from
August 24, 2006 through September 30, 2006. Notwithstanding
year-over-year growth in the number of UGI Gas’ retail core-mar-
ket customers, its fiscal 2006 system throughput was approxi-
mately 6% lower than in fiscal 2005 primarily due to a reduction
in retail core-market customer usage largely resulting from
warmer weather and customer conservation in response to the
pass-through of higher natural gas costs.

The increase in Gas Utility revenues during fiscal 2006 is
principally the result of an $86.6 million increase in UGI Gas’
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retail core-market revenues reflecting higher average PGC rates;
$43.0 million of higher revenues from UGI Gas’ low-margin off-
system sales; and, to a much lesser extent, revenues from PNG
Gas subsequent to the PG Energy Acquisition. Gas Utility’s cost
of gas was $522.9 million in fiscal 2006 compared to $390.1
million in fiscal 2005 largely reflecting the effects of the higher
PGC rates, the higher low-margin off-system sales and, to a
much lesser extent, cost of gas associated with PNG Gas’ oper-
ations subsequent to the PG Energy Acquisition.

The $6.1 million increase in Gas Utility total margin in fiscal
2006 principally reflects greater margin generated from higher
average interruptible delivery service unit margins and margin
from PNG Gas partially offset by lower retail core-market margin.
The increase in average interruptible delivery service unit mar-
gins reflects an increase in the spread between delivered prices
for natural gas and alternative fuels, principally oil. The lower
gross margin from retail core-market customers largely reflects
the previously mentioned lower average usage per customer.

Gas Utility operating income increased $2.6 million in fiscal
2006 as the $6.1 million increase in total margin was partially off-
set by a $2.6 million increase in depreciation and amortization
expense, including depreciation expense associated with PNG
Gas, and slightly higher operating and administrative expenses.
Fiscal 2006 operating and administrative expenses were slightly
higher than in fiscal 2005 reflecting operating and administrative
expenses from PNG Gas and higher uncollectible accounts and
customer assistance expense partially offset by lower distribution
system expenses resulting in large part from the mild heating-
season weather and lower stock-based compensation expense.

The decrease in Gas Utility income before income taxes in
fiscal 2006 reflects the increase in operating income which was
more than offset by higher interest expense. The higher interest
expense resulted from higher average short-term debt out-
standing, higher short-term interest rates and interest on long-
term debt associated with the PG Energy Acquisition.

Increase 
Electric Utility: 2006 2005 (Decrease)

(Millions of dollars)

Revenues $98.0 $96.1 $ 1.9 2.0%
Total margin (a) $41.7 $43.1 $(1.4) (3.2)%
Operating income $20.7 $21.6 $(0.9) (4.2)%
Income before income taxes $18.2 $19.9 $(1.7) (8.5)%
Distribution sales – millions of 

kilowatt hours (“gwh”) 1,005.0 1,021.8 (16.8) (1.6)%

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less total cost of sales and revenue-related
taxes, i.e. gross receipts taxes of $5.3 million and $5.2 million in fiscal 2006 and fiscal
2005, respectively. For financial statement purposes, revenue-related taxes are included
in “Utility taxes other than income taxes” on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Electric Utility’s fiscal 2006 kilowatt-hour sales decreased 1.6%
principally reflecting the effects of warmer heating-season weath-
er. Electric Utility revenues increased 2.0% principally reflecting
the effects of a 3.0% increase in its POLR electric generation
rates effective January 1, 2006 partially offset by the lower kilo-
watt-hour sales. Electric Utility’s cost of sales increased to $51.0
million in fiscal 2006 from $47.8 million in fiscal 2005 as a result of
higher per-unit purchased power costs partially offset by the lower
kilowatt-hour sales. Electric Utility total margin in fiscal 2006
decreased $1.4 million principally as a result of the lower kilowatt-
hour sales and the increase in per-unit purchased power costs.

Electric Utility operating income decreased $0.9 million
reflecting the decrease in total margin and slightly higher depre-
ciation and amortization expense slightly offset by lower operat-
ing and administrative expenses. The decrease in Electric Utility
income before income taxes in fiscal 2006 reflects the
decrease in operating income and higher interest expense
resulting from higher average short-term debt outstanding and
higher short-term interest rates.

Energy Services: 2006 2005 Increase

(Millions of dollars)

Revenues $1,414.3 $1,355.0 $59.3 4.4%
Total margin (a) $ 86.1 $ 73.6 $12.5 17.0%
Operating income $ 53.1 $ 37.5 $15.6 41.6%
Income before income taxes $ 53.1 $ 37.5 $15.6 41.6%

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less total cost of sales.

Energy Services revenues increased to $1,414.3 million in fis-
cal 2006 from $1,355.0 million in fiscal 2005 despite an approxi-
mate 22% decline in natural gas volumes sold. Approximately $20
million of the total increase in revenues reflects a 5.5% increase
in propane volumes sold combined with higher propane selling
prices resulting from higher propane product costs. The decline in
natural gas volumes sold largely reflects the effects of customer
losses associated with, among other things, maintenance of our
credit risk management policy in a high natural gas cost environ-
ment. The increase in propane volumes sold reflects, in part, the
full-year ownership of its 20 million gallon propane storage termi-
nal located in Chesapeake, Virginia. The propane terminal was pur-
chased through two separate transactions with ConocoPhillips
Company and AmeriGas Propane in November 2004.

Energy Services total margin increased $12.5 million result-
ing from higher natural gas margins, including winter storage
and peaking services, and, to a lesser extent, higher margin
from its propane storage terminal.

The increase in Energy Services operating income and
income before income taxes principally reflects the previously
mentioned increase in total margin and a $9.1 million gain on the
March 2006 sale of its 50% ownership interest in Energy
Ventures partially offset by higher operating and administrative
expenses. The increased operating and administrative expenses
were largely associated with electric generation. As part of the
consideration for the sale of our 50% ownership interest, Energy
Ventures transferred its 48-megawatt coal-fired electric genera-
tion station to UGID. As a result, UGID is no longer incurring
cost of sales associated with purchasing a portion of its power
needs from Energy Ventures, but is incurring operating and
administrative expenses associated with the operation of the
electric generation station.

Interest Expense and Income Taxes. Interest expense decreased
to $123.6 million in fiscal 2006 from $130.2 million in fiscal
2005 principally due to $12.4 million lower interest expense
largely associated with International Propane and AmeriGas
Propane debt refinancings partially offset by higher interest
expense associated with greater short-term borrowings at UGI
Utilities. Our effective income tax rate in fiscal 2006 was lower
than in fiscal 2005 as the fiscal 2006 effective tax rate reflected
management’s lower estimate of taxes to be paid associated
with planned repatriation of foreign earnings.
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Financial Condition and Liquidity

Capitalization and Liquidity
Total cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments were
$264.6 million at September 30, 2007 compared with $201.0 mil-
lion (including $0.6 million of short-term investments included in
other current assets) at September 30, 2006. Excluding cash,
cash equivalents and short-term investments that reside at UGI’s
operating subsidiaries, at September 30, 2007 and 2006, we had
$47.4 million and $16.6 million, respectively, of cash, cash equiv-
alents and short-term investments. The primary sources of UGI’s
cash are the dividends and other cash payments made to UGI or
its corporate subsidiaries by its principal business units.

AmeriGas Propane’s ability to pay dividends to UGI is depend-
ent upon distributions it receives from AmeriGas Partners. At
September 30, 2007, our 44% effective ownership interest in the
Partnership consisted of approximately 24.7 million Common
Units and its combined 2% general partner interests.
Approximately 45 days after the end of each fiscal quarter, the
Partnership distributes all of its Available Cash (as defined in the
Third Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership
of AmeriGas Partners, as amended, the “Partnership
Agreement”) relating to such fiscal quarter. The ability of the
Partnership to pay distributions depends upon a number of fac-
tors. These factors include (1) the level of Partnership earnings;
(2) the cash needs of the Partnership’s operations (including
cash needed for maintaining and increasing operating capacity);
(3) changes in operating working capital; and (4) the ability of the
Partnership to borrow under its Credit Agreement, to refinance
maturing debt and to increase its long-term debt. Some of these
factors are affected by conditions beyond our control including
weather, competition in markets we serve, the cost of propane
and changes in capital market conditions.

During fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, our principal business units
paid dividends and made cash payments to UGI and its sub-
sidiaries as follows:

Year Ended September 30, 2007 2006 2005

(Millions of dollars)

AmeriGas Propane $ 53.8 $ 38.3 $ 45.4
UGI Utilities 40.0 37.6 38.5
International Propane 68.4 104.6 22.5
Energy Services 6.1 34.8 9.0

Total $168.3 $215.3 $115.4

Dividends and other cash distributions are available to pay divi-
dends on UGI Common Stock and for investment purposes. The
higher dividend from AmeriGas Propane in fiscal 2007 reflects
the benefit of a one-time $0.25 per limited partner unit increase
in the Partnership’s August 2007 quarterly distribution and the
associated increased General Partner distribution resulting from
the July 2007 sale of the Partnership’s 3.5 million barrel LPG stor-
age facility (See Note 2 to Consolidated Financial Statements).
The higher dividend and cash payments from International
Propane in fiscal 2006 largely reflect the effects of Antargaz’ sig-
nificantly higher earnings in fiscal 2005 and its December 2005
refinancing. Energy Services dividends in fiscal 2006 included, in
part, dividends of proceeds from the sale of Energy Ventures.

On April 24, 2007, UGI’s Board of Directors approved an
increase in the quarterly dividend rate on UGI Common Stock to
$0.185 per share or $0.74 per share on an annual basis, which
was effective with the dividend payable on July 1, 2007 to
shareholders of record on June 15, 2007. On April 23, 2007,
AmeriGas Propane’s Board of Directors approved an increase in
the quarterly distribution rate on AmeriGas Partners Common
Units to $0.61 per Common Unit ($2.44 annually) from $0.58
per Common Unit ($2.32 annually) previously. The increase in
AmeriGas Partners’ distribution was effective with the payment
of its distribution for the quarter ended June 30, 2007.

AmeriGas Partners. The Partnership’s debt outstanding at
September 30, 2007 totaled $933.1 million. There were no
amounts outstanding under AmeriGas OLP’s Credit Agreement
at September 30, 2007.

AmeriGas OLP’s Credit Agreement expires on October 15,
2011 and consists of (1) a $125 million Revolving Credit Facility
and (2) a $75 million Acquisition Facility. The Revolving Credit
Facility may be used for working capital and general purposes of
AmeriGas OLP. The Acquisition Facility provides AmeriGas OLP
with the ability to borrow up to $75 million to finance the pur-
chase of propane businesses or propane business assets or, to
the extent it is not so used, for working capital and general pur-
poses, subject to restrictions in the AmeriGas Partners Senior
Notes indentures. Issued and outstanding letters of credit under
the Revolving Credit Facility, which reduce the amount available
for borrowings, totaled $58.0 million at September 30, 2007 and
$58.9 million at September 30, 2006. Approximately the same
amounts were outstanding under these letters of credit through-
out each of the respective fiscal years. AmeriGas OLP’s short-
term borrowing needs are seasonal and are typically greatest
during the fall and winter heating-season months due to the
need to fund higher levels of working capital. The average daily
and peak bank loan borrowings outstanding under the Revolving
Credit Facility in fiscal 2007 were $1.6 million and $92.0 million,
respectively. There were no significant borrowings outstanding
under the Revolving Credit Facility during fiscal 2006.

AmeriGas Partners periodically issues equity securities and
may continue to do so. Proceeds from the Partnership’s equity
offerings have generally been used by the Partnership to reduce
indebtedness and for general Partnership purposes, including
funding acquisitions. AmeriGas Partners has an effective unallo-
cated debt and equity shelf registration statement with the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) under which it
may issue Common Units or Senior Notes due 2016 in under-
written public offerings.

AmeriGas OLP must meet certain financial covenants in order
to borrow under its Credit Agreement including, but not limited
to, a minimum interest coverage ratio, a maximum debt to EBIT-
DA ratio and a minimum EBITDA, as defined. AmeriGas OLP’s
financial covenants calculated as of September 30, 2007 permit-
ted it to borrow up to the maximum amount available under the
Credit Agreement. For a more detailed discussion of the
Partnership’s credit facilities, see Note 3 to Consolidated Financial
Statements. Based upon existing cash balances, cash expected
to be generated from operations and borrowings available under
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its Credit Agreement, the Partnership’s management believes
that the Partnership will be able to meet its anticipated contractu-
al commitments and projected cash needs during fiscal 2008.

International Propane. At September 30, 2007, Antargaz had
total debt outstanding of €382.1 million ($544.9 million). There
were no amounts borrowed under the revolving portion of the
Senior Facilities Agreement during fiscal 2007.

In December 2005, AGZ executed a five-year floating-rate
Senior Facilities Agreement that expires on March 31, 2011 and
consists of (1) a €380 million variable-rate term loan and (2) a 
€50 million revolving credit facility. AGZ executed interest rate
swap agreements to fix the underlying euribor or libor rate of
interest on the term loan at approximately 3.25% for the dura-
tion of the loan. The effective interest rate on Antargaz’ term
loan at September 30, 2007 was 4.05%. The proceeds from the
new term loan were used to repay its €175 million term loan, to
fund the redemption of its €165 million High Yield Bonds and for
general purposes.

The Senior Facilities term loan has been collateralized by
substantially all of Antargaz’ shares in its subsidiaries and by
substantially all of its accounts receivable. Antargaz’ manage-
ment believes that it will be able to meet its anticipated con-
tractual commitments and projected cash needs during fiscal
2008 principally with cash generated from operations.

The Senior Facilities Agreement restricts the ability of AGZ
to, among other things, incur additional indebtedness and make
investments. For a more detailed discussion of Antargaz’ debt,
see Note 3 to Consolidated Financial Statements.

At September 30, 2007, Flaga had total debt outstanding of 
€48.3 million ($68.9 million). On July 26, 2006, Flaga entered
into a euro-based term loan facility in the amount of €48 million
and a working capital facility with a major European bank for up
to €8 million both of which expire in September 2011.
Borrowings under the working capital facility commitment
totaled €6.3 million ($8.9 million) at September 30, 2007.
Generally, principal payments on the term loan of €3 million are
due semi-annually on March 31 and September 30 each year
with final payments totaling €24.0 million due in 2011. In
November 2006, Flaga effectively fixed the euribor component
of its interest rate on a substantial portion of its term loan
through September 2011 at 3.91% by entering into an interest
rate swap agreement. The effective interest rate on Flaga’s term
loan at September 30, 2007 was 4.43%. Debt issued under
these agreements is guaranteed by UGI. Flaga’s joint venture,
ZLH, has multi-currency working capital facilities that provide for
borrowings up to a total of €16 million, half of which is guaran-
teed by UGI. For a more detailed discussion of Flaga’s debt, see
Note 3 to Consolidated Financial Statements.

UGI Utilities. UGI Utilities’ debt outstanding totaled $702.0 mil-
lion at September 30, 2007. Included in this amount is $190.0
million of bank loans outstanding. In June 2007, UGI Utilities
refinanced $20 million of its maturing 7.17% Medium-Term
Notes with proceeds from the issuance of $20 million of 6.17%
Medium-Term Notes due June 2017.

UGI Utilities has a revolving credit agreement under which it
may borrow up to a total of $350 million. This agreement expires
in August 2011. At September 30, 2007, there was $190.0 million

outstanding under the revolving credit agreement. From time to
time, UGI Utilities has entered into short-term borrowings under
uncommitted arrangements with major banks in order to meet
liquidity needs. Short-term borrowings, including amounts out-
standing under the revolving credit agreements, are classified as
bank loans on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. UGI Utilities’
credit agreement requires it to maintain a maximum ratio of
Consolidated Debt to Consolidated Total Capital, as defined, of
0.65 to 1.00. During fiscal 2007 and 2006, average daily bank
loan borrowings were $163.7 million and $118.4 million, respec-
tively, and peak bank loan borrowings totaled $259.0 million and
$219.0 million, respectively. Peak borrowings typically occur dur-
ing the peak heating season months of December and January
when the Company’s investment in working capital is generally
greatest. The increase in average and peak bank loan borrowings
during fiscal 2007 reflects, in large part, borrowings to fund
increased working capital primarily resulting from borrowings
related to the working capital of PNG Gas.

UGI Utilities has a shelf registration statement with the SEC
under which it may issue up to an additional $55 million of
Medium-Term Notes or other debt securities subject to the
financial ratio covenant in its Revolving Credit Agreement.

Based upon cash expected to be generated from Gas Utility
and Electric Utility operations, borrowings available under its
revolving credit agreement and the availability of its Medium-
Term Notes program, UGI Utilities’ management believes that it
will be able to meet its anticipated contractual and projected
cash commitments during fiscal 2008. For a more detailed dis-
cussion of UGI Utilities’ long-term debt and revolving credit
facility, see Note 3 to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Energy Services. UGI Energy Services, Inc. (“ESI”) has a $200
million receivables purchase facility (“Receivables Facility”) with
an issuer of receivables-backed commercial paper expiring in
April 2009, although the Receivables Facility may terminate
prior to such date due to the termination of commitments of
the Receivables Facility’s back-up purchasers. Prior to
September 2006, ESI’s Receivables Facility was $150 million.

Under the Receivables Facility, ESI transfers, on an ongoing
basis and without recourse, its trade accounts receivable to its
wholly owned, special purpose subsidiary, Energy Services
Funding Corporation (“ESFC”), which is consolidated for financial
statement purposes. ESFC, in turn, has sold, and subject to cer-
tain conditions, may from time to time sell, an undivided interest
in the receivables to a commercial paper conduit of a major
bank. ESFC was created and has been structured to isolate its
assets from creditors of ESI and its affiliates, including UGI. This
two-step transaction is accounted for as a sale of receivables fol-
lowing the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and
Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.”
ESI continues to service, administer and collect trade receiv-
ables on behalf of the commercial paper issuer and ESFC. At
September 30, 2007, the outstanding balance of ESFC trade
receivables was $65.7 million which is net of $16.0 million that
was sold to the commercial paper conduit and removed from
the balance sheet. During fiscal 2007 and 2006, peak borrow-
ings totaled $76.0 million and $145.0 million, respectively. Based
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upon cash expected to be generated from operations and bor-
rowings available under its Receivables Facility, management
believes that Energy Services will be able to meet its anticipated
contractual and projected cash commitments during fiscal 2008.

A major bank has committed to issue up to $50 million of
standby letters of credit, secured by cash or marketable securi-
ties (“LC Facility”). At September 30, 2007, there were no let-
ters of credit outstanding. Energy Services expects to fund the
collateral requirements with borrowings under its Receivables
Facility. The LC Facility expires in April 2008.

Cash Flows
Operating Activities. Due to the seasonal nature of the
Company’s businesses, cash flows from operating activities are
generally strongest during the second and third fiscal quarters
when customers pay for natural gas, LPG, electricity and other
energy products consumed during the peak heating season
months. Conversely, operating cash flows are generally at their
lowest levels during the first and fourth fiscal quarters when the
Company’s investment in working capital, principally inventories
and accounts receivable, is generally greatest. AmeriGas
Propane and UGI Utilities primarily use bank loans to satisfy
their seasonal operating cash flow needs. Energy Services uses
its Receivables Facility to satisfy its operating cash flow needs.
Antargaz has historically been successful funding its operating
cash flow needs without using its revolver. Changes in cash
flow from operations from year to year can also be affected by
changes in operating working capital especially during periods
of volatile energy commodity prices.

Cash flow provided by operating activities was $456.2 million
in fiscal 2007, $279.4 million in fiscal 2006 and $437.7 million in
fiscal 2005. Cash flow from operating activities before changes
in operating working capital was $518.4 million in fiscal 2007,
$404.6 million in fiscal 2006 and $426.5 million in fiscal 2005.
The increase in cash flow from operating activities in fiscal 2007
largely reflects greater cash flow from UGI Utilities, reflecting
the full-year effects of PNG Gas and lower cash used for work-
ing capital purposes, and greater cash flow from AmeriGas
Propane principally reflecting the cash flow effects of improved
fiscal 2007 financial performance.

Investing Activities. Investing activity cash flow is principally
affected by investments in property, plant and equipment, cash
paid for acquisitions of businesses, changes in short-term invest-
ments and proceeds from sales of assets. Net cash flow used in
investing activities was $223.8 million in fiscal 2007, $707.5 mil-
lion in fiscal 2006 and $196.3 million in fiscal 2005. The higher
fiscal 2006 cash flow used by investing activities reflects in large
part the $580 million paid at settlement for the PG Energy
Acquisition. Cash flow for acquisitions in fiscal 2007, principally
Partnership propane business acquisitions, totaled $78.8 million.
During fiscal 2007, the Partnership received $49.0 million in cash
proceeds from the sale of its Arizona storage facility and UGI
Utilities received $23.7 million in settlement of its working capi-
tal adjustment associated with the PG Energy Acquisition.
During fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, we spent $223.1 million,
$191.7 million and $158.4 million, respectively, for property, plant
and equipment. The higher fiscal 2007 expenditures include higher

Gas Utility capital expenditures associated with PNG Gas and
greater International Propane capital expenditures.

Financing Activities. Cash flow (used) provided by financing
activities was $(178.5) million, $299.7 million and $(72.6) million
in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Changes in cash
flow from financing activities are primarily due to issuances and
repayments of long-term debt, net bank loan borrowings, divi-
dends and distributions on UGI Common Stock and AmeriGas
Partners Common Units and proceeds from public offerings of
AmeriGas Partners Common Units and UGI Common Stock.

Fiscal 2007 issuances of long-term debt include $20 million
of UGI Utilities’ 6.17% Medium-Term Notes the proceeds of
which were used to repay UGI Utilities maturing 7.17% Medium
Term Notes. We also made scheduled repayments of €6 million
of Flaga’s term loan during fiscal 2007. Long-term debt
issuances in fiscal 2006 were affected by a number of signifi-
cant financing transactions including the issuance of $275 mil-
lion of UGI Utilities Senior Notes associated with the PG Energy
Acquisition; a €380 million term loan entered into by Antargaz;
and $350 million of Senior Notes issued by AmeriGas Partners.
The proceeds from the Antargaz €380 million term loan were
used to repay the then-existing €75 million Antargaz Senior
Facilities term loan, redeem Antargaz €165 million High Yield
Bonds and for general corporate purposes. The proceeds of the
AmeriGas Partners Senior Notes were used to refinance
AmeriGas OLP’s $160 million Series A and $68.8 million Series
C First Mortgage Notes, including a make-whole premium, its
$35 million term loan due October 1, 2006, and $59.6 million of
the Partnership’s 10% Senior Notes.

Pension Plans
UGI Utilities sponsors two defined benefit pension plans
(“Pension Plans”) for employees of UGI Utilities, UGIPNG, UGI,
and certain of UGI’s other subsidiaries. The fair value of the
Pension Plans’ assets totaled $290.1 million and $274.6 million
at September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. At September
30, 2007 and 2006, the Pension Plans’ projected benefit obliga-
tions (“PBOs”) exceeded the Pension Plans assets by $9.3 mil-
lion and $31.7 million, respectively.

The Company believes it is in compliance with regulations
governing defined benefit pension plans, including Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”) rules and
regulations, and does not anticipate it will be required to make
a contribution to the Pension Plans in fiscal 2008. Pension
expense associated with our Pension Plans in fiscal 2007, 2006
and 2005 was not material. Pension expense associated with
our Pension Plans in fiscal 2008 is not expected to be material.

SFAS 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans – an amendment of
FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R),” (“SFAS 158”),
became effective for us as of September 30, 2007 and requires
recognition of an asset or liability in the statement of financial
position reflecting the funded status of pension and other
postretirement benefit plans such as retiree health and life, with
current year changes recognized in shareholders’ equity. SFAS
158 did not change the existing criteria for measurement of
periodic benefit costs, plan assets or benefit obligations. In con-
junction with our adoption of SFAS 158, we adjusted certain
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amounts on our September 30, 2007 Consolidated Balance
Sheet relating to the Pension Plans, unfunded supplemental
executive retirement plans, domestic other postretirement ben-
efit plans and certain pension and other postretirement benefit
plans of Antargaz. As a result of the adoption of SFAS 158, we
recorded an after-tax charge to Common Stockholders’ Equity of
$11.2 million. For a more detailed discussion of the adoption of
SFAS 158, see Note 1 to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Capital Expenditures
In the following table, we present capital expenditures (which
exclude acquisitions) by our business segments for fiscal 2007,
2006 and 2005. We also provide amounts we expect to spend
in fiscal 2008. Increases in capital expenditures are in support
of growth and new marketing initiatives. We expect to finance
fiscal 2008 capital expenditures principally from cash generated
by operations and borrowings under our credit facilities.

Year Ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006 2005

(Millions of dollars) (estimate)
AmeriGas Propane $ 69.8 $ 73.8 $ 70.7 $ 62.6
International Propane 74.2 64.3 55.5 42.0
Gas Utility 60.6 66.2 49.2 38.8
Electric Utility 5.8 7.2 9.0 7.5
Energy Services 13.6 10.7 7.0 6.2
Other 2.6 0.9 0.3 1.3

Total $226.6 $223.1 $191.7 $158.4

Contractual Cash Obligations and Commitments
The Company has contractual cash obligations that extend beyond
fiscal 2007. Such obligations include scheduled repayments of
long-term debt, interest on long-term fixed-rate debt, operating
lease payments, unconditional purchase obligations for pipeline
capacity, pipeline transportation and natural gas storage services
and commitments to purchase natural gas, LPG and electricity.
The following table presents contractual cash obligations under
agreements existing as of September 30, 2007.

Payments Due by Period
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

Total 2008 2009-2010 2011-2012 Thereafter

(Millions of dollars)

Long-term debt $2,052.6 $ 14.2 $184.5 $ 616.4 $1,237.5
Interest on long-term

fixed rate debt 1,020.1 129.7 237.1 176.5 476.8
Operating leases 256.9 57.9 86.1 57.1 55.8
AmeriGas Propane 

supply contracts 25.8 25.8 – – –
International Propane

supply contracts 121.8 61.7 60.1 – –
Energy Services 

supply contracts 509.9 462.6 47.3 – –
Gas Utility and Electric Utility 

supply, storage and 
transportation contracts 1,019.5 478.9 293.5 125.5 121.6 

Total $5,006.6 $1,230.8 $908.6 $ 975.5 $1,891.7

Related Party Transactions
During fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, we did not enter into any
related-party transactions that had a material effect on our finan-
cial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that are
expected to have a material effect on our financial condition,
change in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of
operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.

Utility Regulatory Matters
As a result of Pennsylvania’s Natural Gas Choice and
Competition Act (the “Gas Competition Act”), since July 1,
1999, all natural gas consumers in Pennsylvania, including resi-
dential and smaller commercial and industrial customers (“core-
market customers”), have been able to purchase gas supplies
from entities other than natural gas distribution companies
(“NGDCs”). Under the Gas Competition Act, NGDCs, like UGI
Gas and PNG Gas, continue to serve as the supplier of last
resort for all core-market customers, and such sales of gas, as
well as the distribution service provided by NGDCs, continue to
be subject to rate regulation by the PUC. As of September 30,
2007, fewer than 2% of Gas Utility’s core-market customers
purchase their gas from alternate suppliers.

In an order entered on November 30, 2006, the PUC approved
a settlement of a PNG Gas base rate proceeding. The settlement
authorized PNG Gas to increase its base rates $12.5 million annu-
ally, or approximately 4%, effective December 2, 2006.

As a result of the Electricity Generation Customer Choice and
Competition Act (the “Electric Competition Act”) that became
effective January 1, 1997, all of Electric Utility’s customers are
permitted to acquire their electricity from entities other than
Electric Utility. As of September 30, 2007, none of Electric Utility’s
customers have chosen an alternative electricity generation sup-
plier. Electric Utility remains the provider of last resort, or default
service provider, for its customers that are not served by an alter-
nate electric generation provider. The terms and conditions under
which Electric Utility provides POLR service, and rules governing
the rates that may be charged for such service, have been estab-
lished in a series of PUC approved settlements, the latest of
which became effective June 23, 2006 (collectively, the “POLR
Settlement”).

Electric Utility’s POLR service rules provide for annual shop-
ping periods during which customers may elect to remain on
POLR service or choose an alternate supplier. Customers who do
not select an alternate supplier are obligated to remain on POLR
service until the next shopping period. Residential customers
who return to POLR service must remain on POLR service until
the date of the second open shopping period after returning.
Commercial and industrial customers who return to POLR serv-
ice must remain on POLR service until the next open shopping
period and may, in certain circumstances, be subject to genera-
tion rate surcharges.
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In accordance with the POLR Settlement, Electric Utility may
increase its POLR rates up to certain limits through December
31, 2009. Consistent with the terms of the POLR Settlement,
Electric Utility’s POLR rates increased 4.5% on January 1, 2005
and 3% on January 1, 2006. Electric Utility also increased its
POLR rates effective January 1, 2007, which increased the aver-
age cost to a residential heating customer by approximately 35%
over such costs in effect during calendar 2006.

Effective January 1, 2008, total average residential rates will
increase approximately 5.5%. Electric Utility is also permitted to
and has entered into multiple-year fixed-rate POLR service con-
tracts with certain of its customers. New PUC default service
regulations became effective on September 15, 2007, but do not
disturb Electric Utility’s POLR Settlement through 2009. Under
the default service regulations, Electric Utility will be required to
file a default service plan with the PUC in 2008 that will establish
the terms and conditions under which it will offer POLR service
commencing 2010.

We account for the operations of Gas Utility and Electric Utility
in accordance with SFAS No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of
Certain Types of Regulation” (“SFAS 71”). SFAS 71 requires us to
record the effects of rate regulation in the financial statements.
SFAS 71 allows us to defer expenses and revenues on the bal-
ance sheet as regulatory assets and liabilities when it is probable
that those expenses and income will be allowed in the ratemaking
process in a period different from the period in which they would
have been reflected in the income statement of an unregulated
company. These deferred assets and liabilities are then flowed
through the income statement in the period in which the same
amounts are included in rates and recovered from or refunded to
customers. As required by SFAS 71, we monitor our regulatory
and competitive environments to determine whether the recovery
of our regulatory assets continues to be probable. If we were to
determine that recovery of these regulatory assets is no longer
probable, such assets would be written off against earnings. We
believe that SFAS 71 continues to apply to our regulated opera-
tions and that the recovery of our regulatory assets is probable.

Manufactured Gas Plants
From the late 1800s through the mid-1900s, UGI Utilities and its
former subsidiaries owned and operated a number of manufac-
tured gas plants (“MGPs”) prior to the general availability of nat-
ural gas. Some constituents of coal tars and other residues of
the manufactured gas process are today considered hazardous
substances under the Superfund Law and may be present on
the sites of former MGPs. Between 1882 and 1953, UGI Utilities
owned the stock of subsidiary gas companies in Pennsylvania
and elsewhere and also operated the businesses of some gas
companies under agreement. Pursuant to the requirements of
the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, UGI Utilities
divested all of its utility operations other than those which now
constitute UGI Gas and Electric Utility by the early 1950s.

UGI Utilities does not expect its costs for investigation and
remediation of hazardous substances at Pennsylvania MGP sites
to be material to its results of operations because UGI Gas is cur-
rently permitted to include in rates, through future base rate pro-
ceedings, prudently incurred remediation costs associated with

such sites. In accordance with the terms of the PNG Gas base
rate case order which became effective on December 2, 2006,
site-specific environmental investigation and remediation costs
associated with PNG Gas incurred prior to December 2, 2006 are
amortized as removal costs over five-year periods. Such costs
incurred after December 1, 2006 are expensed as incurred.

As a result of the acquisition of PG Energy by UGI Utilities’
wholly-owned subsidiary, UGIPNG, UGIPNG became party to a
Multi-Site Remediation Consent Order and Agreement between
PG Energy and the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental
Protection dated March 31, 2004 (“Multi-Site Agreement”). The
Multi-Site Agreement requires UGIPNG to perform annually a
specified level of activities associated with environmental investi-
gation and remediation work at 11 currently owned properties on
which MGP-related facilities were operated (“Properties”). Under
the Multi-Site Agreement, environmental expenditures, including
costs to perform work on the Properties, are capped at $1.1 mil-
lion in any calender year. Costs related to investigation and reme-
diation of one property formerly owned by UGIPNG are also
included in this cap. The Multi-Site Agreement terminates in 2019
but may be terminated by either party effective at the end of any
two-year period beginning with the effective date.

UGI Utilities has been notified of several sites outside
Pennsylvania on which private parties allege MGPs were formerly
owned or operated by it or owned or operated by its former sub-
sidiaries. Such parties are investigating the extent of environmen-
tal contamination or performing environmental remediation. UGI
Utilities is currently litigating four claims against it relating to out-
of-state sites. We accrue environmental investigation and cleanup
costs when it is probable that a liability exists and the amount or
range of amounts can be reasonably estimated.

Management believes that under applicable law UGI Utilities
should not be liable in those instances in which a former sub-
sidiary owned or operated an MGP. There could be, however, sig-
nificant future costs of an uncertain amount associated with envi-
ronmental damage caused by MGPs outside Pennsylvania that
UGI Utilities directly operated, or that were owned or operated by
former subsidiaries of UGI Utilities if a court were to conclude that
(1) the subsidiary’s separate corporate form should be disregarded
or (2) UGI Utilities should be considered to have been an operator
because of its conduct with respect to its subsidiary’s MGP.

South Carolina Electric & Gas Company v. UGI Utilities, Inc. 

On September 22, 2006, South Carolina Electric & Gas
Company (“SCE&G”), a subsidiary of SCANA Corporation, filed
a lawsuit against UGI Utilities in the District Court of South
Carolina seeking contribution from UGI Utilities for past and
future remediation costs related to the operations of a former
MGP located in Charleston, South Carolina. SCE&G asserts that
the plant operated from 1855 to 1954 and alleges that UGI
Utilities controlled operations of the plant from 1910 to 1926
and is liable for 47% of the costs associated with the site.
SCE&G asserts that it has spent approximately $22 million in
remediation costs and $26 million in third-party claims relating
to the site and estimates that future remediation costs could be
as high as $2.5 million. SCE&G further asserts that it has
received a demand from the United States Justice Department
for natural resource damages. UGI Utilities is defending the suit.
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City of Bangor, Maine v. Citizens Communications Co.

In April 2003, Citizens Communications Company (“Citizens”)
served a complaint naming UGI Utilities as a third-party defen-
dant in a civil action pending in the United States District Court
for the District of Maine. In that action, the plaintiff, City of
Bangor, Maine (“City”) sued Citizens to recover environmental
response costs associated with MGP wastes generated at a
plant allegedly operated by Citizens’ predecessors at a site on
the Penobscot River. Citizens subsequently joined UGI Utilities
and ten other third-party defendants alleging that the third-party
defendants are responsible for an equitable share of costs
Citizens may be required to pay to the City for cleaning up tar
deposits in the Penobscot River. Citizens alleges that UGI
Utilities and its predecessors owned and operated the plant
from 1901 to 1928. Studies conducted by the City and Citizens
suggest that it could cost up to $18 million to clean up the river.
Citizens’ third party claims have been stayed pending a resolu-
tion of the City’s suit against Citizens, which was tried in
September 2005. Maine’s Department of Environmental
Protection (“DEP”) informed UGI Utilities in March 2005 that it
considers UGI Utilities to be a potentially responsible party for
costs incurred by the State of Maine related to gas plant con-
taminants at this site. On June 27, 2006, the court issued an
order finding Citizens responsible for 60% of the cleanup costs.
On February 14, 2007, Citizens and the City entered into a set-
tlement agreement pursuant to which Citizens agreed to pay
$7.6 million in exchange for a release of its liabilities. UGI
Utilities is evaluating what effect, if any, the settlement agree-
ment would have on claims against it. UGI Utilities believes that
it has good defenses to any claim that the DEP may bring to
recover its costs, and is defending the Citizens’ suit.

Consolidated Edison Company of New York v. UGI Utilities, Inc.

On September 20, 2001, Consolidated Edison Company of New
York (“ConEd”) filed suit against UGI Utilities in the United States
District Court for the Southern District of New York, seeking con-
tribution from UGI Utilities for an allocated share of response
costs associated with investigating and assessing gas plant relat-
ed contamination at former MGP sites in Westchester County,
New York. The complaint alleges that UGI Utilities “owned and
operated” the MGPs prior to 1904. The complaint also seeks a
declaration that UGI Utilities is responsible for an allocated per-
centage of future investigative and remedial costs at the sites.

The trial court granted UGI Utilities’ motion for summary judg-
ment and dismissed ConEd’s complaint. The grant of summary
judgment was entered April 1, 2004. ConEd appealed and on
September 9, 2005 a panel of the Second Circuit Court of
Appeals affirmed in part and reversed in part the decision of the
trial court. The appellate panel affirmed the trial court’s decision
dismissing claims that UGI Utilities was liable under CERCLA as
an operator of MGPs owned and operated by its former sub-
sidiaries. The appellate panel reversed the trial court’s decision
that UGI Utilities was released from liability at three sites where
UGI Utilities operated MGPs under lease. ConEd claims the cost
of remediation for the three sites would be approximately $14
million. On October 7, 2005, UGI Utilities filed for reconsideration
of the panel’s order, which was denied by the Second Circuit
Court of Appeals on January 17, 2006. On April 14, 2006, Utilities

filed a petition requesting that the United States Supreme Court
review the decision of the Second Circuit Court of Appeals. On
June 18, 2007, the United States Supreme Court denied UGI
Utilities’ petition. The case has now been remanded back to the
trial court. UGI Utilities is defending the suit.

Sag Harbor, New York Matter. By letter dated June 24, 2004,
KeySpan Energy (“KeySpan”) informed UGI Utilities that KeySpan
has spent $2.3 million and expects to spend another $11 million
to clean up an MGP site it owns in Sag Harbor, New York.
KeySpan believes that UGI Utilities is responsible for approxi-
mately 50% of these costs as a result of UGI Utilities’ alleged
direct ownership and operation of the plant from 1885 to 1902.
By letter dated June 6, 2006, KeySpan reported that the New
York Department of Environmental Conservation has approved a
remedy for the site that is estimated to cost approximately $10
million. KeySpan believes that the cost could be as high as $20
million. UGI Utilities is in the process of reviewing the information
provided by KeySpan and is investigating this claim.

Yankee Gas Services Company and Connecticut Light and

Power Company v. UGI Utilities, Inc. On September 11, 2006,
UGI Utilities received a complaint filed by Yankee Gas Services
Company and Connecticut Light and Power Company, sub-
sidiaries of Northeast Utilities, (together the “Northeast
Companies”), in the United States District Court for the District
of Connecticut seeking contribution from UGI Utilities for past
and future remediation costs related to MGP operations on thir-
teen sites owned by the Northeast Companies in nine cities in
the State of Connecticut. The Northeast Companies allege that
UGI Utilities controlled operations of the plants from 1883 to
1941. The Northeast Companies estimated that remediation costs
for all of the sites would total approximately $215 million and
asserted that UGI Utilities is responsible for approximately $103
million of this amount. Based on information supplied by the
Northeast Companies and UGI Utilities’ own investigation, UGI
Utilities believes that it may have operated one of the sites,
Waterbury North, under lease for a portion of its operating histo-
ry. UGI Utilities is reviewing the Northeast Companies’ estimate
that remediation costs at Waterbury North could total $23 million.
UGI Utilities is defending the suit.

Antargaz Tax Matters
French tax authorities levy various taxes on legal entities and indi-
viduals regularly operating a business in France which are com-
monly referred to collectively as “business tax.” The amount of
business tax charged annually is generally dependent upon the
value of the entity’s tangible fixed assets. Prior to the Antargaz
acquisition, Antargaz filed suit against French tax authorities in
connection with the assessment of business tax related to the tax
treatment of certain of its owned tanks at customer locations. Elf
Antar France and Elf Aquitaine, now Total France, former owners
of Antargaz, agreed to indemnify Antargaz for all payments that
would have been due from Antargaz in respect of the tax related
to its tanks for the period from January 1, 1997 through
December 31, 2000. Antargaz has recorded liabilities for business
taxes related to various classes of equipment. On February 4,
2005, Antargaz received a letter concerning the business tax that
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was issued by the French government to the French Committee of
Butane and Propane (“CFBP”), a butane/propane industry group
that eliminated the requirement for Antargaz to pay business tax
associated with tanks at certain customer locations. In addition,
during fiscal 2005, resolution was reached relating to business
taxes relating to a prior year. Our fiscal 2005 Consolidated
Statement of Income includes a pre-tax gain of $18.8 million and a
net after-tax gain of $14.2 million associated with the resolution of
certain business tax matters related principally to prior years.
Further changes in the French government’s interpretation of the
tax laws or in the tax laws themselves could have either an
adverse or a favorable effect on our results of operations.

Market Risk Disclosures
Our primary market risk exposures are (1) market prices for
LPG, natural gas and electricity; (2) changes in interest rates;
and (3) foreign currency exchange rates.

The risk associated with fluctuations in the prices the
Partnership and our International Propane operations pay for LPG
is principally a result of market forces reflecting changes in supply
and demand for LPG and other energy commodities. Their prof-
itability is sensitive to changes in LPG supply costs. Increases in
supply costs are generally passed on to customers. International
Propane and the Partnership may not, however, always be able to
pass on product cost increases fully or on a timely basis, particu-
larly when product costs rise rapidly. In order to reduce the volatili-
ty of LPG market price risk, the Partnership uses contracts for the
forward purchase or sale of propane, propane fixed-price supply
agreements, and over-the-counter derivative commodity instru-
ments including price swap and option contracts. In addition,
Antargaz hedges a portion of its anticipated U.S. dollar denominat-
ed LPG product purchases through the use of forward foreign
exchange contracts. Antargaz may also enter into other contracts,
similar to those used by the Partnership. Flaga has used and may
use derivative commodity instruments to reduce market risk asso-
ciated with a portion of its propane purchases. Currently, Flaga’s
hedging activities are not material to the Company’s financial posi-
tion or results of operations. Over-the-counter derivative commodi-
ty instruments utilized to hedge forecasted purchases of propane
are generally settled at expiration of the contract. In order to mini-
mize credit risk associated with derivative commodity contracts,
we monitor established credit limits with the contract counterpar-
ties. Although we use derivative financial and commodity instru-
ments to reduce market price risk associated with forecasted
transactions, we do not use derivative financial and commodity
instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

Gas Utility’s tariffs contain clauses that permit recovery of sub-
stantially all of the prudently incurred costs of natural gas it sells to
its customers. The recovery clauses provide for periodic adjust-
ments for the difference between the total amounts actually col-
lected from customers through PGC rates and the recoverable
costs incurred. Because of this ratemaking mechanism, there is
limited commodity price risk associated with our Gas Utility opera-
tions. Gas Utility may enter into natural gas futures and option con-
tracts to reduce volatility in the cost of gas it purchases for retail
core-market customers. At September 30, 2007 and 2006, Gas

Utility had $6.6 million and $2.7 million, respectively, of restricted
cash associated with natural gas futures accounts with brokers.

Electric Utility purchases its electric power needs from elec-
tricity suppliers under fixed-price energy and capacity contracts
and, to a much lesser extent, on the spot market. Wholesale
prices for electricity can be volatile especially during periods of
high demand or tight supply. As previously mentioned and in
accordance with POLR settlements approved by the PUC,
Electric Utility may increase its POLR rates up to certain limits
through December 31, 2009. Electric Utility’s fixed-price contracts
with electricity suppliers mitigate most risks associated with the
POLR service rate limits in effect through December 31, 2009.
With respect to its existing fixed-price power contracts, should
any of the counterparties fail to provide electric power under the
terms of such contracts, any increases in the cost of replacement
power could negatively impact Electric Utility results. In order to
reduce this nonperformance risk, Electric Utility has diversified its
purchases across several suppliers and entered into bilateral col-
lateral arrangements with certain of them. From time to time,
Electric Utility enters into electric price swap agreements to
reduce the volatility in the cost of a portion of its anticipated elec-
tricity requirements. At September 30, 2007, Electric Utility had
an electric price swap agreement associated with purchases of a
portion of electricity anticipated to occur through December 2007.

In order to manage market price risk relating to substantially all
of Energy Services’ fixed-price sales contracts for natural gas,
Energy Services purchases exchange-traded and over-the-counter
natural gas futures contracts or enters into fixed-price supply
arrangements. Energy Services’ exchange-traded natural gas
futures contracts are guaranteed by the New York Mercantile
Exchange (“NYMEX”) and have nominal credit risk. The change in
market value of these contracts generally requires daily cash
deposits in margin accounts with brokers. At September 30, 2007
and 2006, Energy Services had $6.2 million and $11.5 million,
respectively, of restricted cash on deposit in such margin accounts.
Although Energy Services’ fixed-price supply arrangements miti-
gate most risks associated with its fixed-price sales contracts,
should any of the natural gas suppliers under these arrangements
fail to perform, increases, if any, in the cost of replacement natural
gas would adversely impact Energy Services’ results. In order to
reduce this risk of supplier nonperformance, Energy Services has
diversified its purchases across a number of suppliers.

UGID has entered into fixed-price sales agreements for a por-
tion of the electricity expected to be generated by its interests in
electric generation assets. In the event that these generation
assets would not be able to produce all of the electricity needed
to supply electricity under these agreements, UGID would be
required to purchase such electricity on the spot market or under
contract with other electricity suppliers. Accordingly, increases in
the cost of replacement power could negatively impact the
Company’s results.

Asset Management has entered and may continue to enter
into fixed-price sales agreements for a portion of its propane
sales. In order to manage the market price risk relating to sub-
stantially all of its fixed-price sales contracts for propane, Asset
Management enters into price swap and option contracts.
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We have both fixed-rate and variable-rate debt. Changes in
interest rates impact the cash flows of variable-rate debt but gen-
erally do not impact its fair value. Conversely, changes in interest
rates impact the fair value of fixed-rate debt but do not impact
their cash flows.

Our variable-rate debt includes borrowings under AmeriGas
OLP’s Credit Agreement, UGI Utilities’ revolving credit agreement
and a substantial portion of Antargaz’ and Flaga’s debt. These
debt agreements have interest rates that are generally indexed to
short-term market interest rates. As previously mentioned,
Antargaz has effectively fixed the underlying euribor interest rate
on its variable-rate debt through March 2011 and Flaga has fixed
the underlying euribor interest rate on a substantial portion of its
term loan through September 2011 through the use of interest
rate swaps. At September 30, 2007 and 2006, combined borrow-
ings outstanding under agreements, excluding Antargaz’ and
Flaga’s effectively fixed-rate debt, totaled $199.0 million and
$287.0 million, respectively. Excluding the fixed portions of
Antargaz’ and Flaga’s variable-rate debt, and based upon weight-
ed average borrowings outstanding under variable-rate agree-
ments during fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006, an increase in short-
term interest rates of 100 basis points (1%) would have
increased our fiscal 2007 interest expense by $1.8 million and
$2.1 million, respectively.

The remainder of our debt outstanding is subject to fixed rates
of interest. A 100 basis point increase in market interest rates
would result in decreases in the fair value of this fixed-rate debt
of $88.4 million and $97.5 million at September 30, 2007 and
2006, respectively. A 100 basis point decrease in market interest
rates would result in increases in the fair value of this fixed-rate
debt of $98.1 million and $109.1 million at September 30, 2007
and 2006, respectively.

Long-term debt associated with our domestic businesses is
typically issued at fixed rates of interest based upon market rates
for debt having similar terms and credit ratings. As these long-
term debt issues mature, we may refinance such debt with new
debt having interest rates reflecting then-current market condi-
tions. This debt may have an interest rate that is more or less than
the refinanced debt. In order to reduce interest rate risk associat-
ed with near to medium term forecasted issuances of fixed-rate
debt, we may enter into interest rate protection agreements.

Our primary exchange rate risk is associated with the U.S. dol-
lar versus the euro. The U.S. dollar value of our foreign-denominat-
ed assets and liabilities will fluctuate with changes in the associat-
ed foreign currency exchange rates. We use derivative instru-
ments to hedge portions of our net investment in foreign sub-
sidiaries (“net investment hedges”). Realized gains or losses asso-
ciated with net investments in foreign operations remain in other
comprehensive income until such foreign operations are liquidat-
ed. With respect to our net investments in Flaga and Antargaz, a
10% decline in the value of the euro versus the U.S. dollar, exclud-
ing the effects of any net investment hedges, would reduce their
aggregate net book value by approximately $56.1 million, which
amount would be reflected in other comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes the fair values of unsettled
market risk sensitive derivative instruments held at September
30, 2007 and 2006. Fair values reflect the estimated amounts
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that we would receive or (pay) to terminate the contracts at the
reporting date based upon quoted market prices or the fair value
of comparable contracts at September 30, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. The table also includes the changes in fair value that
would result if there were a 10% adverse change in (1) the mar-
ket price of propane; (2) the market price of natural gas; (3) the
market price of electricity; (4) the three-month LIBOR and the
three- and six-month Euribor and; (5) the value of the euro versus
the U.S. dollar. Gas Utility’s exchange traded natural gas call
option and futures contracts are excluded from the table below
because any associated net gains or losses are included in Gas
Utility’s PGC recovery mechanism.

Change in 
Fair Value Fair Value

(Millions of dollars)

September 30, 2007:
Propane commodity price risk $ 18.3 $(18.5)
Natural gas commodity price risk (1.4) (8.6)
Electricity commodity price risk 0.8 (0.3)
Interest rate risk 21.3 (12.6)
Foreign currency exchange rate risk (14.7) (27.1)

September 30, 2006:
Propane commodity price risk $(26.4) $(21.2)
Natural gas commodity price risk (6.0) (10.4)
Electricity commodity price risk 5.2 (1.3)
Interest rate risk 14.4 (12.9)
Foreign currency exchange rate risk 2.4 (13.8)

Because the Company’s derivative instruments generally qual-
ify as hedges under SFAS 133, we expect that changes in the
fair value of derivative instruments used to manage commodity,
currency or interest rate market risk would be substantially off-
set by gains or losses on the associated anticipated transactions.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures
in compliance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires the selection and applica-
tion of accounting principles appropriate to the relevant facts
and circumstances of the Company’s operations and the use of
estimates made by management. The Company has identified
the following critical accounting policies and estimates that are
most important to the portrayal of the Company’s financial con-
dition and results of operations. Changes in these policies and
estimates could have a material effect on the financial state-
ments. The application of these accounting policies and esti-
mates necessarily requires management’s most subjective or
complex judgments regarding estimates and projected out-
comes of future events which could have a material impact on
the financial statements. Management has reviewed these criti-
cal accounting policies, and the estimates and assumptions
associated with them, with the Company’s Audit Committee. In
addition, management has reviewed the following disclosures
regarding the application of these critical accounting policies
and estimates with the Audit Committee.
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Litigation Accruals and Environmental Remediation Liabilities.

We are involved in litigation regarding pending claims and legal
actions that arise in the normal course of our businesses. In
addition, UGI Utilities and its former subsidiaries owned and
operated a number of MGPs in Pennsylvania and elsewhere, and
UGIPNG owned and operated a number of MGP sites located in
Pennsylvania, at which hazardous substances may be present. In
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, the Company establishes reserves for
pending claims and legal actions or environmental remediation
obligations when it is probable that a liability exists and the
amount or range of amounts can be reasonably estimated.
Reasonable estimates involve management judgments based on
a broad range of information and prior experience. These judg-
ments are reviewed quarterly as more information is received
and the amounts reserved are updated as necessary. Such esti-
mated reserves may differ materially from the actual liability and
such reserves may change materially as more information
becomes available and estimated reserves are adjusted.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities. Gas Utility and Electric Utility
are subject to regulation by the PUC. In accordance with SFAS 71,
we record the effects of rate regulation in our financial statements
as regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities. We continually assess
whether the regulatory assets are probable of future recovery by
evaluating the regulatory environment, recent rate orders and pub-
lic statements issued by the PUC, and the status of any pending
deregulation legislation. If future recovery of regulatory assets
ceases to be probable, the elimination of those regulatory assets
would adversely impact our results of operations and cash flows.
As of September 30, 2007, our regulatory assets totaled $103.8
million. See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Depreciation and Amortization of Long-Lived Assets. We com-
pute depreciation on UGI Utilities’ property, plant and equipment
on a straight-line basis over the average remaining lives of its vari-
ous classes of depreciable property and on our other property,
plant and equipment on a straight-line basis over estimated useful
lives generally ranging from 2 to 40 years. We also use amortiza-
tion methods and determine asset values of intangible assets
other than goodwill using reasonable assumptions and projec-
tions. Changes in the estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and changes in intangible asset amortization methods
or values could have a material effect on our results of operations.
As of September 30, 2007, our net property, plant and equipment
totaled $2,397.4 million and we recorded depreciation expense of
$150.6 million during fiscal 2007. As of September 30, 2007, our
net intangible assets totaled $173.1 million and we recorded intan-
gible amortization expense of $16.9 million during fiscal 2007.

Purchase Price Allocation. From time to time, the Company
enters into material business combinations. In accordance with
SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations” (“SFAS 141”), the pur-
chase price is allocated to the various assets acquired and liabili-
ties assumed at their estimated fair value. Fair values of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are based upon available informa-
tion and we may involve an independent third party to perform an
appraisal. Estimating fair values can be a complex and judgmental
area and most commonly impacts property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets, including those with indefinite lives.
Generally, we have, if necessary, up to one year from the acquisi-
tion date to finalize the purchase price allocation.

Impairment of Goodwill. Certain of the Company’s business
units have goodwill resulting from purchase business combina-
tions. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142”), each of our reporting units with
goodwill is required to perform impairment tests annually or
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the value of
goodwill may be impaired. In order to perform these impairment
tests, management must determine the reporting unit’s fair value
using quoted market prices or, in the absence of quoted market
prices, valuation techniques which use discounted estimates of
future cash flows to be generated by the reporting unit. These
cash flow estimates involve management judgments based on a
broad range of information and historical results. To the extent
estimated cash flows are revised downward, the reporting unit
may be required to write down all or a portion of its goodwill
which would adversely impact our results of operations. As of
September 30, 2007, our goodwill totaled $1,498.8 million.

Pension Plan Assumptions. The costs of providing benefits
under our Pension Plans is dependent on historical information
such as employee age, length of service, level of compensation
and the actual rate of return on plan assets. In addition, certain
assumptions relating to the future are used to determine pension
expense including the discount rate applied to benefit obligations,
the expected rate of return on plan assets and the rate of com-
pensation increase, among others. Assets of the Pension Plans
are held in trust and consist principally of equity and fixed income
mutual funds. Changes in plan assumptions as well as fluctua-
tions in actual equity or bond market returns could have a materi-
al impact on future pension costs. We believe the two most criti-
cal assumptions are the expected rate of return on plan assets
and the discount rate. A decrease in the expected rate of return
on plan assets of 50 basis points to a rate of 8.0% would result
in an increase in pre-tax pension expense of approximately $1.8
million in fiscal 2008. A decrease in the discount rate of 50 basis
points to a rate of 5.9% would result in an increase in pre-tax
pension expense of approximately $1.7 million in fiscal 2008.
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Income Taxes. We use the asset and liability method of account-
ing for income taxes. Under this method, income tax expense is
recognized for the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the
current year and for deferred tax liabilities and assets for the
future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in
our financial statements or tax returns. We use assumptions, judg-
ments and estimates to determine our current provision for
income taxes. We also use assumptions, judgments and esti-
mates to determine our deferred tax assets and liabilities and any
valuation allowance to be recorded against a deferred tax asset.
Our assumptions, judgments and estimates relative to the current
provision for income tax give consideration to current tax laws, our
interpretation of current tax laws and possible outcomes of cur-
rent and future audits conducted by foreign and domestic tax
authorities. Changes in tax law or our interpretation of such and
the resolution of current and future tax audits could significantly
impact the amounts provided for income taxes in our consolidated
financial statements. Our assumptions, judgments and estimates
relative to the amount of deferred income taxes take into account
estimates of the amount of future taxable income. Actual taxable
income or future estimates of taxable income could render our
current assumptions, judgments and estimates inaccurate.
Changes in the assumptions, judgments and estimates men-
tioned above could cause our actual income tax obligations to dif-
fer significantly from our estimates. As of September 30, 2007,
our net deferred tax liabilities totaled $515.8 million.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
Below is a listing of recently issued accounting pronouncements
by the Financial Accounting Standards Board. See Note 1 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional discussion of
these pronouncements.

Title of Guidance Month of Issue Effective Date

SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for 
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities –
Including an amendment of FASB Statement 
No. 115” February 2007 fiscal 2009

SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measures” September 2006 fiscal 2009

FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for 
Uncertainty in Income Taxes” June 2006 fiscal 2008

Forward-Looking Statements
Information contained in this Financial Review and elsewhere in
this Annual Report may contain forward-looking statements
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933
and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Such
statements use forward-looking words such as “believe,”
“plan,” “anticipate,” “continue,” “estimate,” “expect,” “may,”
“will,” or other similar words. These statements discuss plans,
strategies, events or developments that we expect or anticipate
will or may occur in the future.

A forward-looking statement may include a statement of the
assumptions or bases underlying the forward-looking state-
ment. We believe that we have chosen these assumptions or
bases in good faith and that they are reasonable. However, we
caution you that actual results almost always vary from
assumed facts or bases, and the differences between actual
results and assumed facts or bases can be material, depending
on the circumstances. When considering forward-looking state-
ments, you should keep in mind the following important factors
which could affect our future results and could cause those
results to differ materially from those expressed in our forward-
looking statements: (1) adverse weather conditions resulting in
reduced demand; (2) cost volatility and availability of propane
and other LPG, oil, electricity, and natural gas and the capacity
to transport product to our market areas; (3) changes in domes-
tic and foreign laws and regulations, including safety, tax and
accounting matters; (4) the impact of pending and future legal
proceedings; (5) competitive pressures from the same and
alternative energy sources; (6) failure to acquire new customers
thereby reducing or limiting any increase in revenues; (7) liability
for environmental claims; (8) increased customer conservation
measures due to high energy prices and improvements in ener-
gy efficiency and technology resulting in reduced demand; (9)
adverse labor relations; (10) large customer, counter-party or
supplier defaults; (11) liability in excess of insurance coverage
for personal injury and property damage arising from explosions
and other catastrophic events, including acts of terrorism,
resulting from operating hazards and risks incidental to generat-
ing and distributing electricity and transporting, storing and dis-
tributing natural gas, propane and LPG; (12) political, regulatory
and economic conditions in the United States and in foreign
countries, including foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations,
particularly the euro; (13) reduced access to capital markets and
interest rate fluctuations; (14) reduced distributions from sub-
sidiaries; and (15) the timing and success of the Company’s
efforts to develop new business opportunities.

These factors are not necessarily all of the important factors
that could cause actual results to differ materially from those
expressed in any of our forward-looking statements. Other
unknown or unpredictable factors could also have material
adverse effects on future results. We undertake no obligation to
update publicly any forward-looking statement whether as a
result of new information or future events except as required by
the federal securities laws.



30

UGI Corporation 2007 Annual Report

Report of Management

Financial Statements

The Company’s consolidated financial statements and other
financial information contained in this Annual Report are pre-
pared by management, which is responsible for their fairness,
integrity and objectivity. The consolidated financial statements
and related information were prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America and include amounts that are based on management’s
best judgments and estimates.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is composed of
three members, none of whom is an employee of the Company.
This Committee is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process and the adequacy of internal control and for monitoring the
independence and performance of the Company’s independent reg-
istered public accounting firm and internal auditors. The Committee
is also responsible for maintaining direct channels of communication
among the Board of Directors, management, and both the inde-
pendent registered public accounting firm and internal auditors.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our independent registered
public accounting firm, is engaged to perform audits of our con-
solidated financial statements. These audits are performed in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our independent
registered public accounting firm was given unrestricted access
to all financial records and related data, including minutes of all
meetings of the Board of Directors and committees of the
Board. The Company believes that all representations made to
the independent registered public accounting firm during their
audits were valid and appropriate.

Management’s Report on 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining ade-
quate internal control over financial reporting for the Company. In
order to evaluate the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, management has conducted an assessment, including test-
ing, of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting,
using the criteria in Internal Control – Integrated Framework,
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COSO Framework”).

Internal control over financial reporting refers to the process
designed by, and under the supervision of, our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and includes policies and procedures that,
among other things, provide reasonable assurance that assets are
safeguarded and that transactions are executed in accordance with
management’s authorization and are properly recorded to permit the
preparation of reliable financial information. Because of its inherent
limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent
or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls
may become inadequate due to changing conditions, or the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Based on its assessment, management has concluded that the
Company maintained effective internal control over financial report-
ing as of September 30, 2007, based on the COSO Framework. In
our 2006 Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting, we excluded the PG Energy business from our assess-
ment of internal control over financial reporting as of September 30,
2006 because it was acquired by a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company in a purchase business combination on August 24, 2006.
The PG Energy business total assets represented approximately
13% of total consolidated assets and its total revenues represented
less than 1% of total consolidated revenues as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2006. Such exclusion is permitted based
upon guidance of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

Lon R. Greenberg
Chief Executive Officer

Peter Kelly
Chief Financial Officer

Michael J. Cuzzolina
Chief Accounting Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of UGI Corporation:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
and the related consolidated statements of income, stockhold-
ers' equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of UGI Corporation and its subsidiaries at
September 30, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their opera-
tions and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended September 30, 2007 in conformity with account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control over financial report-
ing as of September 30, 2007 based on criteria established in
Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). The Company's management is responsi-
ble for these financial statements, for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
included in Management's Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
these financial statements and the Company's internal control
based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reason-
able assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement and whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.
Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and eval-
uating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of
internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of inter-
nal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a rea-
sonable basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Notes 1 and 5 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company changed the manner in which it
accounts for defined benefit pension and other postretirement
plans as of September 30, 2007 and, as discussed in Notes 1
and 8, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts
for equity-based compensation as of October 1, 2005.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of finan-
cial statements for external purposes in accordance with gener-
ally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal con-
trol over financial reporting includes those policies and proce-
dures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in rea-
sonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reason-
able assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accor-
dance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding pre-
vention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over
financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inade-
quate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In the 2006 Management's Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting, management excluded the PG Energy
 business from its assessment of internal control over financial
reporting as of September 30, 2006 because it was acquired by
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company in a purchase busi-
ness combination on August 24, 2006. We had also excluded
the PG Energy business from our audit of internal control over
financial reporting as of September 30, 2006. The PG Energy
business total assets represented approximately 13% of total
consolidated assets and its total revenues represented less
than 1% of total consolidated revenues as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2006.

November 29, 2007
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Millions of dollars)

September 30,

Assets 2007 2006

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 251.8 $ 186.2
Restricted cash 12.8 14.2
Accounts receivable (less allowances for doubtful accounts of $37.7 and $38.0, respectively) 459.8 387.2
Accrued utility revenues 17.9 16.6
Inventories 359.5 340.4
Deferred income taxes 9.6 55.9
Income taxes recoverable 7.8 11.0
Utility regulatory assets 14.8 –

Derivative financial instruments 20.3 5.8
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 19.3 23.3

Total current assets 1,173.6 1,040.6

Property, Plant and Equipment

AmeriGas Propane 1,321.6 1,211.8
International Propane 724.5 588.0
UGI Utilities 1,620.0 1,553.9
Other 118.5 107.6

3,784.6 3,461.3
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (1,387.2) (1,246.6)

Net property, plant, and equipment 2,397.4 2,214.7

Other Assets

Goodwill 1,498.8 1,418.2
Intangible assets (less accumulated amortization of $84.2 and $62.8, respectively) 173.1 163.3
Utility regulatory assets 89.0 72.9
Investments in equity investees 63.9 58.2
Other assets 106.9 112.6

Total assets $ 5,502.7 $ 5,080.5

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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September 30,

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity 2007 2006

Current Liabilities

Current maturities of long-term debt $ 14.7 $ 31.9
UGI Utilities bank loans 190.0 216.0
Other bank loans 8.9 9.4
Accounts payable 420.8 373.0
Employee compensation and benefits accrued 79.4 75.4
Dividends and interest accrued 38.5 31.1
Deposits and advances 157.2 145.0
Derivative financial instruments 14.3 27.6
Deferred income taxes 19.0 –
Other current liabilities 114.7 117.2

Total current liabilities 1,057.5 1,026.6

Debt and Other Liabilities

Long-term debt 2,038.8 1,965.0
Deferred income taxes 506.4 491.5
Deferred investment tax credits 6.4 6.8
Other noncurrent liabilities 379.5 351.5

Total liabilities 3,988.6 3,841.4

Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)

Minority interests, principally in AmeriGas Partners 192.2 139.5

Common Stockholders’ Equity

Common Stock, without par value 
(authorized – 300,000,000 shares; issued – 115,152,994 shares) 831.6 807.5

Retained earnings 497.5 370.0
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 57.7 (3.8)

1,386.8 1,173.7
Treasury stock, at cost (64.9) (74.1)

Total common stockholders’ equity 1,321.9 1,099.6

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $5,502.7 $5,080.5

UGI Corporation 2007 Annual Report
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Year Ended September 30,

2007 2006 2005

Revenues

AmeriGas Propane $ 2,277.4 $ 2,119.3 $1,963.3
International Propane 800.4 945.5 943.9
UGI Utilities 1,166.8 822.0 681.2
Energy Services and other 1,232.3 1,334.2 1,300.3

5,476.9 5,221.0 4,888.7

Costs and Expenses

Cost of sales 3,730.8 3,657.9 3,306.0
Operating and administrative expenses 1,055.8 969.2 966.6
Utility taxes other than income taxes 17.7 14.3 13.4
Depreciation and amortization 169.2 148.7 146.4
Other income, net (77.9) (36.8) (46.7)

4,895.6 4,753.3 4,385.7

Operating Income 581.3 467.7 503.0
Loss from equity investees (3.8) (2.2) (2.6)
Loss on extinguishments of debt – (18.5) (33.6)
Interest expense (139.6) (123.6) (130.2)

Income before Income Taxes and Minority Interests 437.9 323.4 336.6
Income taxes (126.7) (98.5) (119.2)
Minority interests, principally in AmeriGas Partners (106.9) (48.7) (29.9)

Net Income $ 204.3 $ 176.2 $ 187.5

Earnings Per Common Share:

Basic $ 1.92 $ 1.67 $ 1.81

Diluted $ 1.89 $ 1.65 $ 1.77

Average Common Shares Outstanding (millions):

Basic 106.451 105.455 103.877

Diluted 107.941 106.727 105.723

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(Millions of dollars, except per share amounts)
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Year Ended September 30,

2007 2006 2005

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net income $ 204.3 $ 176.2 $ 187.5
Reconcile to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 169.2 148.7 146.4
Gain on sale of Arizona storage facility (46.1) – –
Minority interests principally in AmeriGas Partners 106.9 48.7 29.9
Deferred income taxes, net 27.1 7.4 12.1
Provision for uncollectible accounts 26.7 25.0 25.1
Loss on extinguishments of debt – 18.5 33.6
Tax benefit on exercise of stock options – – 10.2
Stock-based compensation expense 9.1 6.9 –
Net change in settled accumulated other comprehensive income 21.5 (37.1) (3.8)
Other, net (0.3) 10.3 (14.5)
Net change in:

Accounts receivable and accrued utility revenues (80.5) 34.8 (81.5)
Inventories (9.1) (31.9) (29.4)
Deferred fuel costs (25.7) (17.9) 9.5
Accounts payable 30.3 (61.1) 70.0
Other current assets and liabilities 22.8 (49.1) 42.6

Net cash provided by operating activities 456.2 279.4 437.7

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Expenditures for property, plant and equipment (223.1) (191.7) (158.4)
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired (78.8) (590.4) (33.3)
Net proceeds from disposals of assets 3.2 8.8 16.7
Proceeds from sale of Arizona storage facility 49.0 – –
PG Energy Acquisition working capital adjustment 23.7 – –
Net proceeds from sale of Energy Ventures – 13.3 –
Investments in ZLH – (10.1) –
Decrease (increase) in short-term investments 0.6 69.4 (20.0)
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash 1.4 (9.3) (4.9)
Other, net 0.2 2.5 3.6

Net cash used by investing activities (223.8) (707.5) (196.3)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Dividends on UGI Common Stock (76.8) (72.5) (67.4)
Distributions on AmeriGas Partners publicly held Common Units (85.0) (73.6) (66.6)
Issuances of debt including bank loans with maturities greater than three months 20.0 1,145.4 576.0
Repayments of debt including bank loans with maturities greater than three months (30.6) (918.3) (544.4)
(Decrease) increase in UGI Utilities bank loans with maturities of three months or less (26.0) 204.8 (49.7)
Other bank loans (decrease) increase (1.6) 2.2 (0.3)
Redemption of UGI Utilities preferred shares subject to mandatory redemption – – (20.0)
Minority interest activity 1.4 – –
Issuances of AmeriGas Partners Common Units – – 72.7
Excess tax benefits from equity-based payment arrangements 3.7 0.9 –
Issuances of UGI Common Stock 16.4 10.8 27.1

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities (178.5) 299.7 (72.6)

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash 11.7 4.5 (8.3)

Cash and cash equivalents increase (decrease) $ 65.6 $ (123.9) $ 160.5

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

End of year $ 251.8 $ 186.2 $ 310.1
Beginning of year 186.2 310.1 149.6

Increase (decrease) $ 65.6 $ (123.9) $ 160.5

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Accumulated Notes
Other Receivable

Common Retained Comprehensive from Treasury
Stock Earnings Income (Loss) Employees Stock Total

Balance September 30, 2004 $762.8 $146.2 $22.6 $(0.2) $ (97.3) $ 834.1
Net income 187.5 187.5
Net gain on derivative instruments 

(net of tax of $7.9) 12.9 12.9
Reclassification of net gains on

derivative instruments (net of tax of $2.1) (2.7) (2.7)
Foreign currency translation adjustments

(net of tax of $6.5) (16.3) (16.3)

Comprehensive income (loss) 187.5 (6.1) 181.4
Cash dividends on Common Stock

($0.65 per share) (67.4) (67.4)
Common Stock issued:

Employee and director plans 17.2 17.7 34.9
Dividend reinvestment plan 1.6 0.8 2.4

Net gain in connection with issuances of units 
by AmeriGas Partners (net of tax of $16.0) 12.0 12.0

Payments on notes receivable from employees 0.2 0.2

Balance September 30, 2005 793.6 266.3 16.5 – (78.8) 997.6
Net income 176.2 176.2
Net loss on derivative instruments 

(net of tax of $43.7) (63.7) (63.7)
Reclassification of net losses on

derivative instruments (net of tax of $13.2) 17.5 17.5
Foreign currency translation adjustments

(net of tax of $8.1) 25.9 25.9

Comprehensive income (loss) 176.2 (20.3) 155.9
Cash dividends on Common Stock

($0.69 per share) (72.5) (72.5)
Common Stock issued:

Employee and director plans 4.7 3.8 8.5
Dividend reinvestment plan 1.4 0.9 2.3

Excess tax benefits realized on 
equity-based compensation 0.9 0.9

Stock-based compensation expense 6.9 6.9

Balance September 30, 2006 807.5 370.0 (3.8) – (74.1) 1,099.6
Net income 204.3 204.3
Net loss on derivative instruments 

(net of tax of $7.6) (11.1) (11.1)
Reclassification of net losses on

derivative instruments (net of tax of $20.8) 30.1 30.1
Foreign currency translation adjustments

(net of tax of $9.4) 53.7 53.7

Comprehensive income 204.3 72.7 277.0
Adjustment to initially apply SFAS 158

(net of tax of $7.7) (11.2) (11.2)
Cash dividends on Common Stock

($0.723 per share) (76.8) (76.8)
Common Stock issued:

Employee and director plans 10.2 8.5 18.7
Dividend reinvestment plan 1.6 0.7 2.3

Excess tax benefits realized on 
equity-based compensation 3.7 3.7

Stock-based compensation expense 8.6 8.6

Balance September 30, 2007 $831.6 $497.5 $ 57.7 $ – $(64.9) $1,321.9

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Millions of dollars and euros, except per share amounts and where indicated otherwise)

Note 1 – Organization and 
Significant Accounting Policies
Organization. UGI Corporation (“UGI”) is a holding company
that, through subsidiaries and joint-venture affiliates, distributes
and markets energy products and related services. In the
United States, we own and operate (1) retail propane distribu-
tion businesses; (2) natural gas and electric distribution utilities;
(3) electricity generation facilities; and (4) energy marketing and
related businesses. Internationally, we distribute liquefied petro-
leum gases (“LPG”) in France, central and eastern Europe and
China. We refer to UGI and its consolidated subsidiaries collec-
tively as “the Company” or “we.”

We conduct a national propane distribution business through
AmeriGas Partners, L.P. (“AmeriGas Partners”) and its principal
operating subsidiaries AmeriGas Propane, L.P. (“AmeriGas
OLP”) and AmeriGas OLP’s subsidiary, AmeriGas Eagle
Propane, L.P. (“Eagle OLP”). AmeriGas Partners, AmeriGas OLP
and Eagle OLP are Delaware limited partnerships. UGI’s wholly
owned second-tier subsidiary AmeriGas Propane, Inc. (the
“General Partner”) serves as the general partner of AmeriGas
Partners and AmeriGas OLP. AmeriGas OLP and Eagle OLP (col-
lectively referred to as “the Operating Partnerships”) comprise
the largest retail propane distribution business in the United
States serving residential, commercial, industrial, motor fuel
and agricultural customers from locations in 46 states. We refer
to AmeriGas Partners and its subsidiaries together as “the
Partnership” and the General Partner and its subsidiaries,
including the Partnership, as “AmeriGas Propane.” At
September 30, 2007, the General Partner and its wholly owned
subsidiary Petrolane Incorporated (“Petrolane”) collectively held
a 1% general partner interest and 42.9% limited partner inter-
est in AmeriGas Partners, and an effective 44.5% ownership
interest in AmeriGas OLP and Eagle OLP. Our limited partner-
ship interest in AmeriGas Partners comprises 24,691,209
AmeriGas Partners Common Units (“Common Units”). The
remaining 56.1% interest in AmeriGas Partners comprises
32,297,493 publicly held Common Units representing limited
partner interests.

The Partnership has no employees. Employees of the
General Partner conduct, direct and manage the activities of
AmeriGas Partners and AmeriGas OLP. The General Partner also
provides management and administrative services to AmeriGas
Eagle Holdings, Inc., the general partner of Eagle OLP, under a
management services agreement. The General Partner is reim-
bursed monthly for all direct and indirect expenses it incurs on
behalf of the Partnership including all General Partner employee
compensation costs and a portion of UGI employee compensa-
tion and administrative costs. Although the Partnership’s operat-
ing income comprises a significant portion of our consolidated
operating income, the Partnership’s impact on our consolidated
net income is considerably less due to the Partnership’s signifi-
cant minority interest.

Our wholly owned subsidiary UGI Enterprises, Inc.
(“Enterprises”) through subsidiaries (1) conducts an LPG distri-
bution business in France; (2) conducts LPG distribution busi-
nesses and participates in an LPG joint-venture business in cen-
tral and eastern Europe (collectively, “Flaga”); and (3) partici-

pates in an LPG joint-venture business in the Nantong region of
China. Our LPG distribution business in France is conducted
through Antargaz, a subsidiary of AGZ Holding (“AGZ”), and its
operating subsidiaries (collectively, “Antargaz”). We refer to our
foreign operations collectively as “International Propane.”
During fiscal 2006, we formed a Dutch private limited liability
company, UGI International Holdings, B.V., to hold our interests
in Antargaz and Flaga.

Our natural gas and electric distribution utility businesses are
conducted through our wholly owned subsidiary, UGI Utilities,
Inc. and its subsidiary, UGI Penn Natural Gas, Inc. (“UGIPNG”).
UGI Utilities, Inc. owns and operates (1) natural gas distribution
utilities in eastern and northeastern Pennsylvania (“UGI Gas”
and “PNG Gas,” respectively) and (2) an electric distribution utili-
ty in northeastern Pennsylvania (“Electric Utility”). On August
24, 2006, UGI Utilities, Inc., through UGIPNG, acquired the nat-
ural gas business of PG Energy, an operating division of
Southern Union Company (the “PG Energy Acquisition”) (see
Note 2). UGI Gas and PNG Gas (collectively, “Gas Utility”) and
Electric Utility are subject to regulation by the Pennsylvania
Public Utility Commission (“PUC”). The term “UGI Utilities” is
used as an abbreviated reference to UGI Utilities, Inc. or UGI
Utilities, Inc. and its subsidiaries, including UGIPNG.

Through other subsidiaries, Enterprises also conducts an
energy marketing business primarily in the Eastern United
States (collectively, “Energy Services”). Energy Services’ wholly
owned subsidiary, UGI Development Company (“UGID”), owns
and operates a 48-megawatt coal-fired electric generation sta-
tion located in northeastern Pennsylvania and owns an approxi-
mate 6% interest in a 1,711-megawatt coal-fired electric genera-
tion station located in western Pennsylvania. In addition, Energy
Services’ wholly owned subsidiary UGI Asset Management,
Inc., through its subsidiary Atlantic Energy, Inc. (collectively,
“Asset Management”) owns a propane storage terminal located
in Chesapeake, Virginia. Through other Enterprises’ and UGI
Utilities’ subsidiaries, we own and operate heating, ventilation,
air-conditioning, refrigeration and electrical contracting services
businesses in the Middle Atlantic states (“HVAC/R”).

UGI was incorporated in Pennsylvania in 1991. UGI is a
“holding company” under the Public Utility Holding Company
Act of 2005 (“PUHCA 2005”). PUHCA 2005 and the imple-
menting regulations of the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (“FERC”) give FERC access to certain holding
company books and records and impose certain accounting,
record-keeping, and reporting requirements on holding compa-
nies. PUHCA 2005 also provides state utility regulatory com-
missions with access to holding company books and records in
certain circumstances. Pursuant to a waiver granted in accor-
dance with FERC’s regulations on the basis of UGI’s status as a
single-state holding company system, UGI is not subject to cer-
tain of the accounting, record-keeping, and reporting require-
ments prescribed by FERC’s regulations.

Consolidation Principles. The consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of UGI and its controlled subsidiary com-
panies which, except for the Partnership, are majority owned.
We eliminate all significant intercompany accounts and transac-
tions when we consolidate. We report the public’s limited part-



ner interests in the Partnership and other parties’ interests in
consolidated but less than 100% owned subsidiaries as minori-
ty interests. Other entities in which we own 50% or less and in
which we exercise significant influence over operating and
financial policies (“equity investees”) are accounted for by the
equity method and presented on a one-line basis. Entities in
which we own less than 20% are accounted for on the cost
basis of accounting. Such cost basis investments totaled $52.2
and $46.5 at September 30, 2007 and 2006 and are included in
“Other Assets” in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Loss from our equity investees was $3.8 in fiscal 2007, $2.2
in fiscal 2006 and $2.6 in fiscal 2005. Undistributed net earnings
of our equity investees included in consolidated retained earn-
ings were not material at September 30, 2007, 2006 or 2005.
Summarized financial information for our equity investments are
not presented because they are not material to our Consolidated
Balance Sheets or Consolidated Statements of Income.

Gains resulting from issuances and sales of AmeriGas
Partners’ Common Units to third parties are recorded as increas-
es to common stockholders’ equity with corresponding decreas-
es to minority interests in accordance with U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 51,
“Accounting for Sales of Common Stock by a Subsidiary” (“SAB
51”). These gains result when the public offering price of the
AmeriGas Partners Common Units exceeds the associated carry-
ing amount of our investment in the Partnership on the date of
sale. We record deferred income tax liabilities associated with
these gains (see Note 14).

Reclassifications. We have reclassified certain prior-year bal-
ances to conform to the current-year presentation.

Use of Estimates. We make estimates and assumptions when
preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting
 principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses, as well as the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results
could differ from these estimates.

Regulated Utility Operations. We account for the operations of
Gas Utility and Electric Utility in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 71, “Accounting for
the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation” (“SFAS 71”). SFAS 71
requires us to record the effects of rate regulation in the finan-
cial statements. SFAS 71 allows us to defer expenses and rev-
enues on the balance sheet as regulatory assets and liabilities
when it is probable that those expenses and revenue will be
allowed in the ratemaking process in a period different from the
period in which they would have been reflected in the income
statement of an unregulated company. These deferred assets
and liabilities are then flowed through the income statement in
the period in which the same amounts are included in rates and
recovered from or refunded to customers. As required by SFAS
71, we monitor our regulatory and competitive environments to
determine whether the recovery of our regulatory assets contin-
ues to be probable. If we were to determine that recovery of
these regulatory assets is no longer probable, such assets would

be written off against earnings. We believe that SFAS 71 contin-
ues to apply to our regulated utility operations and that the
recovery of our regulatory assets is probable.

Regulatory assets and liabilities associated with Gas Utility
and Electric Utility included in our Consolidated Balance Sheets
at September 30 comprise the following:

2007 2006

Regulatory assets:
Income taxes recoverable $ 72.0 $64.3
Postretirement benefits 4.9 5.4
Environmental costs 8.3 –
Deferred fuel costs 14.8 –
Other 3.8 3.2

Total regulatory assets $103.8 $72.9

Regulatory liabilities:
Postretirement benefits $ 7.5 $ 3.8
Deferred fuel costs – 12.2

Total regulatory liabilities $ 7.5 $16.0

UGI Utilities’ regulatory liabilities relating to postretirement
benefits and deferred fuel costs are included in “other noncur-
rent liabilities” and “other current liabilities,” respectively, on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. UGI Utilities does not recover a
rate of return on its regulatory assets.

In an order entered on November 30, 2006, the PUC
approved a settlement of a PNG Gas base rate proceeding. The
settlement authorized PNG Gas to increase base rates $12.5
annually, or approximately 4%, effective December 2, 2006.

As a result of Pennsylvania’s Electricity Generation Customer
Choice and Competition Act that became effective January 1,
1997, all of Electric Utility’s customers are permitted to acquire
their electricity from entities other than Electric Utility. As of
September 30, 2007, none of Electric Utility’s customers have
chosen an alternative electricity generation supplier. Electric
Utility remains the provider of last resort (“POLR”) for its cus-
tomers that are not served by an alternate electric generation
provider. The terms and conditions under which Electric Utility
provides POLR service, and rules governing the rates that may
be charged for such service, have been established in a series
of PUC approved settlements, the latest of which became
effective June 23, 2006 (collectively, the “POLR Settlement”).

In accordance with the POLR Settlement, Electric Utility may
increase its POLR rates up to certain limits through December
31, 2009. Consistent with the terms of the POLR Settlement,
Electric Utility’s POLR rates increased 4.5% on January 1, 2005
and 3% on January 1, 2006. During fiscal 2007, Electric Utility
increased its POLR rates effective January 1, 2007 which
increased the average cost to a residential heating customer by
approximately 35% over such costs in effect during calendar
2006. New PUC default service regulations became effective on
September 15, 2007, but do not disturb Electric Utility’s POLR
Settlement through 2009. Under the default service regulations,
Electric Utility will be required to file a default service plan with
the PUC in 2008 that will establish the terms and conditions
under which it will offer POLR service commencing 2010.
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Derivative Instruments. SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133”),
as amended, establishes accounting and reporting standards for
derivative instruments and for hedging activities. It requires that
all derivative instruments be recognized as either assets or lia-
bilities and measured at fair value. The accounting for changes
in fair value depends upon the purpose of the derivative instru-
ment and whether it is designated and qualifies for hedge
accounting. For a detailed description of the derivative instru-
ments we use, our objectives for using them, and related sup-
plemental information required by SFAS 133, see Note 11.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. We define cash equiv-
alents as highly liquid investments with maturities of three
months or less when purchased. We record cash equivalents at
cost plus accrued interest, which approximates market value.
Restricted cash represents those cash balances in our natural gas
futures brokerage accounts which are restricted from withdrawal.

We paid interest totaling $127.4 in fiscal 2007, $129.3 in fiscal
2006 and $130.6 in fiscal 2005. We paid income taxes totaling
$93.5 in fiscal 2007, $142.6 in fiscal 2006 and $54.7 in fiscal 2005.

Revenue Recognition. We recognize revenues from the sale of
propane and other LPG principally as product is delivered to
customers. We record UGI Utilities’ regulated revenues for dis-
tribution service and related commodity charges provided to the
end of each month which includes an accrual for certain unbilled
amounts based upon estimated usage. We reflect the impact of
Gas Utility and Electric Utility rate increases or decreases at the
time they become effective. Energy Services records revenues
when energy products are delivered to customers. Revenue
from the sale of appliances and equipment is recognized at the
time of sale or installation.

We present revenue-related taxes collected from customers
and remitted to taxing authorities, principally sales and use
taxes, on a net basis. Electric Utility gross receipts taxes are
included in total revenues in accordance with regulatory practice.

Inventories. Our inventories are stated at the lower of cost or
market. We determine cost using an average cost method for
natural gas, propane and other LPG, specific identification for
appliances and the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method for all
other inventories.

Earnings Per Common Share. Basic earnings per share reflect
the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding.
Diluted earnings per share include the effects of dilutive stock
options and common stock awards. In the following table, we
present shares used in computing basic and diluted earnings
per share for fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005:

2007 2006 2005

(millions of shares)
Average common shares 

outstanding for basic computation 106.451 105.455 103.877
Incremental shares issuable for stock 

options and common stock awards 1.490 1.272 1.846

Average common shares outstanding for
diluted computation 107.941 106.727 105.723

Income Taxes. AmeriGas Partners and the Operating
Partnerships are not directly subject to federal income taxes.
Instead, their taxable income or loss is allocated to the individ-
ual partners. We record income taxes on our share of (1) the
Partnership’s current taxable income or loss and (2) the differ-
ences between the book and tax basis of our investment in the
Partnership. The Operating Partnerships have subsidiaries which
operate in corporate form and are directly subject to federal
income taxes.

Gas Utility and Electric Utility record deferred income taxes
in the Consolidated Statements of Income resulting from the
use of accelerated tax depreciation methods based upon
amounts recognized for ratemaking purposes. They also record
a deferred income tax liability for tax benefits that are flowed
through to ratepayers when temporary differences originate and
record a regulatory income tax asset for the probable increase
in future revenues that will result when the temporary differ-
ences reverse.

We are amortizing deferred investment tax credits related to
UGI Utilities’ plant additions over the service lives of the related
property. UGI Utilities reduces its deferred income tax liability
for the future tax benefits that will occur when investment tax
credits, which are not taxable, are amortized. We also reduce
the regulatory income tax asset for the probable reduction in
future revenues that will result when such deferred investment
tax credits amortize.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Related Depreciation. 

The amounts we assign to property, plant and equipment of
acquired businesses are based upon estimated fair value at
date of acquisition. When Gas Utility and Electric Utility retire
depreciable utility plant and equipment, we charge the original
cost, net of removal costs and salvage value, to accumulated
depreciation for financial accounting purposes. When our other
businesses retire or dispose of plant and equipment, we elimi-
nate the associated cost and accumulated depreciation and rec-
ognize any resulting gain or loss in “Other income, net.”

We record depreciation expense over estimated economic
useful lives. We record depreciation expense for UGI Utilities’
plant and equipment on a straight-line method over the estimat-
ed average remaining lives of the various classes of its depre-
ciable property. Depreciation expense as a percentage of the
related average depreciable base for Gas Utility was 2.7% in fis-
cal 2007, 2.5% in fiscal 2006, and 2.4% in fiscal 2005.
Depreciation expense as a percentage of the related average
depreciable base for Electric Utility was 2.7% in fiscal 2007,
2.8% in fiscal 2006 and 2.9% in fiscal 2005. We compute
depreciation expense on plant and equipment associated with
our LPG operations using the straight-line method over estimat-
ed service lives generally ranging from 15 to 40 years for build-
ings and improvements; 7 to 40 years for storage and customer
tanks and cylinders; and 2 to 12 years for vehicles, equipment,
and office furniture and fixtures. Depreciation expense was
$150.6 in fiscal 2007, $130.9 in fiscal 2006, and $127.8 in fiscal
2005. No depreciation expense is included in cost of sales in
the Consolidated Statements of Income.



Costs to install Partnership and Antargaz-owned tanks, net of
amounts billed to customers, are capitalized and amortized over
the estimated period of benefit not exceeding ten years.

We evaluate the impairment of long-lived assets whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of such assets may not be recoverable. We evaluate
recoverability based upon undiscounted future cash flows
expected to be generated by such assets. During fiscal 2007,
2006 and 2005, no provisions for impairments were recorded.

Intangible Assets. Intangible assets comprise the following at
September 30:

2007 2006

Goodwill (not subject to amortization) $1,498.8 $1,418.2

Other intangible assets:
Customer relationships, noncompete

agreements and other $ 208.9 $ 183.0
Trademark (not subject to amortization) 48.4 43.1

Gross carrying amount 257.3 226.1
Accumulated amortization (84.2) (62.8)

Net carrying amount $ 173.1 $ 163.3

The increase in goodwill during fiscal 2007 is principally the
result of AmeriGas Propane business acquisitions and the
effects of foreign currency translation reduced by a $20.5
adjustment resulting principally from the working capital pay-
ment from the Southern Union Company associated with the
PG Energy Acquisition. The changes in the carrying amount of
other intangible assets during fiscal 2007 principally reflects
AmeriGas Propane business acquisitions and the effects of 
foreign currency translation.

We amortize customer relationship and noncompete agree-
ment intangibles over their estimated periods of benefit which
do not exceed 15 years. Amortization expense of intangible
assets was $16.9 in fiscal 2007, $16.5 in fiscal 2006 and $16.9
in fiscal 2005. No amortization expense is included in cost of
sales in the Consolidated Statements of Income. Estimated
amortization expense of intangible assets during the next five
fiscal years is as follows: fiscal 2008 – $17.6; fiscal 2009 – $16.9;
fiscal 2010 – $15.4; fiscal 2011 – $14.8; fiscal 2012 – $14.7.

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142”), we
amortize intangible assets over their useful lives unless we
determined their lives to be indefinite. Goodwill and other intan-
gible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized but are sub-
ject to tests for impairment at least annually. SFAS 142 requires
that we perform impairment tests more frequently than annual-
ly if events or circumstances indicate that the value of goodwill
or intangible assets with indefinite lives might be impaired.
When performing our impairment tests, we use quoted market
prices or, in the absence of quoted market prices, discounted
estimates of future cash flows. No provisions for goodwill or
other intangibles impairments were recorded during fiscal 2007,
2006 or 2005.

Stock-Based Compensation. We adopted SFAS No. 123
(Revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R”), effec-
tive October 1, 2005. Among other things, SFAS 123R requires
expensing the fair value of stock options, a previously optional
accounting method. We chose the modified prospective
approach which requires that the new guidance be applied to
the unvested portion of all outstanding option grants as of
October 1, 2005 and to new grants after that date. The adoption
of SFAS 123R resulted in pre-tax stock option expense of $6.3
and $3.8 during fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively. SFAS 123R
also requires the calculation of an accumulated pool of tax
windfalls using historical data from the effective date of SFAS
No. 123 (prior to its revision). We have calculated a tax windfall
pool using the shortcut method and any future tax shortfalls
related to equity-based compensation will be charged against
common stock up to the amount of the tax windfall pool.

In accordance with SFAS 123R, all of our equity-based com-
pensation, principally comprising UGI stock options, grants of
UGI stock-based and AmeriGas Partners Common Unit-based
equity instruments (“Units”) is measured at fair value on the
grant date, date of modification, or end of the period, as applica-
ble, and recognized in earnings over the requisite service period.
Depending upon the settlement terms of the awards, all or a
portion of the fair value of the awards may be presented as a lia-
bility or as equity in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. We use a
Black-Scholes option-pricing model to estimate the fair value of
UGI stock options. We use a Monte Carlo valuation approach to
estimate the fair value of our UGI and AmeriGas Unit awards.
Equity-based compensation costs associated with the portion of
Unit awards classified as equity are measured based upon their
estimated fair value on the date of grant or modification. Equity-
based compensation costs associated with the portion of Unit
awards classified as liabilities are measured based upon their
estimated fair value as of the end of each period.

During fiscal 2006, the Company modified the settlement
terms of certain UGI Unit awards previously granted to 28 key
employees on January 1, 2006, and the General Partner modi-
fied the settlement terms of certain of its AmeriGas Partner
Unit awards. The modifications did not affect the number of
Units awarded to employees. As a result of the modifications, a
portion of the fair value of these Unit awards is reflected as
equity rather than as a liability in accordance with SFAS 123R.
We did not record any incremental equity-based compensation
expense as a result of these modifications. Also during 2006,
we modified the settlement terms of UGI Unit awards granted
to non-employee directors. Such awards are now settled 65% in
shares of UGI Common Stock and 35% in cash. Prior to this
modification, these awards were settled 100% in shares of UGI
Common Stock. As a result of this modification, during fiscal
2006 we recorded additional pre-tax equity-based compensation
expense of $1.0.

Prior to October 1, 2005, we applied the provisions of
Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”), in
recording equity-based compensation. Under APB 25, the
Company did not record any compensation expense for stock
options, but provided the required pro forma disclosures as if
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we had determined compensation expense under the fair value
method prescribed by the provisions of SFAS No. 123.

We recognized total pre-tax equity-based compensation
expense of $12.4 ($8.5 after-tax), $9.0 ($6.0 after-tax), and $15.5
($10.1 after-tax) in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The
chart below reflects the effects on net income and basic and
diluted earnings per share for fiscal 2005 as if we had applied
the provisions of SFAS 123R:

2005

Net income, as reported $187.5 
Add: Stock and unit-based compensation 

expense included in reported net 
income, net of related tax effects 10.1

Deduct: Total stock and unit-based 
employee compensation expense 
determined under the fair value method 
for all awards, net of related tax effects (11.9)

Pro forma net income $185.7

Basic earnings per share:
As reported $1.81
Pro forma $1.79 

Diluted earnings per share:
As reported $1.77 
Pro forma $1.76 

For a description of our equity-based compensation plans
and related disclosures, see Note 8.

Deferred Debt Issuance Costs. Included in “Other assets” on
our Consolidated Balance Sheets are net deferred debt
issuance costs of $19.1 at September 30, 2007 and $19.9 at
September 30, 2006. We are amortizing these costs over the
terms of the related debt.

Refundable Tank and Cylinder Deposits. Included in “Other non-
current liabilities” are customer paid deposits on Antargaz
owned tanks and cylinders of $228.5 and $207.4 at September
30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Deposits are refundable to
customers when the tanks or cylinders are returned in accor-
dance with contract terms.

Computer Software Costs. We include in property, plant and
equipment costs associated with computer software we devel-
op or obtain for use in our businesses. We amortize computer
software costs on a straight-line basis over expected periods of
benefit not exceeding fifteen years once the installed software
is ready for its intended use.

Deferred Fuel Costs. Gas Utility’s tariffs contain clauses which
permit recovery of certain purchased gas costs through the
application of purchased gas cost (“PGC”) rates. The clauses
provide for periodic adjustments to PGC rates for the difference
between the total amount of purchased gas costs collected
from customers and the recoverable costs incurred. In accor-
dance with SFAS 71, we defer the difference between amounts
recognized in revenues and the applicable gas costs incurred
until they are subsequently billed or refunded to customers.

Environmental and Other Legal Matters. We accrue environ-
mental investigation and cleanup costs when it is probable that
a liability exists and the amount or range of amounts can be
reasonably estimated. Amounts accrued generally reflect our
best estimate of costs expected to be incurred or the minimum
liability associated with a range of expected environmental
response costs. Our estimated liability for environmental con-
tamination is reduced to reflect anticipated participation of other
responsible parties but is not reduced for possible recovery
from insurance carriers. In those instances for which the
amount and timing of cash payments associated with environ-
mental investigation and cleanup are reliably determinable, we
discount such liabilities to reflect the time value of money. We
intend to pursue recovery of incurred costs through all appropri-
ate means, including regulatory relief. UGI Gas is permitted to
amortize as removal costs site-specific environmental investiga-
tion and remediation costs, net of related third-party payments,
associated with Pennsylvania sites. UGI Gas is currently permit-
ted to include in rates, through future base rate proceedings, a
five-year average of such prudently incurred remediation costs.
In accordance with the terms of the PNG Gas base rate case
order which became effective on December 2, 2006, site-spe-
cific environmental investigation and remediation costs associ-
ated with PNG Gas incurred prior to December 2, 2006 are
amortized as removal costs over five-year periods. Such costs
incurred after December 1, 2006 are expensed as incurred. At
September 30, 2007 and 2006, neither the Company’s undis-
counted amount nor its accrued liability for environmental inves-
tigation and cleanup costs was material.

Similar to environmental issues, we accrue for other pending
claims and legal actions investigation and other legal costs for
other matters when it is probable that a liability exists and the
amount or range of amounts can be reasonably estimated (see
Note 10).

Foreign Currency Translation. Balance sheets of international
subsidiaries and our investments in international LPG joint ven-
tures are translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rate at
the balance sheet date. Income statements and equity investee
results are translated into U.S. dollars using an average
exchange rate for each reporting period. Where the local curren-
cy is the functional currency, translation adjustments are record-
ed in other comprehensive income. Where the local currency is
not the functional currency, translation adjustments are record-
ed in net income.

Employee Retirement Plans. We use a market-related value of
plan assets and an expected long-term rate of return to deter-
mine the expected return on our pension plans and other postre-
tirement plan assets. The market-related value of plan assets,
other than equity investments, is based upon market prices. The
market-related value of equity investments is calculated by
rolling forward the prior-year’s market-related value with contribu-
tions, disbursements and the expected return on plan assets.
One third of the difference between the expected and the actual
value is then added to or subtracted from the expected value to
determine the new market-related value (see Note 5).



SFAS 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans – an amendment of
FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R)” (“SFAS 158”),
became effective for us as of September 30, 2007. SFAS 158
requires recognition of an asset or liability in the statement of
financial position reflecting the funded status of pension and
postretirement benefit plans such as retiree health and life, with
current year changes recognized in shareholders’ equity. SFAS
158 did not change the existing criteria for measurement of
periodic benefit costs, plan assets or benefit obligations.

The following table summarizes the incremental effects of
the initial adoption of SFAS 158 on our Consolidated Balance
Sheet as of September 30, 2007:

Before After
Application SFAS 158 Application

of SFAS 158 Adjustments of SFAS 158

Other assets $ 122.3 $(15.4) $ 106.9 
Total assets 5,518.1 (15.4) 5,502.7 
Other noncurrent liabilities 375.9 3.6 379.5 
Deferred income taxes 514.2 (7.8) 506.4 
Total liabilities 3,992.8 (4.2) 3,988.6 
Accumulated other 

comprehensive income (loss) 68.9 (11.2) 57.7 
Total stockholders’ equity 1,333.1 (11.2) 1,321.9 
Total liabilities and 

stockholders’ equity 5,518.1 (15.4) 5,502.7 

The amount recorded in accumulated other comprehensive
income at September 30, 2007 includes $(11.6) associated with
our pension plans, principally comprising net actuarial losses,
and $0.4 associated with our other postretirement benefit
plans, principally comprising net actuarial gains.

Comprehensive Income. Comprehensive income comprises net
income and other comprehensive income (loss). Other compre-
hensive income (loss) principally results from gains and losses
on derivative instruments qualifying as cash flow hedges and
foreign currency translation adjustments. Accumulated other
comprehensive income at September 30, 2007 also includes
the effects of the initial adoption of SFAS 158.

The components of accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) at September 30, 2007 and 2006 follow:

Derivative Foreign
Instruments Currency

Postretirement Net Gains Translation
Benefit Plans (Losses) Adjustments

Balance – September 30, 2007 $(11.2) $ (4.4) $73.3
Balance – September 30, 2006 $ – $(23.4) $19.6

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements. In February 2007,
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued
SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities – Including an amendment of FASB
Statement No. 115” (“SFAS 159”), which permits entities to
choose to measure certain financial instruments at fair value
that are not currently required to be measured at fair value.
Upon adoption of SFAS 159, a cumulative adjustment will be

made to beginning retained earnings for the initial fair value
option remeasurement. Subsequent unrealized gains and losses
for remeasured assets and liabilities will be reported in earn-
ings. SFAS 159 is effective for our fiscal year beginning October
1, 2008 (fiscal 2009) and shall not be applied retrospectively,
except as permitted by certain conditions for early adoption. We
are currently evaluating the potential impact of SFAS 159.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair
Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157”). SFAS 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in gener-
ally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures
about fair value measurements. The provisions of this standard
apply to other accounting pronouncements that require or permit
fair value measurements. The provisions of SFAS 157 are effec-
tive for our fiscal year beginning October 1, 2008 (fiscal 2009).
We are currently evaluating the potential impact of SFAS 157.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes – an interpretation
of FASB No. 109” (“FIN 48”), which clarifies the accounting for
uncertainty in income taxes. FIN 48 requires the impact of a tax
position be recognized if that tax position is more likely than not
of being sustained on audit, based on the technical merits of
the position. The tax position is measured at the largest amount
of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon
the effective settlement. The provisions of FIN 48 are effective
for our fiscal year beginning October 1, 2007 (fiscal 2008), with
any cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle
recorded as an adjustment to opening retained earnings. The
Company has determined that its expected charge to beginning
retained earnings as of October 1, 2007 will not be material.

Note 2 – Acquisitions and Divestitures
On August 24, 2006, UGI Utilities acquired certain assets and
assumed certain liabilities of Southern Union Company’s
(“SU’s”) PG Energy Division, a natural gas distribution utility
located in northeastern Pennsylvania, and all of the issued and
outstanding stock of SU’s wholly owned subsidiary, PG Energy
Services, Inc., pursuant to a Purchase and Sale Agreement, as
amended, between SU and UGI dated January 26, 2006 (the
“Agreement”). UGI subsequently assigned its rights under the
Agreement to UGI Utilities. On August 24, 2006 and in accor-
dance with the terms of the Agreement, UGI Utilities paid SU
$580 in cash. The cash payment of $580 was funded with net
proceeds from the issuance of $275 of UGI Utilities’ bank loans
under a Credit Agreement dated as of August 18, 2006 (the
“Bridge Loan”), cash capital contributions from UGI of $265 and
borrowings under UGI Utilities’ revolving credit agreement for
working capital. In September 2006, UGI Utilities repaid the
Bridge Loan with proceeds from the issuance of $175 of
5.753% Senior Notes due 2016 and $100 of 6.206% Senior
Notes due 2036. Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, the
initial purchase price was subject to a working capital adjust-
ment equal to the difference between $68.1 and the actual
working capital as of the closing date agreed to by both UGI
Utilities and SU. In March 2007, UGI Utilities and SU reached an
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agreement on the working capital adjustment pursuant to which
SU paid UGI Utilities approximately $23.7 in cash.

During fiscal 2007, UGI Utilities completed its review and
determination of the fair value of the assets acquired and liabili-
ties assumed. The purchase price of the PG Energy Acquisition,
including transaction fees and expenses of approximately $11.0,
has been allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed as follows:

Working capital $ 47.3
Property, plant and equipment 362.3
Goodwill 162.3
Regulatory assets 15.0
Other assets 4.0
Noncurrent liabilities (23.6)

Total $567.3

Substantially all of the goodwill is deductible for income tax
purposes over a fifteen-year period.

The operating results of PNG Gas are included in our consoli-
dated results beginning August 24, 2006. The following table pres-
ents unaudited pro forma income statement and basic and diluted
per share data for fiscal 2006 and 2005 as if the acquisition of
PNG Gas had occurred as of the beginning of those periods:

2006 2005

(pro forma) (pro forma)
Revenues $5,545.7 $5,176.1
Net income $ 88.5 $ 199.5

Earnings per share:
Basic $ 0.84 $ 1.92
Diluted $ 0.83 $ 1.89

The pro forma results of operations reflect PNG Gas’ historical
operating results after giving effect to adjustments directly attribut-
able to the transaction that are expected to have a continuing
effect. The pro forma amounts are not necessarily indicative of the
operating results that would have occurred had the PG Energy
Acquisition been completed as of the date indicated, nor are they
necessarily indicative of future operating results. The unaudited
pro forma net income and earnings per share for fiscal 2006
include the effects of a writedown of goodwill of $98 recorded by
SU during the three months ended December 31, 2005.

During fiscal 2007, the Partnership acquired several retail
propane distribution businesses, including the retail distribution
businesses of All Star Gas Corporation and Shell Gas (LPG)
USA, and several cylinder refurbishing businesses. Total cash
consideration for these businesses totaled $79.6.

In July 2007, AmeriGas OLP sold its 3.5 million barrel liquefied
petroleum gas storage terminal located near Phoenix, Arizona to
Plains LPG Services, L.P. The Partnership recorded a pre-tax gain
of $46.1 which is included in “Other income, net” in the fiscal
2007 Consolidated Statement of Income. The gain increased fis-
cal 2007 net income by $12.5 or $0.12 per diluted share.

In March 2006, UGID sold its 50% ownership interest in
Hunlock Creek Energy Ventures (“Energy Ventures”) to
Allegheny Energy Supply Hunlock Creek, LLC. Energy Ventures’
assets primarily comprised a 44-megawatt gas-fired combustion
turbine electric generator and a 48-megawatt coal-fired electric
generation facility. As part of the transaction, Energy Ventures
transferred its ownership in the 48-megawatt coal-fired electric
generation station to UGID. UGID recorded a net pre-tax gain of
$9.1 ($5.3 after-tax) associated with this transaction, which is
reflected in “Other income, net” in the fiscal 2006 Consolidated
Statement of Income. The gain increased fiscal 2006 net
income by $0.05 per diluted share.

On February 15, 2006, Flaga entered into an agreement with
a subsidiary of Progas GmbH & Co KG (“Progas”) to form a
joint venture company, Zentraleuropa LPG Holding, an Austrian
limited liability company (“ZLH”), which, through subsidiaries,
distributes LPG in the Czech Republic, Hungary, Poland,
Slovakia and Romania. ZLH is owned and controlled equally by
Flaga and Progas. Progas, headquartered in Dortmund,
Germany, is controlled by Thyssen’sche Handelsgesellschaft
m.b.H. As part of the joint venture formation, Flaga contributed
the shares of its LPG subsidiaries which operate in the Czech
Republic and Slovakia to ZLH and paid €9.2 cash to Progas.
Progas contributed the shares of its LPG subsidiaries operating
in the Czech Republic, Hungary, Poland, Romania and Slovakia
to ZLH. The operating subsidiaries distributed a combined
approximately 77 million gallons of LPG in these five countries
in 2005. In a related transaction, Flaga purchased Progas’ retail
LPG business in Austria. The cash consideration for this busi-
ness was not material.

In November 2004, UGI Asset Management, Inc. acquired
from ConocoPhillips Company and AmerE Holdings, Inc. (a whol-
ly owned, indirect subsidiary of AmeriGas OLP) in separate
transactions 100% of the issued and outstanding common stock
of Atlantic Energy for an aggregate purchase price of approxi-
mately $24 in cash, including post-closing adjustments (the “AEI
Acquisition”). The AEI Acquisition has been accounted for as a
step acquisition in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

During fiscal 2006, AmeriGas OLP acquired two retail
propane distribution businesses and a cylinder refurbishing busi-
ness. During fiscal 2005, AmeriGas OLP acquired several retail
propane distribution businesses and HVAC/R acquired a com-
mercial and residential electrical contracting business. Total cash
consideration for these businesses were $3.3 and $24.6 in fis-
cal 2006 and 2005, respectively. The operating results of these
businesses have been included in our operating results from
their respective dates of acquisition. The pro forma effects of
these transactions, the previously mentioned fiscal 2007
Partnership acquisitions, and Flaga’s 2006 transactions with
Progas, are not material.



Note 3 – Debt
Long-term debt comprises the following at September 30:

2007 2006

AmeriGas Propane:
AmeriGas Partners Senior Notes:

8.875%, due May 2011 (including unamortized 
premium of $0.2, effective rate – 8.46%) $ 14.8 $ 14.8

7.25%, due May 2015 415.0 415.0
7.125%, due May 2016 350.0 350.0

AmeriGas OLP First Mortgage Notes:
Series D, 7.11%, due March 2009 (including 

unamortized premium of $0.6 and $0.9, 
respectively, effective rate – 6.52%) 70.6 70.9

Series E, 8.50%, due July 2010 (including 
unamortized premium of $0.1, effective 
rate – 8.47%) 80.1 80.1

Other 2.6 2.9

Total AmeriGas Propane 933.1 933.7

International Propane:
Antargaz Senior Facilities term loan, 

due March 2011 541.8 483.5
Flaga Term Loan, due through September 2011 59.9 60.9
Other 3.5 2.6

Total International Propane 605.2 547.0

UGI Utilities:
Senior Notes:

5.75% Notes, due October 2016 175.0 175.0
6.21% Notes, due October 2036 100.0 100.0

Medium-Term Notes:
7.17% Notes, due June 2007 – 20.0
5.53% Notes, due September 2012 40.0 40.0
5.37% Notes, due August 2013 25.0 25.0
5.16% Notes, due May 2015 20.0 20.0
7.37% Notes, due October 2015 22.0 22.0
5.64% Notes, due December 2015 50.0 50.0
6.17% Notes, due June 2017 20.0 –
7.25% Notes, due November 2017 20.0 20.0
6.50% Notes, due August 2033 20.0 20.0
6.13% Notes, due October 2034 20.0 20.0

Total UGI Utilities 512.0 512.0

Other 3.2 4.2

Total long-term debt 2,053.5 1,996.9
Less current maturities (including net unamortized 

premium of $0.5) (14.7) (31.9)

Total long-term debt due after one year $2,038.8 $1,965.0

Scheduled principal repayments of long-term debt due in
 fiscal years 2008 to 2012 follows:

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

AmeriGas Propane $ 1.5 $70.5 $80.3 $ 14.8 $ 0.1
UGI Utilities – – – – 40.0
International Propane

and Other 12.7 9.7 9.3 576.2 3.5

Total $14.2 $80.2 $89.6 $591.0 $43.6

AmeriGas Propane
AmeriGas Partners Senior Notes. The 8.875% Senior Notes may
be redeemed at our option; a redemption premium applies
through May 19, 2009. The 7.25% and 7.125% Senior Notes gen-
erally cannot be redeemed at our option prior to May 20, 2010 and
2011, respectively. In January 2006, the Partnership refinanced its
Series A and Series C First Mortgage Notes totaling $228.8; $59.6
of the Partnership’s 10% Senior Notes; and an AmeriGas OLP $35
term loan, with proceeds from the issuance of $350 of AmeriGas
Partners 7.125% Senior Notes due 2016. In May 2005, AmeriGas
Partners refinanced $373.4 of its 8.875% Senior Notes pursuant
to a tender offer with proceeds from the issuance of $415 of
7.25% Senior Notes due 2015. The Partnership recognized losses
of $17.1 and $33.6 associated with these refinancings which
amounts are reflected in “Loss on extinguishments of debt” in
the fiscal 2006 and 2005 Consolidated Statements of Income,
respectively. AmeriGas Partners may, under certain circumstances
following the disposition of assets or a change of control, be
required to offer to prepay its 7.25% and 7.125% Senior Notes.

AmeriGas OLP First Mortgage Notes. As of November 6, 2006,
AmeriGas OLP’s First Mortgage Notes are no longer collateralized.
The General Partner is co-obligor of the Series D and E First
Mortgage Notes. AmeriGas OLP may prepay the First Mortgage
Notes, in whole or in part. These prepayments include a make
whole premium. Following the disposition of assets or a change of
control, AmeriGas OLP may be required to offer to prepay the
First Mortgage Notes, in whole or in part.

AmeriGas OLP Credit Agreement. Effective November 6, 2006,
AmeriGas OLP entered into a new unsecured Credit Agreement
(“AmeriGas Credit Agreement”) consisting of (1) a Revolving
Credit Facility and (2) an Acquisition Facility. The General Partner
and Petrolane are guarantors of amounts outstanding under the
AmeriGas Credit Agreement. References made herein to the
AmeriGas Credit Agreement relate to the former or new Credit
Agreement, as appropriate.

Under the Revolving Credit Facility, AmeriGas OLP may bor-
row up to $125, including a $100 sublimit for letters of credit,
which is subject to restrictions in the AmeriGas Partners Senior
Notes indentures (see “Restrictive Covenants” below). The
Revolving Credit Facility may be used for working capital and
general purposes of AmeriGas OLP. The Revolving Credit Facility
expires on October 15, 2011, but may be extended for additional
one-year periods with the consent of the participating banks
representing at least 80% of the commitments thereunder.
There were no borrowings outstanding under AmeriGas OLP’s
Revolving Credit Facility at September 30, 2007 and 2006.
Issued and outstanding letters of credit, which reduce available
borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility, totaled $58.0
and $58.9 at September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The Acquisition Facility provides AmeriGas OLP with the abil-
ity to borrow up to $75 to finance the purchase of propane busi-
nesses or propane business assets or, to the extent it is not so
used, for working capital and general purposes, subject to
restrictions in the Senior Notes indentures. The Acquisition
Facility operates as a revolving facility through October 15,
2011, at which time amounts then outstanding will be immedi-
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ately due and payable. There were no amounts outstanding
under the Acquisition Facility at September 30, 2007 and 2006.

The Revolving Credit Facility and the Acquisition Facility per-
mit AmeriGas OLP to borrow at prevailing interest rates, includ-
ing the base rate, defined as the higher of the Federal Funds
rate plus 0.50% or the agent bank’s prime rate (7.75% at
September 30, 2007), or at a two-week, one-, two-, three-, or
six-month Eurodollar Rate, as defined in the AmeriGas Credit
Agreement, plus a margin. The margin on Eurodollar Rate bor-
rowings (which ranges from 1.00% to 1.75%), and the
AmeriGas Credit Agreement facility fee rate (which ranges from
0.25% to 0.375%), are dependent upon AmeriGas OLP’s ratio
of funded debt to earnings before interest expense, income
taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”), each as
defined in the AmeriGas Credit Agreement.

AmeriGas OLP Term Loan. In April 2005, AmeriGas OLP entered
into a $35 variable-rate term loan due October 1, 2006 (“AmeriGas
OLP Term Loan”), which bore interest plus margin at the same
rates as the AmeriGas Credit Agreement. Proceeds from the
AmeriGas OLP Term Loan were used to repay a portion of the
$53.8 maturing AmeriGas OLP First Mortgage Notes. The
Partnership used a portion of the proceeds from the issuance of
the 7.125% Senior Notes due 2016 to repay the AmeriGas OLP
Term Loan in January 2006.

Restrictive Covenants. The 7.125% and 7.25% Senior Notes of
AmeriGas Partners restrict the ability of the Partnership and
AmeriGas OLP to, among other things, incur additional indebt-
edness, make investments, incur liens, issue preferred inter-
ests, prepay subordinated indebtedness, and effect mergers,
consolidations and sales of assets.

The AmeriGas Credit Agreement and First Mortgage Notes
restrict the incurrence of additional indebtedness and also
restrict certain liens, guarantees, investments, loans and
advances, payments, mergers, consolidations, asset transfers,
transactions with affiliates, sales of assets, acquisitions and
other transactions. The AmeriGas Credit Agreement and First
Mortgage Notes require a maximum ratio of total indebtedness
to EBITDA, as defined. In addition, the AmeriGas Credit
Agreement requires that AmeriGas OLP maintain a minimum
ratio of EBITDA to interest expense, as defined, and a minimum
interest coverage ratio. Generally, as long as no default exists or
would result, the Partnership and AmeriGas OLP are permitted
to make cash distributions not more frequently than quarterly in
an amount not to exceed available cash, as defined, for the
immediately preceding calendar quarter.

International Propane
On December 7, 2005, Antargaz executed a new five-year, floating
rate Senior Facilities Agreement with a major French bank provid-
ing for a €380 term loan and a €50 revolving credit facility. AGZ
Finance notified the holders of its High Yield Bonds of its decision
to redeem them, including a premium, pursuant to the Trust Deed.
The proceeds of the term loan were used in December 2005 to
repay immediately the existing €175 Senior Facilities term loan, to
fund the redemption of the €165 High Yield Bonds in January
2006 (including a premium) and for general corporate purposes.
As a result of this refinancing, we incurred a pre-tax loss on extin-
guishment of debt of $1.4 ($0.9 after-tax).

Antargaz’ term loan bears interest at euribor or libor plus
margin, as defined by the Senior Facilities Agreement. The mar-
gin (which ranges from 0.70% to 1.15%) is dependent upon
Antargaz’ ratio of total net debt to EBITDA, each as defined by
the Senior Facilities Agreement. AGZ has executed interest rate
swap agreements with the same bank to fix the underlying euri-
bor or libor rate of interest on the term loan at approximately
3.25% for the duration of the loan (see Note 11). The effective
interest rate on Antargaz’ term loan at September 30, 2007 was
4.05%. The Senior Facilities Agreement debt has been collater-
alized by substantially all of Antargaz’ shares in its subsidiaries
and by substantially all of its accounts receivable.

Effective in July 2006, Flaga entered into a euro-based, vari-
able-rate term loan facility in the amount of €48 and a working
capital facility of up to €8 which expire in September 2011. The
term loan bears interest at one- to twelve-month euribor rates
(as chosen by Flaga from time to time) plus a margin. The mar-
gin on such borrowings range from 0.52% to 1.45%. Generally,
principal payments of €3 on the term loan are due semi-annual-
ly on March 31 and September 30 each year with final pay-
ments totaling €24 due in 2011. The effective interest rate on
Flaga’s term loan at September 30, 2006 was 3.72%. In
November 2006, Flaga effectively fixed the euribor component
of its interest rate on a substantial portion of the term loan
through September 2011 at 3.91% by entering into an interest
rate swap agreement. The effective interest rate on Flaga’s term
loan at September 30, 2007 was 4.43%. Flaga may prepay the
term loan, in whole or in part, without incurring any premium.
Flaga repaid its multi-currency acquisition note (“Acquisition
Note”) with the proceeds from its term loan. The Acquisition
Note bore interest at a rate of 1.25% over one- to twelve-month
euribor rates (as chosen by Flaga from time to time).

Flaga’s borrowings under its working capital facility at
September 30, 2007 and 2006 totaled €6.3 ($8.9) and €7.4
($9.4), respectively. Amounts outstanding under the working
capital facility are classified as bank loans. Borrowings under its
working capital facility bear interest at market rates (a daily
euro-based rate) plus a margin. The weighted-average interest
rates on Flaga’s bank loan borrowings outstanding were 5.42%
at September 30, 2007 and 4.23% at September 30, 2006.

Restrictive Covenants and Guarantees. The Senior Facilities
Agreement restricts the ability of AGZ and its subsidiaries,
including Antargaz, to, among other things, incur additional
indebtedness, make investments, incur liens, and effect merg-
ers, consolidations and sales of assets. Under this agreement,
AGZ is generally permitted to make restricted payments, such
as dividends, if the ratio of net debt to EBITDA on a French gen-
erally accepted accounting basis, as defined in the agreement,
is less than 3.75 to 1.00 and if no event of default exists or
would exist upon payment of such restricted payment.

The Flaga term loan and working capital facility are guaran-
teed by UGI. In addition, under certain conditions regarding
changes in certain financial ratios of UGI, the lending bank may
accelerate repayment of the debt.

Flaga’s joint venture, ZLH, has multi-currency working capital
facilities that provide for borrowings of up to €14, half of which
is guaranteed by UGI.



UGI Utilities
Revolving Credit Agreements. UGI Utilities has a revolving credit
agreement (“Utilities Revolving Credit Agreement”) with banks
providing for borrowings of up to $350 expiring August 2011.
Under this agreement, UGI Utilities may borrow at various prevail-
ing interest rates, including LIBOR and the banks’ prime rate. UGI
Utilities had borrowings outstanding under the Utilities Revolving
Credit Agreement totaling $190.0 at September 30, 2007 and
$216.0 at September 30, 2006, which we classify as bank loans.
From time to time, UGI Utilities has entered into short-term bor-
rowings under uncommitted arrangements with major banks in
order to meet liquidity needs. Such borrowings are also classified
as bank loans. There were no amounts outstanding under these
uncommitted arrangements at September 30, 2007 or 2006.
During fiscal 2006, we repaid two separate $35 borrowings out-
standing under uncommitted arrangements with major banks in
February and March 2006. The weighted-average interest rates on
UGI Utilities’ bank loans were 5.24% at September 30, 2007 and
5.58% at September 30, 2006.

Restrictive Covenants. Utilities Revolving Credit Agreement
requires UGI Utilities to maintain a maximum ratio of Consolidated
Debt to Consolidated Total Capital, as defined, of 0.65 to 1.00.

Note 4 – Income Taxes
Income before income taxes comprises the following:

2007 2006 2005

Domestic $278.4 $193.6 $161.4
Foreign 52.6 81.1 145.3

Total income before income taxes $331.0 $274.7 $306.7

The provisions for income taxes consist of the following:

2007 2006 2005

Current expense:
Federal $ 65.6 $ 54.2 $ 49.8
State 17.4 12.0 14.6
Foreign 16.6 24.9 42.7

Total current expense 99.6 91.1 107.1
Deferred expense (benefit):

Federal 24.8 2.3 0.3
State 1.9 1.3 1.6
Foreign 0.8 4.2 10.6
Investment tax credit amortization (0.4) (0.4) (0.4)

Total deferred expense 27.1 7.4 12.1

Total income tax expense $126.7 $ 98.5 $119.2

Federal income taxes for fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 are net
of foreign tax credits of $14.1, $21.2 and $25.4, respectively. Tax
benefits associated with nonqualified stock options reduced
taxes currently payable by $3.5, $0.8 and $10.2 for fiscal 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

A reconciliation from the statutory federal tax rate to our
effective tax rate is as follows:

2007 2006 2005

Statutory federal tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Difference in tax rate due to:

State income taxes, net of federal 3.8 3.4 2.6
Effects of international operations (1.4) (3.3) 2.2
Other, net 0.9 0.8 (0.9)

Effective tax rate 38.3% 35.9% 38.9%

Deferred tax liabilities (assets) comprise the following at
September 30:

2007 2006

Excess book basis over tax basis of property, plant 
and equipment $ 298.0 $ 265.1

Investment in AmeriGas Partners 181.2 146.6
Intangible assets and goodwill 51.8 46.2
Utility regulatory assets 41.0 29.9
Pension plan assets and liabilities 7.4 4.3
Unrepatriated foreign earnings 3.9 4.4
Accumulated other comprehensive income 13.7 –
Deferred expenses 4.7 18.3
Other 2.9 4.8

Gross deferred tax liabilities 604.6 519.6

Employee-related benefits (30.2) (23.7)
Deferred investment tax credits (2.7) (2.8)
Utility regulatory liabilities (3.1) (9.1)
Operating loss carryforwards (22.8) (20.2)
Allowance for doubtful accounts (6.8) (7.9)
Foreign tax credit carryforward (50.1) (28.3)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (13.7) (12.2)
Other (21.8) (19.1)

Gross deferred tax assets (151.2) (123.3)

Deferred tax assets valuation allowance 62.4 39.3

Net deferred tax liabilities $ 515.8 $ 435.6

UGI Utilities had recorded deferred tax liabilities of approxi-
mately $42.1 as of September 30, 2007 and $40.4 as of
September 30, 2006, pertaining to utility temporary differences,
principally a result of accelerated tax depreciation for state
income tax purposes, the tax benefits of which previously were
or will be flowed through to ratepayers. These deferred tax liabili-
ties have been reduced by deferred tax assets of $2.7 at
September 30, 2007 and $2.8 at September 30, 2006, pertaining
to utility deferred investment tax credits. UGI Utilities had record-
ed regulatory income tax assets related to these net deferred
taxes of $72.0 as of September 30, 2007 and $64.3 as of
September 30, 2006. These regulatory income tax assets repre-
sent future revenues expected to be recovered through the
ratemaking process. We will recognize this regulatory income tax
asset in deferred tax expense as the corresponding temporary
differences reverse and additional income taxes are incurred.

Foreign net operating loss carryforwards of Flaga totaled
approximately $41.1 and have no expiration date. At September
30, 2007, deferred tax assets relating to operating loss carryfor-
wards include $9.6 for Flaga, $2.2 for certain operations of AGZ,
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$0.6 for certain operations of UGI International, $2.2 for certain
operations of AmeriGas Propane, and $8.2 of deferred tax assets
associated with state net operating loss carryforwards expiring
through 2026. Operating activities and tax deductions related to
the exercise of non-qualified stock options contributed to the state
net operating losses. We first recognize the utilization of state net
operating losses from operations (which exclude the impact of tax
deductions for exercises of non-qualified stock options) to reduce
income tax expense. Then, to the extent state net operating loss
carryforwards, when realized, relate to non-qualified stock option
deductions, the resulting benefits will be credited to stockholders’
equity. A valuation allowance of $10.7 has been provided for all
deferred tax assets related to state net operating loss carryfor-
wards and other state deferred tax assets of certain subsidiaries
because, on a state reportable basis, it is more likely than not that
these assets will expire unusable. A valuation allowance of $1.6
was also provided for deferred tax assets related to certain opera-
tions of AGZ and UGI International (BV).

We have foreign tax credit carryforwards of approximately
$50.1 expiring through 2018, resulting from the planned repatri-
ation of AGZ’s accumulated earnings and profits included in U.S.
taxable income since its acquisition. Because we expect that
these credits will expire unused, a valuation allowance has been
provided for the entire foreign tax credit carryforward amount.
The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets increased by
$23.1 in fiscal 2007, due primarily to an increase in the foreign
tax credit carryforward of $22.8.

Note 5 – Employee Retirement Plans
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans. We
sponsor two defined benefit pension plans for employees of UGI,
UGI Utilities, UGIPNG, and certain of UGI’s other domestic whol-
ly owned subsidiaries (“Pension Plans”). We also provide postre-
tirement health care benefits to certain retirees and a limited
number of active employees, and postretirement life insurance
benefits to nearly all domestic active and retired employees. As a
result of the PG Energy Acquisition, we acquired the pension
assets and assumed the pension obligations related to the
Employees’ Retirement Plan of Southern Union Company
Pennsylvania Division. In addition, Antargaz employees are cov-
ered by certain defined benefit pension and postretirement plans.
Although the disclosures in the tables below include amounts
related to the Antargaz plans, such amounts are not material.

Effective September 30, 2007, we adopted SFAS 158,
“Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans.” See Note 1 for the incremental effects of
the initial adoption of SFAS 158 on our September 30, 2007
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

The following table provides a reconciliation of the projected
benefit obligations (“PBOs”) of the Pension Plans and the
Antargaz pension plans, the accumulated benefit obligations
(“ABOs”) of our other postretirement benefit plans, plan assets,
and the funded status of the pension and other postretirement
plans as of September 30, 2007 and 2006. ABO is the present
value of benefits earned to date with benefits based upon cur-
rent compensation levels. PBO is ABO increased to reflect esti-
mated future compensation.

Pension Other Postretirement
Benefits Benefits

2007 2006 2007 2006

Change in benefit obligations:
Benefit obligations – 

beginning of year $316.7 $247.9 $ 23.9 $ 23.4
Service cost 6.5 6.1 0.5 0.4
Interest cost 18.8 14.3 1.2 1.3
Actuarial gain (18.4) (12.1) (1.9) (0.4)
Plan amendments 0.3 – (2.3) –
PG Energy Acquisition – 71.3 – 2.4
Plan settlement or curtailment (0.1) – (0.2) (1.6)
Foreign currency loss 1.2 0.6 0.3 0.2
Benefits paid (14.6) (11.4) (1.4) (1.8)

Benefit obligations – end of year $310.4 $316.7 $ 20.1 $ 23.9

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets – 

beginning of year $278.4 $215.3 $ 11.3 $ 11.3
Actual return on plan assets 29.4 11.6 1.2 0.9
Foreign currency gain 0.4 0.2 – –
Employer contributions 0.4 0.4 1.1 1.7
PG Energy Acquisition – 62.3 – –
Plan settlement – – – (0.8)
Benefits paid (14.6) (11.4) (1.4) (1.8)

Fair value of plan assets – 
end of year $294.0 $278.4 $ 12.2 $ 11.3

Funded status of the plans $ (16.4) $ (38.3) $ (7.9) $(12.6)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss – 43.2 – 2.4
Unrecognized prior service income – (0.4) – (2.3)
Unrecognized net transition obligation – – – 0.7

(Accrued) prepaid benefit cost – 
end of year $ (16.4) $ 4.5 $ (7.9) $(11.8)

Assets (liabilities) recorded in the 
balance sheet:
Prepaid assets (included in 

Other assets) $ 1.1 $ 19.3 $ 0.8 $ –
Unfunded liabilities (included in 

Other noncurrent liabilities) (17.5) (14.8) (8.7) (11.8)

Net amount recognized $ (16.4) $ 4.5 $ (7.9) $(11.8)

Actuarial assumptions for our domestic plans are described
in the table below. Assumptions for the Antargaz plans are
based upon market conditions in France. The discount rates at
September 30 are used to measure the year-end benefit obliga-
tions and the expense for the subsequent year. UGIPNG’s
expense for fiscal 2006 (for the period subsequent to the PG
Energy Acquisition) was based upon assumptions as of August
31, 2006. The expected rate of return on assets assumption is
based on the rates of return for certain asset classes and the
allocation of plan assets among those asset classes as well as
actual historic long-term rates of return on our plan assets.



Other Postretirement
Pension Plans Benefits

2007 2006 2005 2004 2007 2006 2005 2004

Weighted average 
assumptions:

Discount rate 6.4% 6.0% 5.7% 6.1% 6.4% 6.0% 5.7% 6.1%
Expected return on 

plan assets 8.5% 8.5% 9.0% 9.0% 5.5% 5.6% 5.8% 5.8%
Rate of increase in 

salary levels 3.8% 3.8% 4.0% 4.0% 3.8% 3.8% 4.0% 4.0%

The ABO for the Pension Plans was $269.3 and $277.7 as of
September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Net periodic pension expense and other postretirement ben-
efit costs include the following components:

Pension Other Postretirement
Benefits Benefits

2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005

Service cost $ 6.5 $ 6.1 $ 5.6 $ 0.5 $ 0.4 $ 0.4
Interest cost 18.8 14.3 14.0 1.2 1.3 1.7
Expected return on assets (23.5) (19.3) (18.0) (0.6) (0.6) (0.5)
Amortization of:

Transition obligation – – – 0.2 0.2 0.8
Prior service cost

(benefit) 0.2 0.8 0.7 (0.3) (0.2) (0.1)
Actuarial loss 1.1 2.0 1.5 – 0.2 0.2

Net benefit cost 3.1 3.9 3.8 1.0 1.3 2.5
Change in associated

regulatory liabilities – – – 3.1 2.7 1.6

Net benefit cost after
changes in 
regulatory liabilities $ 3.1 $ 3.9 $ 3.8 $ 4.1 $ 4.0 $ 4.1

Pension Plans assets are held in trust. The Company did not
make any contributions to the Pension Plans in fiscal 2007 nor
does it believe it will be required to make any contributions to
the Pension Plans during fiscal 2008 for ERISA funding purpos-
es. At September 30, 2006, the ABO of the Antargaz pension
and postretirement plans exceeded associated plan assets by
$5.3. However, the associated liability recorded in our
Consolidated Balance Sheet at September 30, 2006 exceeded
the minimum pension liability. Antargaz does not expect to
make any material contributions to fund pension or other
postretirement benefits during fiscal 2008.

UGI Utilities has established a Voluntary Employees’
Beneficiary Association (“VEBA”) trust to pay retiree health care
and life insurance benefits by depositing into the VEBA the annu-
al amount of postretirement benefits costs determined under
SFAS No. 106, “Employers Accounting for Postretirement
Benefits Other than Pensions.” The difference between such
amounts and amounts included in UGI Gas’ and Electric Utility’s
rates is deferred for future recovery from, or refund to, ratepay-
ers. Effective July 1, 2005, substantially all retirees and their ben-
eficiaries participating in the UGI Utilities’ postretirement benefit
program were enrolled in insured Medicare Advantage plans. As
a result, the net benefit cost declined for periods subsequent to
July 1, 2005. The required contribution to the VEBA during the
year ending September 30, 2008 is not expected to be material.

Expected payments for pension benefits and for other
postretirement welfare benefits are as follows:

Other
Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits

Fiscal 2008 $ 15.3 $1.4
Fiscal 2009 15.5 1.5
Fiscal 2010 16.1 1.5
Fiscal 2011 16.5 1.6
Fiscal 2012 17.6 1.6
Fiscal 2013-2017 103.6 9.2

In accordance with our investment strategy to obtain long-term
growth, our target asset allocations are to maintain a mix of 60%
equities and the remainder in fixed income funds or cash equiva-
lents. The targets and actual allocations for the Pension Plans’ and
VEBA trust assets at September 30 are as follows:

Target Pension Plan VEBA

Pension Plan VEBA 2007 2006 2007 2006

Equities 60% 60% 63% 60% 66% 63%
Fixed income funds 40% 30% 37% 40% 29% 30%
Cash equivalents N/A 10% N/A N/A 5% 7%

UGI Common Stock comprised approximately 7% of Pension
Plan assets at September 30, 2007 and 2006.

The assumed domestic health care cost trend rates are
10.0% for fiscal 2008, decreasing to 5.5% in fiscal 2012. A one
percentage point change in the assumed health care cost trend
rate would increase (decrease) the fiscal 2007 postretirement
benefit cost and obligation as follows:

1% Increase 1% Decrease

Effect on total service and interest costs $0.1 $(0.1)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation $1.6 $(1.3)

We also sponsor unfunded and non-qualified supplemental
executive retirement plans. At September 30, 2007 and 2006,
the projected benefit obligations of these plans were $17.3 and
$17.0, respectively. We recorded net benefit costs for these
plans of $2.4 in fiscal 2007, $2.4 in fiscal 2006, and $2.0 in fiscal
2005. These costs are not included in the tables above.

Defined Contribution Plans. We sponsor 401(k) savings plans
for eligible employees of UGI and certain of UGI’s domestic
subsidiaries. Generally, participants in these plans may con-
tribute a portion of their compensation on either a before-tax
basis, or on both a before-tax and after-tax basis. These plans
also provide for employer matching contributions at various
rates. The cost of benefits under the savings plans totaled $9.2
in fiscal 2007, $7.8 in fiscal 2006, and $8.3 in fiscal 2005.

Note 6 – Inventories
Inventories comprise the following at September 30:

2007 2006

LPG and natural gas $158.8 $140.5
Utility natural gas and LPG 156.9 157.0
Materials, supplies and other 43.8 42.9

Total inventories $359.5 $340.4
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Note 7 – Series Preferred Stock
UGI has 10,000,000 shares of UGI Series Preferred Stock,
including both series subject to and series not subject to
mandatory redemption, authorized for issuance. We had no
shares of UGI Series Preferred Stock outstanding at September
30, 2007 or 2006.

UGI Utilities has 2,000,000 shares of UGI Utilities Series
Preferred Stock, including both series subject to and series not
subject to mandatory redemption, authorized for issuance. At
September 30, 2007 and 2006, there were no shares of UGI
Utilities Series Preferred Stock outstanding.

On October 1, 2004, UGI Utilities redeemed all 200,000 shares
of its $7.75 UGI Utilities Series Preferred Stock at a price of $100
per share together with full cumulative dividends. The redemption
was funded with proceeds from the October 2004 issuance of
$20 of 6.13% Medium-Term Notes due October 2034.

Note 8 – Common Stock and Incentive Stock 
Award Plans
UGI Common Stock share activity for fiscal 2005, 2006 and
2007 follows:

Issued Treasury Outstanding

Balance September 30, 2004 115,152,994 (12,730,598) 102,422,396
Issued:

Employee and director plans – 2,320,478 2,320,478
Dividend reinvestment plan – 106,584 106,584

Balance September 30, 2005 115,152,994 (10,303,536) 104,849,458
Issued:

Employee and director plans – 498,642 498,642
Dividend reinvestment plan – 106,262 106,262

Balance September 30, 2006 115,152,994 (9,698,632) 105,454,362
Issued:

Employee and director plans – 1,104,824 1,104,824
Dividend reinvestment plan – 87,700 87,700

Balance September 30, 2007 115,152,994 (8,506,108) 106,646,886

UGI Stock Option and Incentive Plans. Under UGI Corporation’s
2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan, as Amended and
Restated on December 5, 2006 (the “OECP”), we may grant
options to acquire shares of UGI Common Stock, stock appreci-
ation rights (“SARs”), UGI Units (comprising “Stock Units” and
“UGI Performance Units”) and other equity-based amounts to
key employees and non-employee directors. The exercise price
for options may not be less than the fair market value on the
grant date. Awards granted under the OECP may vest immedi-
ately or ratably over a period of years, and stock options can be
exercised no later than ten years from the grant date. In addi-
tion, the OECP provides that awards of UGI Units may also pro-
vide for the crediting of dividend equivalents to participants’
accounts. Generally, each grant, unless paid, will terminate
when the participant ceases to be employed. There are certain
change of control and retirement eligibility conditions that, if
met, generally result in accelerated vesting or elimination of fur-
ther service requirements.

Under the OECP, awards representing up to 15,000,000
shares of UGI Common Stock may be granted. The maximum
number of shares that may be issued pursuant to grants other
than stock options or SARs is 3,200,000. Dividend equivalents
on UGI Unit awards to employees will be paid in cash. Dividend
equivalents on non-employee director awards are paid in addi-
tional Stock Units. UGI Unit awards granted to employees and
non-employee directors are settled in shares of Common Stock
and cash. Beginning with fiscal 2006 grants, UGI Unit awards
granted to Antargaz employees are settled in shares of
Common Stock. With respect to UGI Performance Unit awards,
the actual number of shares (or their cash equivalent) ultimately
issued, and the actual amount of dividend equivalents paid, is
generally dependent upon the achievement of market perform-
ance goals and service conditions. It is the Company’s practice
to issue treasury shares to satisfy option exercises and UGI
Unit awards. The Company does not expect to repurchase
shares for such purposes during fiscal 2008.

UGI Stock Option Awards. Stock option transactions under the
OECP and predecessor plans for fiscal 2005, 2006 and 2007 follow:

Weighted
Weighted Total Average

Average Intrinsic Contract
Shares Option Price Value Term (Years)

Shares under option –
September 30, 2004 5,328,926 $ 11.71

Granted 1,596,100 $ 21.13
Exercised (1,913,668) $ 8.41 $ 30.4
Forfeited (58,340) $ 21.91

Shares under option –
September 30, 2005 4,953,018 $ 15.95

Granted 1,159,100 $ 20.67
Exercised (232,766) $ 11.09 $ 2.7
Forfeited (35,500) $ 19.26

Shares under option –
September 30, 2006 5,843,852 $ 17.06

Granted 1,326,800 $ 27.12
Exercised (812,573) $ 13.20 $ 11.8

Shares under option –
September 30, 2007 6,358,079 $ 19.65 $ 40.2 6.9

Options exercisable –
September 30, 2005 2,093,821 $ 12.38

Options exercisable –
September 30, 2006 3,146,952 $ 14.56

Options exercisable –
September 30, 2007 3,568,746 $ 16.75 $ 32.9 6.0

Non-vested options –
September 30, 2007 2,789,333 $ 23.36 $ 7.3 8.2

Cash received from stock option exercises and associated tax
benefits were $10.7 and $4.0, $2.6 and $0.9, and $16.1 and
$10.2 in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. As of
September 30, 2007, there was $4.4 of unrecognized compensa-
tion cost associated with unvested stock options that is expect-
ed to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.9 years.



The following table presents additional information relating to
stock options outstanding and exercisable at September 30, 2007:

Range of Exercise Prices
$6.88 - $12.57 - $18.23 - 
$10.63 $17.01 $27.90

Options outstanding at September 30, 2007:
Number of options 421,700 1,917,476 4,018,903
Weighted average remaining

contractual life (in years) 3.7 5.5 7.8
Weighted average exercise price $9.28 $15.00 $22.96

Options exercisable at September 30, 2007:
Number of options 421,700 1,749,476 1,397,570
Weighted average exercise price $9.28 $14.94 $21.27

UGI Stock Option Fair Value Information. The per share weighted
average fair value of stock options granted under our option plans
was $5.71 in fiscal 2007, $3.88 in fiscal 2006 and $2.81 in fiscal
2005. These amounts were determined using a Black-Scholes
option pricing model which values options based on the stock
price at the grant date, the expected life of the option, the esti-
mated volatility of the stock, expected dividend payments and the
risk-free interest rate over the expected life of the option. The
expected life of option awards represents the period of time dur-
ing which option grants are expected to be outstanding and is
derived from historical exercise patterns. Expected volatility is
based on historical volatility of the price of UGI’s Common Stock.
Expected dividend yield is based on historical UGI dividend rates.
The risk free interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury bonds with
terms comparable to the options in effect on the date of grant.

The assumptions we used for valuing option grants during
fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

2007 2006 2005

Expected life of option 6-6.75 years 6 years 6 years
Weighted average volatility 21.5% 21.3% 17.7%
Weighted average dividend yield 2.9% 3.4% 4.1%
Expected volatility 20.8%-21.5% 21.2%-22.6% 17.1%-17.8%
Expected dividend yield 2.8%-2.9% 2.8%-3.4% 3.7%-4.2%
Risk-free rate 4.3%-4.7% 4.3%-4.9% 3.9%-4.3%

UGI Unit Awards. UGI Stock and UGI Performance Unit awards
entitle the grantee to shares of UGI Common Stock or cash once
the service condition is met and, with respect to UGI Performance
Unit awards, subject to market performance conditions. UGI
Performance Unit grant recipients are awarded a target number of
Performance Units. The number of UGI Performance Units ulti-
mately paid at the end of the performance period (generally three-
year periods) may be higher or lower than the target amount, or
even zero, based on UGI’s Total Shareholder Return (“TSR”) per-
centile rank relative to companies in the Standard & Poor’s Utilities
Index (“UGI comparator group”). Based on the TSR percentile rank,
grantees may receive 0% to 200% of the target award granted. If
UGI’s TSR ranks below the 40th percentile compared to the UGI
comparator group, the employee will not receive an award. At the
40th percentile, the employee will be paid an award equal to 50%
of the target award; at the 50th percentile, 100%; and at the 100th
percentile, 200%. The actual amount of the award is interpolated
between these percentile rankings. Dividend equivalents are paid
in cash only on UGI Performance Units that eventually vest.

The fair value of UGI Stock Units on the grant date is equal
to the market price of UGI Stock on the grant date. Under SFAS
123R, UGI Performance Units are equity awards with a market-
based condition which, if settled in shares, results in the recog-
nition of compensation cost over the requisite employee serv-
ice period regardless of whether the market-based condition is
satisfied. The fair values of UGI Performance Units awarded
prior to fiscal 2006 are estimated using the intrinsic value
method and accounted for as liabilities. The fair value of UGI
Performance Units awarded during fiscal 2006 and 2007 are
estimated using a Monte Carlo valuation model. The fair value
associated with the target award is accounted for as equity and
the fair value of the award over the target, as well as all divi-
dend equivalents, are accounted for as liabilities. The expected
term of the UGI Performance Unit awards is three years based
on the performance period. Expected volatility is based upon
the historical volatility of UGI Common Stock over a three-year
period. The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S Treasury
yield at the time of grant. Volatility for all comparator companies
is based on historical volatility.

The following table summarizes the weighted average
assumptions used to determine the fair value of UGI
Performance Unit awards and related compensation costs:

Grants Awarded in Fiscal
2007 2006

Risk-free rate 4.7% 5.2%
Expected life 3 years 3 years
Expected volatility 19.6% 19.8%
Dividend yield 2.6% 2.8%

The weighted average grant date fair value of UGI
Performance Unit awards was estimated to be $26.84 for Units
granted in fiscal 2007 and $21.08 for Units granted in fiscal 2006.

Based on the Company’s TSR during the associated three-year
performance periods ended December 31, during fiscal 2007 the
Company paid 206,493 UGI Performance Unit awards, including
$2.8 paid in cash, associated with 193,600 awards granted in fis-
cal 2004; in fiscal 2006 the Company paid 209,211 UGI
Performance Unit awards, including $2.1 paid in cash, associated
with 168,500 awards granted in fiscal 2003; and in fiscal 2005,
the Company paid 927,000 UGI Performance awards, including
$14.4 paid in cash, associated with 508,500 UGI Performance
Unit awards granted in fiscal 2002. During fiscal 2007, 2006 and
2005, the Company paid Stock Unit awards and cash as follows:
2007 – 86,000 Stock Unit awards including $1.1 in cash; 
2006 – 20,000 Stock Unit awards including $0.2 in cash; 
2005 – 8,400 Stock Unit awards including $0.1 in cash.

The following table summarizes UGI Unit award activity for
 fiscal 2007:

Weighted Average
Number of Grant Date Fair
UGI Units Value (per Unit)

Non-vested Units - September 30, 2006 435,078 $20.00
Granted 242,371 $26.78
Forfeited (14,500) $25.65
Vested (271,180) $21.20

Non-vested Units - September 30, 2007 391,769 $23.04
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During fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, we granted UGI Unit
awards representing 242,371, 187,326, and 286,230 shares,
respectively, having weighted average grant date fair values per
Unit of $26.78, $21.13 and $20.91, respectively. At September
30, 2007, UGI Unit awards representing 879,000 shares of
Common Stock were outstanding under the OECP and prede-
cessor equity-based compensation plans.

As of September 30, 2007, there was a total of approximately
$5.0 of unrecognized compensation cost associated with 879,000
UGI Unit awards outstanding that is expected to be recognized
over a weighted average period of 1.9 years. The total fair values
of UGI Units that vested during fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005 were
$6.9, $7.2 and $11.2, respectively. As of September 30, 2007 and
2006, total liabilities of $7.9 and $13.9, respectively, associated
with UGI Unit awards are reflected in other current liabilities and
other noncurrent liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

At September 30, 2007, 8,399,397 shares of Common Stock
were available for future grants under the OECP, of which up to
2,078,057 may be issued pursuant to grants other than stock
options or SARs.

AmeriGas Partners Equity-Based Compensation Plans and

Awards. Under the AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 2000 Long-Term
Incentive Plan (“2000 Propane Plan”), the General Partner may
award to key employees the right to receive a total of 500,000
AmeriGas Partners Common Units (comprising “AmeriGas
Performance Units”), or cash equivalent to the fair market value of
such Common Units. In addition, the 2000 Propane Plan authoriz-
es the crediting of Common Unit distribution equivalents to partici-
pants’ accounts. AmeriGas Performance Unit grant recipients are
awarded a target number of AmeriGas Performance Units. The
number of AmeriGas Performance Units ultimately paid at the end
of the performance period (generally three years) may be higher or
lower than the target amount based upon the performance of
AmeriGas Partners Common Units as compared with a peer
group. Percentile rankings and payout percentages are generally
the same as the UGI Performance Unit awards. Any distribution
equivalents earned are paid in cash. Generally, each grant, unless
paid, will terminate when the participant ceases to be employed
by the General Partner. There are certain change of control and
retirement eligibility conditions that, if met, generally result in
accelerated vesting or elimination of further service requirements.

Under SFAS 123R, AmeriGas Performance Units are equity
awards with a market-based condition which, if settled in
Common Units, results in the recognition of compensation cost
over the requisite employee service period regardless of
whether the market-based condition is satisfied. The fair value of
AmeriGas Performance Units awarded prior to fiscal 2006 are
estimated using the intrinsic value method and are accounted
for as liabilities. The fair value of AmeriGas Performance Units
awarded during fiscal 2007 and 2006 are estimated using a
Monte Carlo valuation model. The fair value associated with the
target award and the award above the target, if any, is accounted
for as equity and the fair value of all distribution equivalents is
accounted for as a liability. The expected term of the AmeriGas
Performance Unit awards is three years based on the perform-
ance period. Expected volatility is based upon the historical
volatility of AmeriGas Partners Common Units over a three-year
period. The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S Treasury

yield at the time of grant. Volatility for all comparator limited part-
nerships in the peer group is based on historical volatility.

The following table summarizes the weighted average
assumptions used to determine the fair value of AmeriGas
Performance Unit awards and related compensation costs:

Grants Awarded in Fiscal
2007 2006

Risk-free rate 4.7% 5.2%
Expected life 3 years 3 years
Expected volatility 17.6% 18.1%
Dividend yield 7.1% 7.7%

We also have a nonexecutive AmeriGas Partners Common
Unit plan under which the General Partner may grant awards of
up to a total of 200,000 Common Units (comprising “AmeriGas
Units”) to key employees who do not participate in the 2000
Propane Plan. Generally, awards under the nonexecutive plan
vest at the end of a three-year period and will be paid in
Common Units and cash. The General Partner made awards
under the 2000 Propane Plan and the nonexecutive plan repre-
senting 49,650, 38,350 and 41,100 Common Units in fiscal
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, having weighted average
grant date fair values per Common Unit of $33.63, $29.62 and
$29.51, respectively. At September 30, 2007 and 2006, awards
representing 119,317 and 113,517 Common Units, respectively,
were outstanding. At September 30, 2007, 316,686 and 137,750
Common Units were available for future grants under the 2000
Propane Plan and the nonexecutive plan, respectively.

During fiscal 2007, the Partnership paid 38,736 AmeriGas
Partners Common Units, including $0.6 paid in cash, associated
with 51,200 awards granted in fiscal 2004. During fiscal 2006, the
Partnership paid 6,750 AmeriGas Partners Common Units, includ-
ing $0.1 paid in cash, associated with 43,500 awards granted in fis-
cal 2003. During fiscal 2005, the Partnership paid 29,586 AmeriGas
Partners Common Units, including $0.5 paid in cash, associated
with 112,250 awards granted in fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2002.

The following table summarizes AmeriGas Unit and
AmeriGas Performance Unit award activity for fiscal 2007:

Number of Weighted Average
AmeriGas Partners Grant Date Fair

Common Units Value (per Unit)

Non-vested Units - September 30, 2006 93,900 $29.10
Granted 49,650 $33.63
Forfeited (1,200) $31.52
Vested (31,698) $28.64
Performance criteria not met (3,918) $28.02

Non-vested Units - September 30, 2007 106,734 $30.61

As of September 30, 2007, there was a total of approximately
$1.8 of unrecognized compensation cost associated with 119,317
AmeriGas Common Unit awards that is expected to be recognized
over a weighted average period of 1.8 years. The total fair values
of Common Units that vested during fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005
were $1.2, $0.6 and $1.2, respectively. As of September 30, 2007
and 2006, total liabilities of $1.8 and $2.2 associated with
Common Unit awards are reflected in other current liabilities and
other noncurrent liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.



Note 9 – Partnership Distributions
The Partnership makes distributions to its partners approximate-
ly 45 days after the end of each fiscal quarter in a total amount
equal to its Available Cash for such quarter. Available Cash gen-
erally means:

1. all cash on hand at the end of such quarter,
2. plus all additional cash on hand as of the date of determina-

tion resulting from borrowings after the end of such quarter,
3. less the amount of cash reserves established by the

General Partner in its reasonable discretion.
The General Partner may establish reserves for the proper

conduct of the Partnership’s business and for distributions dur-
ing the next four quarters. In addition, certain of the
Partnership’s debt agreements require reserves be established
for the payment of debt principal and interest.

Distributions of Available Cash are made 98% to limited part-
ners and 2% to the General Partner (representing a 1% General
Partner interest in AmeriGas Partners and 1.01% interest in
AmeriGas OLP) until Available Cash exceeds the Minimum
Quarterly Distribution of $0.55 and the First Target Distribution
of $0.055 per Common Unit (or a total of $0.605 per Common
Unit). If Available Cash exceeds $0.605 per Common Unit in any
quarter, the General Partner will receive a greater percentage of
the total Partnership distribution (the “incentive distribution”)
but only with respect to the amount by which the distribution
per Common Unit to limited partners exceeds $0.605.
Accordingly, because the Partnership made distributions to
Common Unitholders of $0.61 per limited partner unit on May
18, 2007 and $0.86 per limited partner unit on August 18, 2007
(which amount included a one-time $0.25 per limited partner
unit increase in the quarterly distribution associated with a por-
tion of the proceeds from the sale of the Partnership’s Arizona
storage facility), the General Partner received a greater percent-
age of the total Partnership distribution than its aggregate 2%
general partner interest in AmeriGas OLP and AmeriGas
Partners. The General Partner distribution based on its general
partner ownership interest alone totaled $6.8 in fiscal 2007. The
amount of the incentive distribution received by the General
Partner during fiscal 2007 totaled $3.7.

As previously mentioned, on July 30, 2007, the General
Partner’s Board of Directors approved a distribution of $0.86 per
Common Unit payable on August 18, 2007 to unitholders of
record on August 10, 2007. This distribution included the regular
quarterly distribution of $0.61 per Common Unit and $0.25 per
Common Unit reflecting a distribution of a portion of the pro-
ceeds from the Partnership’s sale of its Arizona storage facility
in July 2007.

Note 10 – Commitments and Contingencies
We lease various buildings and other facilities and transporta-
tion, computer and office equipment under operating leases.
Certain of our leases contain renewal and purchase options and
also contain step-rent provisions. Our aggregate rental expense
for such leases was $68.1 in fiscal 2007, $60.3 in fiscal 2006
and $55.1 in fiscal 2005.

Minimum future payments under operating leases that have
initial or remaining noncancelable terms in excess of one year
are as follows:

After
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2012

AmeriGas Propane $46.5 $39.7 $34.4 $28.6 $22.5 $51.7
UGI Utilities 4.9 3.9 2.7 2.2 1.9 3.4
International Propane 

and other 6.5 3.1 2.3 1.4 0.5 0.7

Total $57.9 $46.7 $39.4 $32.2 $24.9 $55.8

The Company’s businesses enter into contracts of varying
lengths and terms to meet their supply, pipeline transportation,
storage, capacity and energy needs. Gas Utility has gas supply
agreements with producers and marketers with terms not
exceeding one year. Gas Utility also has agreements for firm
pipeline transportation and natural gas storage services, which
Gas Utility may terminate at various dates through 2016. Gas
Utility’s costs associated with transportation and storage capaci-
ty agreements are included in its annual PGC filing with the
PUC and are recoverable through PGC rates. In addition, Gas
Utility has short-term gas supply agreements which permit it to
purchase certain of its gas supply needs on a firm or interrupt-
ible basis at spot-market prices. Electric Utility purchases its
energy needs under contracts with various suppliers and on the
spot market. Contracts with producers for energy needs expire
at various dates through fiscal 2011. Energy Services enters into
fixed-price contracts with suppliers to purchase natural gas to
meet its sales commitments. Generally, these contracts have
terms of less than two years. The Partnership enters into fixed-
price and, from time to time, variable-priced contracts to pur-
chase a portion of its supply requirements. These contracts gen-
erally have terms of less than one year. International Propane,
particularly Antargaz, enters into variable-priced contracts to pur-
chase a portion of its supply requirements. Generally, these
contracts have terms that do not exceed three years.

The following table presents contractual obligations under
Gas Utility, Electric Utility, Energy Services, AmeriGas Propane
and International Propane supply, storage and service contracts
existing at September 30, 2007:

After
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2012

Gas Utility and Electric 
Utility supply, storage 
and transportation 
contracts $478.9 $189.9 $103.6 $73.4 $52.1 $121.6

Energy Services 
supply contracts 462.6 47.3 – – – –

AmeriGas Propane
supply contracts 25.8 – – – – –

International Propane
supply contracts 61.7 47.0 – – – –

Total $1,029.0 $284.2 $103.6 $73.4 $52.1 $121.6

The Partnership and International Propane also enter into
other contracts to purchase LPG to meet supply requirements.
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Generally, these contracts are one- to three-year agreements
subject to annual review and call for payment based on either
market prices at date of delivery or fixed prices.

On August 21, 2001, AmeriGas Partners, through AmeriGas
OLP, acquired the propane distribution businesses of Columbia
Energy Group (the “2001 Acquisition”) pursuant to the terms of a
purchase agreement (the “2001 Acquisition Agreement”) by and
among Columbia Energy Group (“CEG”), Columbia Propane
Corporation (“Columbia Propane”), Columbia Propane, L.P.
(“CPLP”), CP Holdings, Inc. (“CPH,” and together with Columbia
Propane and CPLP, the “Company Parties”), AmeriGas Partners,
AmeriGas OLP and the General Partner (together with AmeriGas
Partners and AmeriGas OLP, the “Buyer Parties”). As a result of
the 2001 Acquisition, AmeriGas OLP acquired all of the stock of
Columbia Propane and CPH and substantially all of the partnership
interests of CPLP. Under the terms of an earlier acquisition agree-
ment (the “1999 Acquisition Agreement”), the Company Parties
agreed to indemnify the former general partners of National
Propane Partners, L.P. (a predecessor company of the Columbia
Propane businesses) and an affiliate (collectively, “National
General Partners”) against certain income tax and other losses
that they may sustain as a result of the 1999 acquisition by CPLP
of National Propane Partners, L.P. (the “1999 Acquisition”) or the
operation of the business after the 1999 Acquisition (“National
Claims”). At September 30, 2007, the potential amount payable
under this indemnity by the Company Parties was approximately
$58.0. These indemnity obligations will expire on the date that
CPH acquires the remaining outstanding partnership interest of
CPLP, which is expected to occur on or after July 19, 2009. Under
the terms of the 2001 Acquisition Agreement, CEG agreed to
indemnify the Buyer Parties and the Company Parties against any
losses that they sustain under the 1999 Acquisition Agreement
and related agreements (“Losses”), including National Claims, to
the extent such claims are based on acts or omissions of CEG or
the Company Parties prior to the 2001 Acquisition. The Buyer
Parties agreed to indemnify CEG against Losses, including
National Claims, to the extent such claims are based on acts or
omissions of the Buyer Parties or the Company Parties after the
2001 Acquisition. CEG and the Buyer Parties have agreed to
apportion certain losses resulting from National Claims to the
extent such losses result from the 2001 Acquisition itself.

Samuel and Brenda Swiger and their son (the “Swigers”) sus-
tained personal injuries and property damage as a result of a fire
that occurred when propane that leaked from an underground
line ignited. In July 1998, the Swigers filed a class action lawsuit
against AmeriGas Propane, L.P. (named incorrectly as
“UGI/AmeriGas, Inc.”), in the Circuit Court of Monongalia County,
West Virginia, in which they sought to recover an unspecified
amount of compensatory and punitive damages and attorney’s
fees, for themselves and on behalf of persons in West Virginia for
whom the defendants had installed propane gas lines, resulting
from the defendants’ alleged failure to install underground
propane lines at depths required by applicable safety standards.
In 2003, AmeriGas OLP settled the individual personal injury and
property damage claims of the Swigers. In 2004, the court grant-
ed the plaintiffs’ motion to include customers acquired from
Columbia Propane in August 2001 as additional potential class
members and the plaintiffs amended their complaint to name

additional parties pursuant to such ruling. Subsequently, in March
2005, AmeriGas OLP filed a crossclaim against CEG, former
owner of Columbia Propane, seeking indemnification for conduct
undertaken by Columbia Propane prior to AmeriGas OLP’s acqui-
sition. Class counsel has indicated that the class is seeking com-
pensatory damages in excess of $12 plus punitive damages, civil
penalties and attorneys’ fees. We believe we have good defenses
to the claims of the class members and intend to defend against
the remaining claims in this lawsuit.

From the late 1800s through the mid-1900s, UGI Utilities and
its former subsidiaries owned and operated a number of manu-
factured gas plants (“MGPs”) prior to the general availability of
natural gas. Some constituents of coal tars and other residues of
the manufactured gas process are today considered hazardous
substances under the Superfund Law and may be present on
the sites of former MGPs. Between 1882 and 1953, UGI Utilities
owned the stock of subsidiary gas companies in Pennsylvania
and elsewhere and also operated the businesses of some gas
companies under agreement. Pursuant to the requirements of
the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, UGI Utilities
divested all of its utility operations other than those which now
constitute UGI Gas and Electric Utility by the early 1950s.

UGI Utilities does not expect its costs for investigation and
remediation of hazardous substances at Pennsylvania MGP sites
to be material to its results of operations because UGI Gas is cur-
rently permitted to include in rates, through future base rate pro-
ceedings, a five-year average of such prudently incurred remedia-
tion costs. In accordance with the terms of the PNG base rate
case order which became effective December 2, 2006, site-spe-
cific environmental investigation and remediation costs associat-
ed with PNG Gas incurred prior to December 2, 2006 are amor-
tized as removal costs over five-year periods. Such costs incurred
after December 1, 2006 are expensed as incurred.

As a result of the acquisition of PG Energy by UGI Utilities’
wholly owned subsidiary, UGIPNG, UGIPNG became party to a
Multi-Site Remediation Consent Order and Agreement between
PG Energy and the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental
Protection dated March 31, 2004 (“Multi-Site Agreement”). The
Multi-Site Agreement requires UGIPNG to perform annually a
specified level of activities associated with environmental inves-
tigation and remediation work at 11 currently owned properties
on which MGP-related facilities were operated (“Properties”).
Under the Multi-Site Agreement, environmental expenditures,
including costs to perform work on the Properties, are capped at
$1.1 in any calendar year. Costs related to investigation and
remediation of one property formerly owned by UGIPNG are
also included in this cap. The Multi-Site Agreement terminates in
2019 but may be terminated by either party effective at the end
of any two-year period beginning with the original effective date.

UGI Utilities has been notified of several sites outside
Pennsylvania on which private parties allege MGPs were former-
ly owned or operated by it or owned or operated by its former
subsidiaries. Such parties are investigating the extent of environ-
mental contamination or performing environmental remediation.
UGI Utilities is currently litigating four claims against it relating to
out-of-state sites. We accrue environmental investigation and
cleanup costs when it is probable that a liability exists and the
amount or range of amounts can be reasonably estimated.
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Management believes that under applicable law UGI Utilities
should not be liable in those instances in which a former sub-
sidiary owned or operated an MGP. There could be, however, sig-
nificant future costs of an uncertain amount associated with envi-
ronmental damage caused by MGPs outside Pennsylvania that
UGI Utilities directly operated, or that were owned or operated by
former subsidiaries of UGI Utilities if a court were to conclude that
(1) the subsidiary’s separate corporate form should be disregarded
or (2) UGI Utilities should be considered to have been an operator
because of its conduct with respect to its subsidiary’s MGP.

South Carolina Electric & Gas Company v. UGI Utilities, Inc. 
On September 22, 2006, South Carolina Electric & Gas
Company (“SCE&G”), a subsidiary of SCANA Corporation, filed
a lawsuit against UGI Utilities in the District Court of South
Carolina seeking contribution from UGI Utilities for past and
future remediation costs related to the operations of a former
MGP located in Charleston, South Carolina. SCE&G asserts that
the plant operated from 1855 to 1954 and alleges that UGI
Utilities controlled operations of the plant from 1910 to 1926
and is liable for 47% of the costs associated with the site.
SCE&G asserts that it has spent approximately $22 in remedia-
tion costs and $26 in third-party claims relating to the site and
estimates that future remediation costs could be as high as
$2.5. SCE&G further asserts that it has received a demand from
the United States Justice Department for natural resource dam-
ages. UGI Utilities is defending the suit.

City of Bangor, Maine v. Citizens Communications Company. 
In April 2003, Citizens Communications Company (“Citizens”)
served a complaint naming UGI Utilities as a third-party defendant
in a civil action pending in the United States District Court for the
District of Maine. In that action, the plaintiff, City of Bangor, Maine
(“City”) sued Citizens to recover environmental response costs
associated with MGP wastes generated at a plant allegedly oper-
ated by Citizens’ predecessors at a site on the Penobscot River.
Citizens subsequently joined UGI Utilities and ten other third-party
defendants alleging that the third-party defendants are responsible
for an equitable share of costs Citizens may be required to pay to
the City for cleaning up tar deposits in the Penobscot River.
Citizens alleges that UGI Utilities and its predecessors owned and
operated the plant from 1901 to 1928. Studies conducted by the
City and Citizens suggest that it could cost up to $18 to clean up
the river. Citizens’ third-party claims have been stayed pending a
resolution of the City’s suit against Citizens, which was tried in
September 2005. Maine’s Department of Environmental
Protection (“DEP”) informed UGI Utilities in March 2005 that it
considers UGI Utilities to be a potentially responsible party for
costs incurred by the State of Maine related to gas plant contami-
nants at this site. On June 27, 2006, the court issued an order
finding Citizens responsible for 60% of the cleanup costs. On
February 14, 2007, Citizens and the City entered into a settlement
agreement pursuant to which Citizens agreed to pay $7.6 in
exchange for a release of its liabilities. UGI Utilities believes that it
has good defenses to any claim that the DEP may bring to recover
its costs, and is defending the Citizens’ suit.

Consolidated Edison Company of New York v. UGI Utilities, Inc.
On September 20, 2001, Consolidated Edison Company of New
York (“ConEd”) filed suit against UGI Utilities in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of New York,
seeking contribution from UGI Utilities for an allocated share of
response costs associated with investigating and assessing gas
plant related contamination at former MGP sites in Westchester
County, New York. The complaint alleges that UGI Utilities
“owned and operated” the MGPs prior to 1904. The complaint
also seeks a declaration that UGI Utilities is responsible for an
allocated percentage of future investigative and remedial costs
at the sites.

The trial court granted UGI Utilities’ motion for summary
judgment and dismissed ConEd’s complaint. The grant of sum-
mary judgment was entered April 1, 2004. ConEd appealed and
on September 9, 2005 a panel of the Second Circuit Court of
Appeals affirmed in part and reversed in part the decision of the
trial court. The appellate panel affirmed the trial court’s decision
dismissing claims that UGI Utilities was liable under CERCLA as
an operator of MGPs owned and operated by its former sub-
sidiaries. The appellate panel reversed the trial court’s decision
that UGI Utilities was released from liability at three sites where
UGI Utilities operated MGPs under lease. ConEd claims that the
cost of remediation for the three sites would be approximately
$14. On October 7, 2005, UGI Utilities filed for reconsideration
of the panel’s order, which was denied by the Second Circuit
Court of Appeals on January 17, 2006. On April 14, 2006,
Utilities filed a petition requesting that the United States
Supreme Court review the decision of the Second Circuit Court
of Appeals. On June 18, 2007, the United States Supreme Court
denied UGI Utilities petition. The case has now been remanded
back to the trial court. UGI Utilities is defending the suit.

Sag Harbor, New York Matter. By letter dated June 24, 2004,
KeySpan Energy (“KeySpan”) informed UGI Utilities that
KeySpan has spent $2.3 and expects to spend another $11 to
clean up an MGP site it owns in Sag Harbor, New York. KeySpan
believes that UGI Utilities is responsible for approximately 50%
of these costs as a result of UGI Utilities’ alleged direct owner-
ship and operation of the plant from 1885 to 1902. By letter
dated June 6, 2006, KeySpan reported that the New York
Department of Environmental Conservation has approved a
remedy for the site that is estimated to cost approximately $10.
KeySpan believes that the cost could be as high as $20. UGI
Utilities is in the process of reviewing the information provided
by KeySpan and is investigating this claim.

Yankee Gas Services Company and Connecticut Light and
Power Company v. UGI Utilities, Inc. On September 11, 2006,
UGI Utilities received a complaint filed by Yankee Gas Services
Company and Connecticut Light and Power Company, sub-
sidiaries of Northeast Utilities, (together the “Northeast
Companies”) in the United States District Court for the District
of Connecticut seeking contribution from UGI Utilities for past
and future remediation costs related to MGP operations on thir-
teen sites owned by the Northeast Companies in nine cities in
the State of Connecticut. The Northeast Companies allege that
UGI Utilities controlled operations of the plants from 1883 to
1941. The Northeast Companies estimated that remediation

Note 10 continued
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costs for all of the sites would total approximately $215 and
asserted that UGI Utilities is responsible for approximately $103
of this amount. Based on information supplied by the Northeast
Companies and UGI Utilities’ own investigation, UGI Utilities
believes that it may have operated one of the sites, Waterbury
North, under lease for a portion of its operating history. UGI
Utilities is reviewing the Northeast Companies’ estimate that
remediation costs at Waterbury North could total $23. UGI
Utilities is defending the suit.

French tax authorities levy various taxes on legal entities and
individuals regularly operating a business in France which are
commonly referred to collectively as “business tax.” The
amount of business tax charged annually is generally dependent
upon the value of the entity’s tangible fixed assets. Prior to the
Antargaz Acquisition, Antargaz filed suit against French tax
authorities in connection with the assessment of business tax
related to certain of its owned tanks at customer locations. Elf
Antar France and Elf Aquitaine, now Total France, former own-
ers of Antargaz, agreed to indemnify Antargaz for all payments
which would have been due from Antargaz in respect of the tax
related to its tanks for the period from January 1, 1997 through
December 31, 2000. During the year ended September 30,
2005, Antargaz was required to remit payment to the French
tax authorities with respect to this matter and Antargaz was
fully reimbursed pursuant to the indemnity agreement. At
September 30, 2007, the remaining amount subject to the
indemnification is immaterial.

On February 4, 2005, Antargaz received a letter that was
issued by the French government to the French Committee of
Butane and Propane (“CFBP”), a butane/propane industry group,
concerning the business tax, that eliminated the requirement for
Antargaz to pay business tax associated with tanks at certain
customer locations. In addition, during 2005, resolution was
reached relating to business taxes relating to a prior year. Further
changes in the French government or tax authorities’ interpreta-
tion of the tax laws or in the tax laws themselves, could have
either an adverse or a favorable effect on our results of opera-
tions. Our 2005 Statement of Income includes a pre-tax gain of
$18.8 and net after-tax gain of $14.2 associated with the resolu-
tion of business tax matters related principally to prior years.

In addition to these matters, there are other pending claims
and legal actions arising in the normal course of our business-
es. We cannot predict with certainty the final results of environ-
mental and other matters. However, it is reasonably possible
that some of them could be resolved unfavorably to us and
result in losses in excess of recorded amounts. We are unable
to estimate any possible losses in excess of recorded amounts.
Although we currently believe, after consultation with counsel,
that damages or settlements, if any, recovered by the plaintiffs
in such claims or actions will not have a material adverse effect
on our financial position, damages or settlements could be
material to our operating results or cash flows in future periods
depending on the nature and timing of future developments
with respect to these matters and the amounts of future oper-
ating results and cash flows.

Note 11 – Financial Instruments
In accordance with its commodity hedging policy, the
Partnership uses derivative instruments, including price swap
and option contracts and contracts for the forward sale of
propane, to manage the cost of a portion of its forecasted pur-
chases of propane and to manage market risk associated with
propane storage inventories. These derivative instruments have
been designated by the Partnership as cash flow or fair value
hedges under SFAS 133. The fair values of these derivative
instruments are affected by changes in propane product prices.
In addition to these derivative instruments, the Partnership may
also enter into contracts for the forward purchase of propane as
well as fixed-price supply agreements to manage propane mar-
ket price risk. These contracts generally qualify for the normal
purchases and normal sales exception of SFAS 133 and there-
fore are not adjusted to fair value.

Flaga also uses derivative instruments, principally price swap
contracts, to reduce market risk associated with purchases of
LPG. These contracts may or may not qualify for hedge account-
ing under SFAS 133. Antargaz uses forward foreign exchange
contracts and may use other derivative instruments, similar to
those used by the Partnership, to manage the cost of a portion
of its forecasted purchases of LPG.

Energy Services uses exchange-traded and over-the-counter
natural gas futures contracts to manage market risk associated
with forecasted purchases of natural gas it sells under firm
commitments and forecasted sales at market prices. In addi-
tion, Energy Services uses price swap and option contracts to
manage market risk associated with forecasted purchases of
propane it sells under firm commitments. These derivative
instruments are designated as cash flow hedges. The fair values
of these futures and swap and option contracts are affected by
changes in natural gas and propane prices.

In accordance with its commodity hedging policy, Gas Utility
may enter into natural gas call option and futures contracts to
reduce volatility in the cost of gas it purchases for its firm-resi-
dential, commercial and industrial (“retail core-market”) cus-
tomers and Electric Utility may enter into electric swap agree-
ments in order to reduce the volatility in the cost of anticipated
electricity requirements. Because the cost of the natural gas
option and futures contracts and any associated losses or gains
are included in Gas Utility’s PGC recovery mechanism, as these
contracts are marked to fair value in accordance with SFAS 133,
any losses or gains are deferred for future recovery from or
refund to Gas Utility’s ratepayers.

We enter into interest rate protection agreements (“IRPAs”)
designed to manage interest rate risk associated with planned
issuances of fixed-rate long-term debt. We designate these
IRPAs as cash flow hedges. Gains or losses on IRPAs are
included in accumulated other comprehensive income and are
reclassified to interest expense as the interest expense on the
associated debt affects earnings. Antargaz has entered into
interest rate swap agreements to fix the variable interest com-
ponent of its Senior Facilities term loan through March 2011.
Flaga has entered into an interest rate swap agreement to fix
the variable interest component of substantially all of its term
loan through September 2011.
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We are also a party to a number of contracts that have ele-
ments of a derivative instrument. These contracts include,
among others, binding purchase orders, contracts which provide
for the purchase and delivery of natural gas and electricity, and
service contracts that require the counterparty to provide com-
modity storage, transportation or capacity service to meet our
normal sales commitments. Although many of these contracts
have the requisite elements of a derivative instrument, these
contracts are not subject to the accounting requirements of
SFAS 133 because they provide for the delivery of products or
services in quantities that are expected to be used in the nor-
mal course of operating our business or the value of the con-
tract is directly associated with the price or value of a service.

During fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, amounts recognized in
earnings representing cash flow hedge ineffectiveness were not
material. Gains and losses included in accumulated other com-
prehensive income at September 30, 2007 relating to cash flow
hedges will be reclassified into (1) cost of sales when the fore-
casted purchase or sale of LPG, natural gas or electricity subject
to the hedges impacts net income and (2) interest expense
when interest on anticipated issuances of fixed-rate long-term
debt or interest expense on variable rate debt subject to inter-
est rate swaps is reflected in net income. Included in accumu-
lated other comprehensive income at September 30, 2007 are
net after-tax losses of approximately $7.0 from settled IRPAs
and IRPAs associated with forecasted issuances of debt antici-
pated to occur during fiscal 2009 and 2010. The amount of this
net loss that is expected to be reclassified into net income dur-
ing the next twelve months is not material. Also included in
accumulated other comprehensive income at September 30,
2007 are (1) net after-tax losses of approximately $1.3 principally
associated with future purchases of natural gas and propane
generally anticipated to occur during the next twelve months,
(2) net after-tax gains of approximately $0.5 associated with
future electric supply purchases expected to occur through
December 2007, (3) net after-tax gains of $13.6 associated with
International Propane interest rate swaps, and (4) net after-tax
losses of $5.3 associated with forecasted U.S. dollar-denominat-
ed purchases of LPG by our International Propane businesses
generally anticipated to occur during the next three years. The
amount of the losses that is expected to be reclassified into net
income during the next twelve months associated with the U.S.
dollar-denominated purchases is not material. The actual amount
of gains or losses on unsettled derivative instruments that ulti-
mately is reclassified into net income will depend upon the
value of such derivative contracts when settled. The fair value of
the long-term portion of unsettled derivative instruments is
included in Other assets and Other noncurrent liabilities in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The primary currency for which the Company has exchange
rate risk is the euro. The U.S. dollar value of our foreign-denomi-
nated assets and liabilities will fluctuate with changes in the

associated foreign currency exchange rates. We use derivative
instruments to hedge portions of our net investments in foreign
subsidiaries. If a derivative is designated as a hedge of an
investment in a foreign subsidiary and qualifies for hedge
accounting, any realized gains or losses remain in other com-
prehensive income until such foreign operations have been liqui-
dated. At September 30, 2007, a net after-tax loss of $4.9 is
included in accumulated other comprehensive income associat-
ed with settled and unsettled net investment hedges.

The carrying amounts of financial instruments included in
current assets and current liabilities (excluding unsettled deriva-
tive instruments and current maturities of long-term debt)
approximate their fair values because of their short-term nature.
The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of our remain-
ing financial instruments (including unsettled derivative instru-
ments) at September 30, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value

2007:
Natural gas futures and option contracts $ (1.4) $ (1.4)
Electric supply swap 0.8 0.8
Propane swap and option contracts 18.3 18.3
Interest rate protection and swap agreements 21.3 21.3
Foreign currency forward contracts (14.7) (14.7)
Long-term debt 2,053.5 2,037.6

2006:
Natural gas futures and option contracts $ (6.0) $ (6.0)
Electric supply swap 5.2 5.2
Propane swap and option contracts (26.4) (26.4)
Interest rate protection and swap agreements 14.4 14.4
Foreign currency forward contracts 2.4 2.4
Long-term debt 1,996.9 2,006.8

We estimate the fair value of long-term debt by using cur-
rent market prices and by discounting future cash flows using
rates available for similar type debt. Fair values of derivative
instruments reflect the estimated amounts that we would
receive or pay to terminate the contracts at the reporting date
based upon quoted market prices of comparable contracts at
September 30, 2007 and 2006.

We have financial instruments, such as short-term invest-
ments and trade accounts receivable, which could expose us to
concentrations of credit risk. We limit our credit risk from short-
term investments by investing only in investment-grade com-
mercial paper, money market mutual funds and securities guar-
anteed by the U.S. Government or its agencies. The credit risk
from trade accounts receivable is limited because we have a
large customer base, which extends across many different U.S.
markets and several foreign countries. We attempt to minimize
the credit risk associated with our derivative financial instru-
ments through the application of credit policies.

Note 11 continued
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Note 12 – Energy Services Accounts Receivable
Securitization Facility
UGI Energy Services, Inc. (“ESI”) has a $200 receivables pur-
chase facility (“Receivables Facility”) with an issuer of receiv-
ables-backed commercial paper expiring in April 2009, although
the Receivables Facility may terminate prior to such date due to
the termination of commitments of the Receivables Facility’s
back-up purchasers. Prior to September 2006, ESI’s Receivables
Facility was $150.

Under the Receivables Facility, ESI transfers, on an ongoing
basis and without recourse, its trade accounts receivable to its
wholly owned, special-purpose subsidiary, Energy Services
Funding Corporation (“ESFC”), which is consolidated for financial
statement purposes. ESFC, in turn, has sold, and subject to cer-
tain conditions, may from time to time sell, an undivided interest
in the receivables to a commercial paper conduit of a major
bank. ESFC was created and has been structured to isolate its
assets from creditors of ESI and its affiliates, including UGI. This
two-step transaction is accounted for as a sale of receivables fol-
lowing the provisions of SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers
and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of
Liabilities.” ESI continues to service, administer and collect trade
receivables on behalf of the commercial paper issuer and ESFC.

During fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, ESI sold trade receivables
totaling $1,241.0, $1,306.0 and $1,253.6, respectively, to ESFC.
During fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, ESFC sold an aggregate
$495.5, $859.5 and $475.5, respectively, of undivided interests in
its trade receivables to the commercial paper conduit. At
September 30, 2007, the outstanding balance of ESFC trade
receivables was $65.7 which is net of $16 that was sold to the
commercial paper conduit and removed from the balance sheet.
At September 30, 2006, the outstanding balance of ESFC trade
receivables was $24.1 which is net of $60.5 that was sold to the
commercial paper conduit and removed from the balance sheet.
Losses on sales of receivables to the commercial paper conduit
that occurred during fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 , which are includ-
ed in Other income, net, were $1.5, $3.3, and $0.9, respectively.

In addition, a major bank has committed to issue up to $50
of standby letters of credit, secured by cash or marketable
securities (“LC Facility”). Energy Services expects to fund the
collateral requirements with borrowings under its Receivables
Facility. The LC Facility expires April 2008.

Note 13 – Other Income, Net
Other income (loss), net, comprises the following:

2007 2006 2005

Interest and interest-related income $11.5 $15.8 $ 6.3
Utility non-tariff service income 5.1 1.0 1.3
Gain (loss) on sales of fixed assets 0.5 (0.1) 3.4
Gain on sale of Energy Ventures – 9.1 –
Gain on Partnership sale of storage facility 46.1 – –
Finance charges 10.2 8.4 7.6
French business tax reversal – – 19.9
Other 4.5 2.6 8.2

Total other income, net $77.9 $36.8 $46.7

Note 14 – AmeriGas Partners Common 
Unit Issuances
In September 2007, in conjunction with a propane business
acquisition, the Partnership issued 166,205 Common Units to
the General Partner having a fair value of $5.7.

In September 2005, AmeriGas Partners sold 2,300,000
Common Units in an underwritten public offering at a public
offering price of $33.00 per Common Unit. The net proceeds of
the public offering totaling $72.7 and the associated capital con-
tributions from the General Partner totaling $1.5 were con-
tributed to AmeriGas OLP, and used to reduce indebtedness
under its bank credit agreement and for general partnership pur-
poses. Concurrent with this sale of Common Units, the
Company recorded a gain in the amount of $28.0 which is
reflected in the Company’s balance sheet as an increase in
common stockholders’ equity and a corresponding decrease in
minority interests in AmeriGas Partners in accordance with the
guidance in SAB 51. The gain had no effect on the Company’s
net income or cash flow. Total deferred income tax liabilities of
$16.0 associated with this gain with a corresponding decrease
to common stockholders’ equity were also recorded and reflect-
ed in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.



58

UGI Corporation 2007 Annual Report

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Millions of dollars and euros, except per share amounts and where indicated otherwise)

Note 16 – Segment Information
We have organized our business units into six reportable seg-
ments generally based upon products sold, geographic location
(domestic or international) and regulatory environment. Our
reportable segments are: (1) AmeriGas Propane; (2) an interna-
tional LPG segment comprising Antargaz; (3) an international
LPG segment comprising Flaga and our international propane
equity investments (“Other”); (4) Gas Utility; (5) Electric Utility;
and (6) Energy Services. We refer to both international seg-
ments collectively as “International Propane.”

AmeriGas Propane derives its revenues principally from the
sale of propane and related equipment and supplies to retail
customers from locations in 46 states. Our International
Propane segments’ revenues are derived principally from the
distribution of LPG to retail customers in France and Austria.
Gas Utility’s revenues are derived principally from the sale and
distribution of natural gas to customers in eastern and north-
eastern Pennsylvania. Electric Utility derives its revenues princi-
pally from the distribution of electricity in two northeastern
Pennsylvania counties. Energy Services revenues are derived
from the sale of natural gas and, to a lesser extent, LPG, elec-
tricity and fuel oil to customers located primarily in the Eastern
United States.

The accounting policies of our reportable segments are the
same as those described in Note 1. We evaluate AmeriGas
Propane’s performance principally based upon the Partnership’s
earnings before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation
and amortization (“Partnership EBITDA”). Although we use
Partnership EBITDA to evaluate AmeriGas Propane’s profitability,
it should not be considered as an alternative to net income (as
an indicator of operating performance) or as an alternative to
cash flow (as a measure of liquidity or ability to service debt obli-
gations) and is not a measure of performance or financial condi-
tion under accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. The Company’s definition of Partnership EBITDA
may be different from that used by other companies. We evalu-
ate the performance of our International Propane, Gas Utility,
Electric Utility and Energy Services segments principally based
upon their income (loss) before income taxes.

No single customer represents more than ten percent of our
consolidated revenues. In addition, all of our reportable seg-
ments’ revenues, other than those of our International Propane
segments, are derived from sources within the United States,
and all of our reportable segments’ long-lived assets, other than
those of our International Propane segments, are located in the
United States.

Note 15 – Quarterly Data (unaudited)
The following unaudited quarterly data includes adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) which we consider neces-
sary for a fair presentation unless otherwise indicated. Our quarterly results fluctuate because of the seasonal nature of our businesses.

December 31, March 31, June 30, September 30,
2006 2005 2007 2006(a) 2007 2006(b) 2007(c) 2006

Revenues $1,463.2 $1,577.9 $2,002.1 $1,845.5 $ 1,076.8 $919.1 $934.8 $ 878.5
Operating income $ 167.3 $ 160.2 $ 300.5 $ 262.6 $ 51.6 $ 38.5 $ 61.9 $ 6.4
Income (loss) from equity investees $ – $ (0.6) $ (1.3) $ (0.6) $ (0.9) $ – $ 1.6 $ (1.0)
Net income (loss) $ 61.9 $ 57.5 $ 120.2 $ 104.0 $ 11.5 $ 18.7 $ 10.7 $ (4.0)
Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic $ 0.58 $ 0.55 $ 1.13 $ 0.99 $ 0.11 $ 0.18 $ 0.10 $ (0.04)
Diluted $ 0.58 $ 0.54 $ 1.12 $ 0.98 $ 0.11 $ 0.18 $ 0.10 $ (0.04)

(a) Includes a gain on the sale of our 50% ownership interest in Energy Ventures which increased operating income by $9.1 and net income by $5.3 or $0.05 per diluted share, and a
loss on early extinguishments of AmeriGas Propane’s debt which decreased net income by $4.6 or $0.04 per diluted share.

(b) Includes the effects of changes in management’s estimate of taxes to be paid associated with planned repatriation of foreign earnings which increased net income by approximately
$5.0 or $0.05 per diluted share.

(c) Includes a gain from sale of the Partnership’s 3.5 million barrel underground storage terminal which increased operating income by $46.1 and net income by $12.5 or $0.12 per
 diluted share.
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Financial information by reportable business segment follows:
Reportable Segments

International Propane
AmeriGas Gas Electric Energy International Corporate &

Total Eliminations Propane Utility Utility Services Antargaz Other (b) Other (c)

2007
Revenues $5,476.9 $(197.3)(d) $2,277.4 $1,044.9 $121.9 $1,336.1 $ 759.2 $ 41.2 $ 93.5 
Cost of sales $ 3,730.8 $(193.8)(d) $1,437.2 $ 741.5 $ 67.8 $1,235.2 $ 366.7 $ 21.9 $ 54.3
Operating income $ 581.3 $ – $ 265.8 $ 136.6 $ 26.0 $ 57.4 $ 94.5 $ – $ 1.0
Loss from equity investees (3.8) – – – – – (1.8) (2.0) –
Interest expense (139.6) – (71.5) (39.9) (2.4) – (23.1) (2.1) (0.6)
Minority interests (106.9) (0.2) (105.3) – – – (1.4) – –

Income (loss) before income taxes $ 331.0 $ (0.2) $ 89.0 $ 96.7 $ 23.6 $ 57.4 $ 68.2 $ (4.1) $ 0.4
Depreciation and amortization $ 169.2 $ – $ 75.7 $ 37.4 $ 3.5 $ 6.9 $ 41.5 $ 3.4 $ 0.8
Partnership EBITDA (a) $ 338.7
Total assets $ 5,502.7 $(358.1) $1,708.4 $1,531.2 $102.9 $ 254.9 $1,648.9 $196.8 $417.7
Capital expenditures $ 223.1 $ – $ 73.8 $ 66.2 $ 7.2 $ 10.7 $ 61.8 $ 2.5 $ 0.9
Investments in equity investees $ 63.9 $ – $ – $ – $ – $ – $ – $ 63.9 $ –
Goodwill $ 1,498.8 $ (4.0) $ 645.1 $ 162.3 $ – $ 11.8 $ 630.3 $ 46.3 $ 7.0

2006
Revenues $ 5,221.0 $(156.1)(d) $2,119.3 $ 724.0 $ 98.0 $1,414.3 $ 881.9 $ 63.6 $ 76.0
Cost of sales $ 3,657.9 $(152.3)(d) $1,343.8 $ 522.9 $ 51.0 $1,328.2 $ 478.4 $ 38.8 $ 47.1
Operating income $ 467.7 $ – $ 184.1 $ 84.2 $ 20.7 $ 53.1 $ 115.4 $ 3.9 $ 6.3
Loss from equity investees (2.2) – – – – – (1.6) (0.6) –
Loss on extinguishments of debt (18.5) – (17.1) – – – (1.4) – –
Interest expense (123.6) – (74.1) (21.8) (2.5) – (23.1) (1.7) (0.4)
Minority interests (48.7) (0.4) (51.3) – – – 3.0 – –

Income before income taxes $ 274.7 $ (0.4) $ 41.6 $ 62.4 $ 18.2 $ 53.1 $ 92.3 $ 1.6 $ 5.9
Depreciation and amortization $ 148.7 $ – $ 72.5 $ 23.3 $ 3.3 $ 6.7 $ 38.2 $ 3.9 $ 0.8
Partnership EBITDA (a) $ 237.9
Total assets $ 5,080.5 $(340.7) $1,627.2 $1,504.3 $105.3 $ 238.5 $1,406.8 $183.4 $355.7
Capital expenditures $ 191.7 $ – $ 70.7 $ 49.2 $ 9.0 $ 7.0 $ 47.9 $ 7.6 $ 0.3
Investments in equity investees $ 58.2 $ – $ – $ – $ – $ – $ – $ 58.2 $ –
Goodwill $ 1,418.2 $ (4.0) $ 619.1 $ 182.9 $ – $ 11.8 $ 560.7 $ 40.9 $ 6.8

2005
Revenues $ 4,888.7 $(124.1)(d) $1,963.3 $ 585.1 $ 96.1 $1,355.0 $ 869.9 $ 74.0 $ 69.4
Cost of sales $ 3,306.0 $(120.0)(d) $1,220.0 $ 390.1 $ 47.8 $1,281.4 $ 401.5 $ 42.6 $ 42.6
Operating income $ 503.0 $ – $ 168.1 $ 81.6 $ 21.6 $ 37.5 $ 188.3(e) $ 5.5 $ 0.4
Loss from equity investees (2.6) – – – – – (2.5) (0.1) –
Loss on extinguishments of debt (33.6) – (33.6) – – – – – –
Interest expense (130.2) – (79.8) (16.6) (1.7) – (28.6) (2.9) (0.6)
Minority interests (29.9) 3.9 (33.1) – – – (0.7) – –

Income (loss) before income taxes $ 306.7 $ 3.9 $ 21.6 $ 65.0 $ 19.9 $ 37.5 $ 156.5(e) $ 2.5 $ (0.2)
Depreciation and amortization $ 146.4 $ – $ 73.7 $ 20.7 $ 3.1 $ 5.7 $ 37.6 $ 4.9 $ 0.7
Partnership EBITDA (a) $ 215.9
Total assets $ 4,571.5 $(348.1) $1,672.9 $ 803.6 $ 99.8 $ 296.1 $1,404.8 $152.4 $490.0
Capital expenditures $ 158.4 $ – $ 62.6 $ 38.8 $ 7.5 $ 6.2 $ 38.5 $ 3.5 $ 1.3
Investments in equity investees $ 12.8 $ – $ – $ – $ – $ 8.5 $ 1.6 $ 2.7 $ –
Goodwill $ 1,231.2 $ (4.0) $ 618.2 $ – $ – $ 11.8 $ 531.4 $ 67.5 $ 6.3

(a) The following table provides a reconciliation of Partnership EBITDA to AmeriGas
Propane operating income:
Year ended September 30, 2007 2006 2005
Partnership EBITDA (i) $338.7 $237.9 $215.9
Depreciation and amortization (ii) (75.7) (72.5) (73.6)
Minority interests (iii) 2.8 1.6 1.3
Intercompany gain on sale of Atlantic Energy – – (9.1)
Loss on extinguishments of debt – 17.1 33.6
Operating income $265.8 $184.1 $168.1
(i) Includes $46.1 gain on the sale of Arizona storage facility in fiscal 2007 and $9.1 gain on the

sale of Atlantic Energy to Energy Services during fiscal 2005. See Note 2.
(ii) Excludes General Partner depreciation and amortization of $0.1 in fiscal 2005.
(iii) Principally represents the General Partner’s 1.01% interest in AmeriGas OLP.

(b) International Propane – Other principally comprises Flaga, including its Central and
Eastern European joint-venture ZLH, and our joint-venture business in China.

(c) Corporate & Other results principally comprise UGI Enterprises’ HVAC/R, net
expenses of UGI’s captive general liability insurance company and UGI Corporation’s
unallocated corporate and general expenses, interest income, and, beginning
January 1, 2007, UGI Utilities’ HVAC operations. Corporate & Other assets
 principally comprise cash, short-term investments and an intercompany loan. The
intercompany interest associated with the intercompany loan is removed in the
 segment presentation.

(d) Represents the elimination of intersegment transactions primarily associated with
Energy Services’ revenues from sales to Gas Utility and AmeriGas Propane totaling
$127.1 and $33.6 in fiscal 2007, respectively, $101.0 and $37.3 in fiscal 2006, respec-
tively, and $89.2 and $25.9 in fiscal 2005, respectively.

(e) International Propane-Antargaz’ operating income and income before income taxes
for fiscal 2005 include $18.8 associated with the resolution of certain business tax
contingencies (see Note 10).
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Financial Statistics (Unaudited)
(Millions of dollars, except per share amounts and where indicated otherwise)

Year Ended September 30,

2007 2006 2005

Income Statement Data

AmeriGas Propane revenues $ 2,277.4 $ 2,119.3 $1,963.3
Utilities revenues 1,166.8 822.0 681.2
International Propane revenues 800.4 945.5 943.9
Energy Services and other revenues 1,232.3 1,334.2 1,300.3

Total revenues $ 5,476.9 $ 5,221.0 $4,888.7

Income from continuing operations $ 204.3 $ 176.2 $ 187.5
Net income $ 204.3 $ 176.2 $ 187.5

Balance Sheet Data

Capitalization at period end:
Bank loans – AmeriGas Propane $ – $ – $ –
Total long-term debt – AmeriGas Propane 933.1 933.7 913.5
Bank loans – UGI Utilities 190.0 216.0 81.2
Total long-term debt – UGI Utilities 512.0 512.0 237.0
Total long-term debt – Antargaz 544.9 483.5 431.1
Other bank loans and long-term debt 72.4 77.1 79.1

Total debt 2,252.4 2,222.3 1,741.9
Minority interests, principally in AmeriGas Partners 192.2 139.5 206.3
UGI Utilities preferred shares subject to mandatory redemption – – – 
Common stockholders’ equity 1,321.9 1,099.6 997.6

Total capitalization $ 3,766.5 $ 3,461.4 $2,945.8

Total assets $5,502.7 $5,080.5 $ 4,571.5

Common Stock Data

Shares outstanding – end of year (millions) 106.6 105.5 104.8
Average shares outstanding (millions) 106.5 105.5 103.9
Return on average common equity 16.9% 16.8% 20.5%
Per common share:

Earnings from continuing operations – diluted $ 1.89 $ 1.65 $ 1.77
Net earnings – diluted $ 1.89 $ 1.65 $ 1.77
Book value – end of year $ 12.40 $ 10.42 $ 9.52
Dividends declared $ 0.71 $ 0.68 $ 0.64
Annual dividend rate – end of year $ 0.74 $ 0.71 $ 0.68

Dividend yield – end of year 2.8% 2.9% 2.4%
Price range:

High $ 29.63 $ 28.64 $ 29.98
Low $ 22.75 $ 20.21 $ 18.45
Close $ 25.98 $ 24.45 $ 28.15

Other Data

Investments and acquisitions, net $ 78.8 $ 566.7(c) $ 33.3
Capital expenditures $ 223.1 $ 191.7 $ 158.4

(a) Includes cumulative effect of accounting changes of $4.5 million or $0.06 per share associated with (1) the Partnership’s changes in accounting for
tank fee revenue and tank installation costs and (2) the adoption of SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.”

(b) Includes net after-tax merger termination fee income from Unisource Worldwide, Inc. net, of $12.9 million or $0.14 per share.
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Year Ended September 30,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

$ 1,775.9 $ 1,628.4 $ 1,307.9 $1,418.4 $1,120.1 $ 872.5 $ 914.4
650.1 628.7 488.0 582.7 436.9 420.6 422.3
333.4 54.5 46.7 50.9 50.5 – –

1,025.3 714.5 371.1 416.1 154.2 90.5 103.0

$ 3,784.7 $ 3,026.1 $2,213.7 $2,468.1 $ 1,761.7 $1,383.6 $1,439.7 

$ 111.6 $ 98.9 $ 75.5 $ 52.0 $ 44.7 $ 55.7(b) $ 40.3
$ 111.6 $ 98.9 $ 75.5 $ 56.5(a) $ 44.7 $ 55.7(b) $ 40.3

$ – $ – $ 10.0 $ – $ 30.0 $ 22.0 $ 10.0
901.4 927.3 945.8 1,005.9 857.2 744.7 709.0
60.9 40.7 37.2 57.8 100.4 87.4 68.4
217.2 217.3 248.4 208.4 172.9 180.0 187.2
474.5 – – – – – –
94.2 94.8 90.1 90.9 89.8 103.2 8.2

1,748.2 1,280.1 1,331.5 1,363.0 1,250.3 1,137.3 982.8
178.4 134.6 276.0 246.2 177.1 209.9 236.5
20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0

834.1 498.7 313.8 251.0 242.0 245.1 363.4

$ 2,780.7 $ 1,933.4 $ 1,941.3 $1,880.2 $1,689.4 $1,612.3 $1,602.7

$ 4,242.6 $ 2,795.2 $2,624.5 $ 2,557.3 $2,279.1 $2,136.4 $2,070.9

102.4 85.4 83.2 81.8 81.0 81.8 98.4
94.6 84.4 82.6 81.5 81.6 95.8 99.0
16.7% 24.3% 26.7% 22.9% 18.4% 18.3% 10.9%

$ 1.15 $ 1.14 $ 0.90 $ 0.64 $ 0.55 $ 0.58(b) $ 0.41
$ 1.15 $ 1.14 $ 0.90 $ 0.69(a) $ 0.55 $ 0.58(b) $ 0.41
$ 8.15 $ 5.84 $ 3.77 $ 3.07 $ 2.99 $ 3.00 $ 3.70
$ 0.58 $ 0.56 $ 0.54 $ 0.52 $ 0.50 $ 0.49 $ 0.48
$ 0.63 $ 0.57 $ 0.55 $ 0.53 $ 0.52 $ 0.49 $ 0.49

3.4% 3.9% 4.5% 5.9% 6.4% 6.5% 6.3%

$ 18.68 $ 17.53 $ 12.26 $ 9.826 $ 8.104 $ 8.583 $ 10.041
$ 14.43 $ 11.64 $ 8.56 $ 7.125 $ 6.062 $ 5.00 $ 6.833
$ 18.63 $ 14.47 $ 12.12 $ 9.033 $ 8.083 $ 7.75 $ 7.708

$ 308.6 $ 90.3 $ 1.0 $ 241.5 $ 65.3 $ 82.5 $ 10.1
$ 133.7 $ 101.4 $ 94.7 $ 79.3 $ 71.0 $ 73.7 $ 69.2

(c) Net of 2007 PG Energy Acquisition working capital adjustment of $23.7 million. 
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Operating Statistics

Year Ended September 30,

2007 2006 2005

AmeriGas Propane 

Retail sales – millions of gallons
Residential 400.1 378.6 422.3
Commercial/Industrial 358.1 343.2 352.9
Motor fuel 143.3 147.8 142.0
Agricultural 52.9 52.0 60.5
Transport 52.3 53.6 57.2

Total 1,006.7 975.2 1,034.9

Wholesale sales – millions of gallons 117.4 119.7 148.7
Total customers – January 1 (thousands) 1,317 1,324 1,311
Retail distribution locations 646 608 650
Degree days – percent of normal 93% 90% 93%
Number of employees 6,218 5,895 5,993
Property, plant and equipment, net (millions) $ 634.0 $ 580.6 $ 584.5

International Propane

Sales volume – millions of gallons
Antargaz 269.1 315.2 338.4
Flaga (including ZLH) 55.8 65.0 37.2

Total customers (thousands)
Antargaz 205 210 216
Flaga (including ZLH) 82 80 21

Degree days – percent of normal
Antargaz 79% 96% 96%
Flaga (including ZLH) 78% 96% 95%

Number of employees
Antargaz 1,121 1,133 1,194
Flaga (including ZLH) 658 700 350

Gas Utility (a)

System throughput – millions of cubic feet
Residential – firm 35,820 19,330 20,674
Commercial – firm 18,377 11,361 11,692
Industrial – firm 1,685 1,347 1,343
Transportation – firm 42,065 23,747 23,354
Transportation – interruptible 33,198 26,292 26,617
Retail – interruptible 640 561 1,029

Total 131,785 82,638 84,709

Total customers (thousands) 478 473 307
Miles of gas main 7,800 7,700 5,018
Degree days – percent of normal 95% 91% 98%
Number of employees 1,149 1,336 912
Property, plant and equipment, net (millions) $ 1,004.8 $ 974.5 $ 584.8

Electric Utility

Distribution system sales – thousands
of kilowatt hours
Residential 534,714 530,129 543,167
Commercial 348,875 348,059 354,396
Industrial and other 127,032 126,854 124,248

Total 1,010,621 1,005,042 1,021,811

Total customers (thousands) 62 62 62
Miles of line 2,164 2,150 2,141
Number of employees 89 97 97
Property, plant and equipment, net (millions) $ 78.9 $ 76.3 $ 70.5

(a) Includes data of UGI Penn Natural Gas, Inc. beginning August 24, 2006.
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Year Ended September 30,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

443.2 445.8 388.2 334.6 308.3 318.3 317.5
354.3 367.8 351.6 306.6 284.3 285.3 287.3
128.7 120.4 119.0 114.4 116.7 112.4 106.0
72.1 78.1 74.0 65.2 61.9 67.2 74.5
60.8 62.8 54.7 46.0 46.5 46.3 50.4

1,059.1 1,074.9 987.5 866.8 817.7 829.5 835.7

225.0 209.8 195.3 246.8 211.5 144.3 154.7
1,324 1,285 1,318 990 993 988 981

663 640 646 750 561 579 617
95% 100% 90% 103% 86% 90% 91%

6,077 6,165 6,315 6,306 4,874 5,026 5,107
$ 592.7 $ 595.0 $ 612.2 $ 628.6 $ 437.6 $ 437.7 $ 445.4

336.4 341.5 356.1 335.3 – – –
34.7 34.5 36.7 36.7 41.0 – –

218 220 222 221 – – –
21 22 22 22 22 – –

95% 89% 91% 87% – – –
98% 96% 90% 88% 96% – –

1,270 1,268 1,368 1,454 – – –
359 321 350 350 – – –

20,833 22,049 16,848 20,197 18,447 17,442 16,612
11,968 12,427 10,114 12,292 10,894 10,506 10,247
1,355 1,481 1,282 1,687 1,565 1,759 3,099

23,727 22,704 18,031 18,989 20,796 21,175 20,366
23,669 24,694 23,748 23,508 27,167 24,308 23,243

653 490 475 656 851 913 1,345

82,205 83,845 70,498 77,329 79,720 76,103 74,912

301 292 286 277 272 265 258
4,900 4,801 4,721 4,640 4,549 4,446 4,360

97% 107% 83% 102% 90% 87% 84%
941 936 922 946 932 946 987 

$ 565.9 $ 548.1 $ 527.6 $ 514.1 $ 504.0 $ 491.2 $ 479.3

517,189 517,192 482,921 491,652 465,006 469,061 455,575
348,603 345,854 333,248 334,367 320,478 316,141 305,138
118,153 116,957 117,373 119,445 121,710 115,199 115,694 

983,945 980,003 933,542 945,464 907,194 900,401 876,407

62 62 62 61 61 61 61
2,141 2,131 2,122 2,112 2,092 2,086 2,083

105 173 175 180 188 192 194
$ 65.4 $ 117.4 $ 65.5 $ 64.7 $ 66.0 $ 65.5 $ 64.6 
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Annual Meeting
The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held at 10:00 a.m.
on Tuesday, January 29, 2008 in the Washington Room of the
Sheraton Park Ridge Hotel and Conference Center, 480 North
Gulph Road, King of Prussia, Pennsylvania 19406.

Common Stock Data
The Company’s Common Stock is traded on the New York 
and Philadelphia stock exchanges under the symbol UGI.
Shareholders of record numbered 8,591 on September 30, 2007
and common shares outstanding totaled 106,646,886.

Dividends 

Dividends on UGI’s Common Stock have been paid without
interruption since 1885. During the 2007 fiscal year, quarterly
dividends were paid on the first days of October, January, April
and July. 

Market Price of Common Stock and Dividends Paid

2007 Fiscal Year High Low Dividends

1st Quarter $29.00 $24.26 $.17625

2nd Quarter 27.94 24.10 .17625

3rd Quarter 29.63 25.77 .17625

4th Quarter 28.30 22.75 .18500

2006 Fiscal Year High Low Dividends

1st Quarter $28.64 $20.21 $.16875

2nd Quarter 22.85 20.60 .16875

3rd Quarter 24.75 20.93 .16875

4th Quarter 25.73 23.74 .17625

Investor Services
Transfer Agent and Registrar

Shareholder communications regarding transfer of shares, book-
entry shares, lost  certificates, lost dividend checks or changes
of address should be directed to:

By Mail:
Computershare Investor Services
P.O. Box 43078
Providence, RI 02940-3078

By Overnight Delivery:
Computershare Investor Services
250 Royall Street
Canton, MA 02021

1-800-850-1774 (U.S. and Canada)
1-312-360-5100 (other countries)

Shareholders can also view real-time account information and
request transfer agent services online at the Computershare
Investor Services website: www.computershare.com/investor.
Computershare Investor Services can be accessed through
 telecommunications devices for the hearing impaired by calling:

1-800-822-2794 (U.S. and Canada)
1-312-588-4110 (other countries)

Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan

UGI's plan provides investors with a simple and convenient
method to purchase shares of UGI Common Stock.
Shareholders may use all or any part of the dividends they
receive to purchase shares of Common Stock. The plan also
permits participants to make monthly cash purchases of
Common Stock not exceeding $12,000 per year. Investors may
become participants by making an initial cash investment of at
least $1,000 but not more than $12,000. All such purchases are
without brokerage commissions or service charges. For
information about the Plan, write or call:

Computershare Investor Services 
P.O. Box 43078 
Providence, RI 02940-3078 
1-800-850-1774

Plan information is also available on the Computershare Investor
Services website: www.computershare.com/investor.

Investor Relations
Securities analysts, portfolio managers and other members of
the professional investment community should direct inquiries
about the Company to:

Robert W. Krick, Vice President and Treasurer
UGI Corporation
P.O. Box 858
Valley Forge, PA 19482
1-610-337-1000

News, Earnings, Financial Reports and 

Governance Documents

UGI has a toll-free, 24-hour, corporate news and investor
 information service. By calling 1-800-844-9453, you can hear
UGI news on dividends, earnings and other matters and access
other shareholder services. You can also request copies of
news releases, annual reports, annual reports on Form 10-K 
and quarterly reports on Form 10-Q – all without charge.

Comprehensive news, webcast events, governance documents
and other information about UGI and AmeriGas Partners, L.P.
are also available via the Internet at: www.ugicorp.com.

You can also request all reports and governance documents,
including the Company’s Codes of Ethics and Principles of
Corporate Governance free of charge, by writing to Robert W.
Krick, Vice President and Treasurer, UGI Corporation, at the
address above.

Corporate Governance
The Company’s last annual meeting was held on February 27, 2007.
The Company submitted the certification required by Section
303A.12(a) of the New York Stock Exchange corporate governance
rules on March 23, 2007. The Company submitted the certification
required by Section 867.12(a) of the Philadelphia Stock Exchange
corporate governance rules on November 1, 2007. In addition, the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have
each filed the certification required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act as an exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended September 30, 2007.



Richard C. Gozon, Retired, former Executive Vice President, 
Weyerhaeuser Company (integrated forest products)

Ernest E. Jones, President and Chief Executive Officer, Philadelphia 
Workforce Development Corporation (employment and training)

Anne Pol, Retired, former President and Chief Operating Officer, 
Trex Enterprises Corporation (high technology research and development)

Marvin O. Schlanger, Principal, Cherry Hill Chemical Investments, 
L.L.C. (management and capital services)

James W. Stratton, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Stratton 
Holding Company (investment adviser)

Roger B. Vincent, President, Springwell Corporation (corporate 
financial adviser)

Board of Directors

Lon R. Greenberg, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

John L. Walsh, President and Chief Operating Officer

Stephen D. Ban, Director, Technology Transfer Division of the Argonne 
National Laboratory (research and development)

Senior Management Team

Robert H. Knauss, Vice President and General Counsel

Peter Kelly, Vice President – Finance and Chief Financial Officer

Lon R. Greenberg, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

John L. Walsh, President and Chief Operating Officer

Eugene V. N. Bissell, President and Chief Executive Officer,  
AmeriGas Propane, Inc.

François Varagne, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Antargaz

Josef Weinzierl, Managing Director, Flaga GmbH

Robert L. Pistor, Vice President, UGI HVAC Enterprises, Inc.

David W. Trego, President and Chief Executive Officer, UGI Utilities, Inc.

Bradley C. Hall, Vice President – New Business Development; 
President, UGI Enterprises, Inc.
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P.O. Box 858
Valley Forge, PA 19482

You can obtain news and other information about
UGI Corporation and AmeriGas Partners, L.P.

24 hours a day at 1-800-844-9453 or www.ugicorp.com


